<= Southern
C:D b\b .. 0021(06() f]-o - VVater

Annual Report and
Accounts 2014-15

Building on success

I D||||1|\IWIIIIIlHIﬂl\ I\IH\IIWIIIII

l lQO 5 #535 |

10/08!2015




Southerm Water Annual Report and Accounts 2014-15

Contents

At a glance
Our business

Welcome

Chairman’s introduction
Qur Board

Chief Executive’s summary

Strategic Report
The next five years

Customers

Responsive customer service

Affordable bills

Better information and advice

Services

A constant supply of high-quality drinking water
Removing wastewater effectively

Environment
Locking after the environment
Climate change

About us
Our workplace
Our community

Financial performance

Governance

Chairman's overview

Board of directors

Audit and nisk review committee
Health and safety committee
Nomination commitiee

Directors’ remuneration report
Directors’ report

Financial statements

15

19
19
21
23
25
25
28

30
30
34

36
36
39

42

58
58
64
69
71
72

73
85

89




Southern Water Annual Report and Accounts 2014-15

Overview

At a glance

Our business

We take care of life's essentials by providing 4 6 million people with water and wastewater services across the
South East of England

Qur vision s to be recognised as the UK’s leading water company and we will achieve this by

» Providing excelient customer service — which meets and more often exceeds our customers’
expectations

« Embracing innovation and working collaboratively — so that we invest in, and operate, our mams
sewers and treatment works efficiently and effectively

« Delivering value to our customers and shareholders — focusing on cost management and efficient
investment to keep bills affordable and generate reasonable returns on investment
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N N

People served, millions 25
Number of properties, millions 11
Number of metered properties 906,313
Average dally water supply, milions of itres per day 524
Number of service reservoirs 204
Number of water treatment works 89
Length of water mains, kilometres 13,753
I R
People served, mitions 486
Number of properties, millions 19
Average daily wastewater recycled, miliions of Iitres per day 718
Length of sewers, klometres 39,600
Number of wastewater treatment works 365
Number of pumping stations 2,375
Turnover” £828 6m  £806 2m
Operating profit (before exceptional item) £3259m  £325 0m
Exceptional item (severe weather) {£2 4m) £18 8m
Profit on ordinary activities after tax £167 2m £169 8m
Capital investment £323 1m £415 5m
Average water and wastewater customer bill £434 £424

* Non-appointed activittes (not regulated by our icence but related to our business, such as property search
information) were 0 8 per cent of our turnover




Southern Water Annual Report and Accounts 2014—-15

Key performance indicators 2014-15
Overall drinking water qualty, calendar year 98 97%
Leakage, miflions of litres per day 82
Beaches meeting European water quality standards 100%
Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM)’ 787
Performance water non-infrastructure Stable
Performance water infrastructure Stable
Performance wastewater non-infrastructure® Stable
Performance wastewater infrastructure® Stable
Pollution incidents, calendar year 292

2013-14
99 94%
85
100%
752
Stable
Stable
Detenorating
Deterniorating

324

1 This measure 1s based on the methodology used last year for comparative purposes The calcutation method changed dunng 2014-15

and under this new method, our score for 2014—15 was 72

2 Serviceability performance for wastewater infrastructure and non-infrastructure m 2013-14 was self-assessed by the Board as stable and
reported as such in our Annual Report for 2013—14 Ofwat, i its final dstermination, assessed both sub-services as detencrating, which is

the view reflected in the table above
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Where your money goes

The average combined bilf for our household water and wastewater customers in 2014—15 was £434 —
equivalent to £1 19 per day This money contributed towards our five-year £1 8 billion investment programme,
which s the equivalent of almost £1,000 for every property in our region

We recognise that it 1s important for customers to understand where their money goes and we have committed
to Increase awareness through our reporting

The diagram below illustrates how an average annual bill contributes to our business, based on figures from
our Final Determination for the Asset Management Plan covening 2010-15 (AMPS)

Breakdown of average daily charge of £1.19

W Day-to-day running costs
H Interest on debt

B Maintaining our assets

m 8uiding new assets

B Tax, rates and licences

& Profit

Day-to-day running costs — this includes wages for direct employees and people indirectly employed through
our supply chain as well as power, chemicals and materals costs

Interest on debt — on money borrowed to help spread the cost for customers of improvements to our services
over the longer term

Maintaining our existing assets — capital expenditure to maintain our underground pipe network and
treatment works, mcluding capitalised employee costs

Building new assets — for example our new wastewater treatment works at Peacehaven and works to
enhance treatment standards and cater for growth

Tax, business rates and licences — this includes corporate taxes, business rates on buildings, wastewater
treatment works and water supply works and Environment Agency licences

Profit — return earned on shareholders’ investment in the business




Southern Water Annual Report and Accounts 2014-15

The charts below show a further breakdown of the average annual daily charge based on expenditure from
2010-2015 They illustrate the services on which we spend day-to-day running costs and the costs of
maintaining and buillding our assets

Where we spend day-to-day running costs

Where we spend to maintain and build new assets

Retall services
2%
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Welcome

Chairman’s introduction

This Annual Report marks the final year of the five-year Asset Management Plan (AMP5) agreed with Ofwat for
2010-15 and the start of AMP6 for 2015-20

More than usual # seems appropnate that my review should provide both a took back over the year ended on
31 March 2015 and a look forward covenng the forthcoming regulatory quinquennium to 2020

A look back

We have said on many occasions that Southern Water's vision 1s to be recogrised as the UK's leading water
company We started the year with industry-leading credentials in health and safety, leakage and the roll-out of
meternng

In operational terms, 2014—15 was our best year for a long ttime We can legitmately claim to have sustained
our performance 1n the areas where we were already a leader and have improved our performance in drinking
water quality, minmising customer supply interruptions, bathing water quality and treatment works compliance
to the point where we are now perforrming at or close to industry-leading standards

Although we have also seen marked improvements In our customer service metncs and in pollution incidents,
even after another strong year in 2014—15 our relative performance tells us that we are still not delivenng at the
levels to which we aspire in these parts of our business We believe, though, that the gap 1s closing

As we make headway In our operating metrics, greater benefit accrues to our customers, our other
stakeholders and the regional economy we serve

In order that these improvements in performance can be sustained, it 1s also crucial that our financial
performance should be satisfactery In this regard, 1 am pleased to note that our operating costs were stable
relative to the prior year and that our operating profits and cash from operations showed healthy underlying
INcreases

External endorsement of our progress came from Moody's, the credit rating agency, who removed the negative
outlook from our debt ratings in February of this year This important milestone was greatly aided by the
support of our shareholders in adopting a flexible dividend policy targeted at strengthening our financial
position

Qur financial strength enabled us to make further significant investment amounting to £323 million 1n our
assets, our people and our systems, a sum which is comfortably in excess of our profit after tax

So, we leave AMPS demonstrating continued improvement in our performance to the paint where on several
metrics we are now at industry-leading levels It 1s only appropnate that | should take this opportunity, on behalf
of our Board, to thank our management team, our employees and our contractor partners for therr ingenuity
and hard graft which underlie the good progress we have seen

A look forward

A key focus for the Board in 2014—15 has been Ofwat's price review which took effect on 1 Apnl 2015 and
which imposes a significant reduction in our charges in real terms over the five years to 2020

In order to accommodate lower revenues, our Executive Management Team had to identify ways by which we
could reduce the cost of delivering services by over £200 millron To achieve efficiencies of this magnitude, all
our operating models and practices have been subjected to challenge and review and many changes have
been made and others are to follow
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After much review, challenge and deliberation, our Board endorsed the Business Plan, confident that it can
deliver the necessary efficiency gains while also allowing us to meet our broader customer and other
stakeholder commitments

Even so, 1t I1s clear that achievement of our plan represents an enormous management challenge, particularly in
the current year | am pleased, though, to note that all the important early immtiatives on which the plan was
predicated have been successfully delivered

One of particular note 1s our new Customer Advisory Panel (CAP) Following the success of our independent
Customer Challenge Group during the price review, we decided to continue with its role, albert in a different
format This will ensure we have independent advice and challenge around how we engage with our customers
and stakeholders

Charred by Anna Bradley, the new CAP will sit as an independent panel made up of members with a broad
range of skills and expenience Its principal duty wili be to monitor delivery of and provide assurance that the six
prionties identified in the Business Plan are being met and that the 26 promuses made by the company are
being kept The CAP will ensure its view of company performance 1s commumcated in a clear and transparent
way {0 the Board, customers, stakeholders and the broader community we serve

As part of our preparation for AMP6 we aiso recogmised we needed to refresh our Board, given that our
independent non-executive directors, apart from me, had all served since 2008 or earlier

in making new appointments we considered carefully the expenence and skill sets which we felt would benefit
us most | am delighted to report that Paul Sheffield, Bill Tame, Rosemary Boot and Lisa Harrington all joined
our Board between June 2014 and April this year Their biographies are provided on pages 65 to 66 below
Collectively they bring truly impressive experience, including in capital projects, procurement, health and safety,
the environment, finance, audit and treasury, customer services, community affairs and company and Board
management

Reflecting the potential for our independent non-executive directors to add further value through mentoring and
broader support to our senior managers, we have also increased the tme each commuts to a mimimum of 24
days per year We are grateful that all our appointed directors have already demonstrated their wilingness to
commit the extra time needed to leverage ther value to us

Bob Armstrong and Cheryl Black left our Board at the end of January and Dawid Golden will be stepping down
from the end of June 2015 We are very grateful for the significant contribution each of them has made to our
business over the past several years, not least through their input to the price review and our Business Plan for
AMP6

We are also strongly supported by our shareholder non-executive directors and here 1t 1s noteworthy that Paul
Moy and Bronte Somes have switched rotes With effect from 1 April 2015, Bronte joined our Board and Paul
became her alternate We are grateful to Paul for his invaluable contribution to Southern Water Services

To conclude, our business faces significant challenges in AMP6& We need to provide better levels of service
from our ageing infrastructure and we know too that we have to improve our customer service capabilities even
more than we have to date Reform of the regulatory framework for the water sector also continues and we will
use our Influence to ensure the reforms adopted genwnely deliver customer benefits

Nonetheless we are confident the momentum we have bulilt up through strongly improved performance over the
past four years, together with our rigorous planning and state of preparedness for AMPS6, posihons us well to
meet the challenges of the next five years and to bring consequential benefit to the region, customers and other
stakeholders we serve

MWWJQ’.

Robert Jennings
Chaimman
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Cur Board

The Board 1s responsible for the overall strategic direction of the business During 2014-15, it was made up of
an independent non-executive Chairman, two executive directors (the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer) and six non-executive directors, four of whom are independent

The day-to-day operation of the company 1s averseen by the Executive Management Team (EMT),
which comprises the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and
General Counsel, and seven functional directors None of these seven directors 1s a member of the Board

The ultimate holding company of Southern Water Services (Southern Water) 1s Greensands
Holdings (Greensands), owned by a consortium of pension and infrastructure funds which 1s committed to a

long-term investment In our business

The Board members and Company Secretary are
Kewvin Hall, Company Secretary and General Counsel
Rosemary Boot, independent non-executive director
David Golden, senior independent non-executive director
Michael Carmedy, Chief Financial Officer

Robert Jennings, Chairman

Bill Tame, iIndependent non-executive director
Matthew Wnght, Chief Executive Officer

Bronte Somes, non-executive director

Lisa Harrington, independent non-executive director
Mark Walters, non-executive director

Paul Sheffield, independent non-executive director

Find out more about the Board on pages 64 to 68

10




Southem Water Annual Report and Accounts 2014—15

Chief Executive’s summary

We have come a long way In AMP5, closing the five-year period in a much better position than where we
started it, both operationally and financially

Operationally, we have ended AMPS with our performance firmly in the upper half of the sector for waste
treatment comphance and water qualty and we are leading the industry on [eakage and health and safety We
have made strong improvements In terms of reducing the number of pollution and flooding incidents,
traditionally weaker areas for us

We have also improved the quality and responsiveness of our customer service, demonstrated by the increase
In our score against Ofwat’s measure of customer satisfaction, the Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM)
However, we remain at the bottom end of the industry league table on SIM because our peers have been
improving too This does not diminish the significant efforts of the teams working hard to improve customer
service but it does mean we have a lot more to do in an area where standards are constantly rising

However, | am confident the investment and associated performance improvement we have made in AMPS
provide us with a platform for success iIn AMP& When you combine our positive frend in performance with all
the change inihatives that have been delivered or are In progress, | believe we can look forward with real
optimism to AMPS and the realisation of our ambition to be recognised as the UK's leading water company

Delivering improved performance

We continued to work hard in 2014—15 to provide the high-quality, respensive customer service our customers
expect

We carnied out a major review of every aspect of our work with customers and have made some key changes,
including putting in place a new management team led by a newly appointed Chief Customer Officer

During the past 12 months, customer complaints were reduced by 13 per cent with escalated complaints down
eight per cent Qur abandoned cali rate fell marginatly and unwanted customer call voiumes were reduced by
21 per cent

Our performance against Ofwat’s Service Incentive Mechanism improved by five per cent — or four points -
from 75 to 79 This iImprovement represents the continuation of a positive trend, however our level of customer
service performance remains behind that of our peers

As part of our commitment to address this, during the second half of the year we completed a £13 million
upgrade of our biling system to make it more efficient and effective It will also provide our customers with the
ability to manage their accounts online

Our operational performance over the past 12 months was among the best we have achieved

« Dnnking water quality — we delivered 99 97 per cent compliance against the Dnnking Water
Inspectorate’'s measures, up from 99 84 per cent in the previous year Qur 2014 performance I1s
predicted to rank us towards the top of the ten water and sewerage companies

e Leakage — we remain the industry leader with the lowest percentage leakage level of any of the major
UK water and wastewater companies |n 2014-15 we beat our target for the fourth year running,
achieving 82 miilion itres per day agamnst a target of 88 million

» Metering — our Industry-leading five-year metering programme entered its final stages The number of
meters fitted in the past five years 1s approaching 400,000 and more than 83 per cent of customers are
now paying metered charges At the start of 201011, average household consumpton was 154 Iitres
per person, per day By the end of 2014~15 1t had dropped to 135 ltres per person, per day

o Wastewater treatment — we achieved 99 per cent compliance with environmental standards, an

11



Southern Water Annual Report and Accounts 2014—-15

excellent performance and our best for 15 years

« Pollution — we delivered another strong performance with a further nine per cent fall in the number of
incidents, following a reduction of 22 per cent in 2013, despite starting the year having to deal with the
challenges posed by the wettest winter on record

« Coastal waters —in 2014, every beach in our region once again met European standards for bathing
water quality All 83 bathing waters achieved the European ‘mandatory’ standard during weekly
sampling carried out by the Enwironment Agency between May and September

« Health and safety — we continued to lead the industry on health and safety performance and beat our
own target of 0 35 reportable injuries per 100 full-tme employees/contractors durning the year For the
16th consecutive year, we achieved the Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents gold award and
were again presented with an Order of Distinction, the first water company to receive such an accoiade
twice

Building on success

We have worked hard to put In place solid foundations from which to move forward and during AMP6 we will be
investing more than £3 bilhion to build on our success We have put in place a coherent change programme to
enable us to deliver the performance improvements and cost efficiencies we have committed to in our Business
Plan This change programme 1s well under way and has already brought a number of significant improvements
to our business

Qur initiatives include

Rebuilding our in-house engineering and technical solutions team

Updating our biling and customer service system

Providing field staff wsth updated systems to enable them to work more efficiently

Appointing a new strategic partner and delivery partners to support plannming and design of caprtal projects
and network maintenance

. s »

*

Taking the lead

Not only are we committed to delivering the promises in our Business Plan but we also intend to play a lead
role in addressing some of the key challenges facing our sector The areas where we will be placing greatest
emphasis are

e Water resources management and planning — we are leading the industry in development of new
approaches to water resource planning We are committed to providing a system that is resilient,
adaptive and environmentally sustainable and that meets the needs of our customers now and 1n the
future

« Network resiience — we will embrace innovation and take the lead in working with others such as local
authornties to make our network, for example our sewers, more resihent in the face of changing weather
patterns

« Affordabiity and debt management — we are committed o delivering improvements for customers while
keeping bills as low as possible We will work with key pohcy-makers to tackie bad debt through data
sharing and collaboration

+ Value for money and performance reporting — we wili provide clear, accessible and honest reporting of
our performance agamst customer expectattons

12
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+ Community engagement and education — we will build trust and standing in the communities we serve
by developing a strong community brand built around education, staff volunteenng and chantable
support

Finances

During 2014~15, our operating profit before exceptional tems was £326 million, a 0.3 per cent increase from
the previous year when our profit was £325 millien

This improvement was In line with expectations and largely reflects an increase in turnover of £22 million,
resulting from our price increase, offset by a similar increase in depreciation charged against profits as a result
of the sigruficant nvestment we have made in our assets

Operating costs remained broadly in ine with last year Efficiencies of more than £11 million were delivered
through our continued focus on controlling operating costs and these offset the impacts of inflation on costs and
the additional expenditure incurred in operating our new wastewater treatment works at Peacehaven

I am particularly pleased that this performance, together with the operational improvements already mentioned
and our plans for further improvements over the next five years, has resulted in Moody’s stabilising our credit
rating by removing the negative outlook

Over the past five years our shareholders have supported us In strengthening our financial position and in
dehvering improved operational performance by adopting a flexible dividend policy This places us In a stronger
position for the start of the next five-year period and allows us to resume payment of dvidends from 2015-16

Loca! pride

| want to mention another aspect of the role we have played in our local communities over the past year,
something which Is very important to us At the same time as providing essential services, we believe very
much In giving something back to those we serve

This year we achieved a fantastic score of 98 per cent in the Business in the Community annual survey, which
1s a measure of our corporate responsibiity performance and national recogrition of our efforts in this area We
beat our own target of 90 per cent and came out joint top — with one other company — of all the utilities that took
part

During 2014-15 we continued to support a wide range of good causes across our region, including the Asr
Ambulance Trusts, hospices and centres for children and adults with a range of disabiities Even the money we
give to national chanties goes to benefit our regron, for example the new cancer centre that Macmiltan s
building m Bnghton We continue to support the international chanty WaterAid, helping to raise more than
£100,000 for it this year While this 1s very important, we are particularly proud to help worthwhile local causes
— we raised nearly £150,000 for them during the past 12 months

Our employees put in 609 volunteer days this year, which was a record Their efforts ranged from taking part in
sponsored sporting events to environmental tasks such as cleanng scrub on the South Downs and cleaning
beaches, all good examples of the community spint we work hard to foster nght across our region We look

forward to this work continuing in the coming five-year period

13
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Thanks to staff

All our achievements are, of course, thanks to the efforts of our hard-working employees Our workforce has
grown to 2,125 and we also iIndirectly employ more than 1,000 others, making us one of the largest local
employers and contributors to the economy in the South East

We have invested in our employees too, with a major focus over the year on development of their skifls and
expansion of functions including engimeenng and design This will continue over the coming years

The Southern Water Board has approved the Strategic Report from page 15 to page 57 and | hope 1t provides

a clear insight into what we have achieved and will continue to achieve for our customers Please get in touch if
you would like to share your views on our activities and future plans

Matthew Wright
Chief Executive Officer

14
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Strategic Report:
The next five years

Business Plan

Our Business Plan for 2015 to 2020 sets out the improvements we will make to deliver better water and
wastewater services to 4 6 million people across Kent, Sussex, Hampshire and the Isle of Wight

it 1s based on detalled discussions with more than 34,000 custemers and stakeholders and includes 26
promises about what we will achieve for them These promises represent clear performance commitments that
centre on what our customers told us they wanted They will result in a wide range of improvements over this
five-year period while average bilis will drop by eight per cent before inflation

Our promises align to six customer prionties responsive customer service, a constant supply of high-quality
dnnking water, removing wastewater effectively, looking after the environment, providing custormers with better
information and advice and affordable bills

Dunng the next five-year pertod, AMP6, we will be spending £3 2 billion on improving performance in these
areas, supporting thousands of jobs and boosting the local economy

We are confident that delivery of our Business Plan will ensure we are among the leaders in the industry for
customer service, operational performance and efficiency

To find out more, visit our website at www scuthernwater co uk/busingssplan

Responsive customer service

« Quick and effective resolution of your queries — 90 per cent resolved first time
by 2020

« Improved service to you and your community — increase the number of
customers who feel our service meets their individual needs and those of their
community

» Improved ranking in our regulator’s league table for customer satisfaction — be
among the best by 2020

+ Direct compensation paid If we let you down — this will be linked to the service
standards set out in our updated Customer Charter

A constant supply of high-quality drinking water

« No restrictions on water use, such as hosepipe bans, unless there are at least
two dry winters in a row

e Reduce leakage by 2020 - target of 86 million hitres a day by 2020, equating to
a reduction of almost two million litres a day

« Noncrease in the average time you are without water, for example because of
a burst water main

» Aim for 100 per cent compilance with drinking water quahty standards — at
least maintain performance of 99 93 per cent then 99 95 per cent from 2017-
18

* No increase In the number of households suffenng from persistent low water
pressure

« Help reduce the effect of hard water in homes and businesses — increased
customer understanding through better information and advice

156
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Removing wastewater effectively

No increase in the number of blockages in our sewer network
Significant reduction of 25 per cent in sewer flooding inside your homes and
businesses by 2020

« No increase In the number of incidents of sewer flooding affecting outside
areas

» Reduction of five per cent in complaints about smells from our wastewater
treatment works and pumping statons by 2020

Looking after the environment

« No 'serious pollution incidents’ affecting local rivers, streams and beaches
caused by our operatons by 2020

« Aim for 100 per cent comphance by our wastewater treatment works with
required standards — at least maintain performance at 98 6 per cent (2014-15
target level)

+ Increase by seven the number of beaches with ‘excellent’ bathing water quality
by 2020

« Increase the proportion of renewable energy we use to 16 5 per cent by 2020
Reduce the amount of water we take from the environment by 1 4 per cent,
despite predicted population growth of four per cent

Better information and advice

« Ten per cent reduction (15 litres per person, per day) in average water use by
2020 with better advice on saving water, energy and money — we will reduce
average water use from 148 litres (2012—13) to 133 litres per person, per day *

« Improved advice on how to prevent blocked drains to help reduce blockages -
increase the number of customers who know how to help prevent blockages in
drains and sewers
A 50 per cent reduction in bill quernes by 2020
Customers provided with better information about what we do, why we do it
and what 1t costs — increase the number of customers who understand how we
use the money they pay us

Affordable bilis

« Efficiency savings made dunng 2015-2020 to help keep bills as low as
possible

+ Ten per cent reduction (15 itres per person, per day) in average water use by
2020 with better advice on saving water, energy and money — this will reduce
average water use from 148 litres (2012-13) to 133 litres per person, per day *

e Customers in genuine financial hardship provided with improved support -
increase the proportion of customers who take up the support we offer around
bills

e Customers provided with better information on how we are providing value for
money — Increase the number of customers who feel our services provide
value for money

*Note this promise contributes to both better information and advice and affordable bills

16
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Our performance In AMP6 will also be measured against the delivery of 15 performance commitments specified
by Ofwat

Water service

» Mains bursts — no more than 2,383 bursts per year
No less than 99 82 per cent compliance on levels of turbidity (cloudiness), ron and manganese
Coliform bactena compliance, water supply works — no less than 99 92 per cent compliance
Colform bactenia compliance, water service reservoirs — no less than 99 per cent comphance
No more than six sites per year breaching turbidity (cloudiness) imits
Discoloration — no more than 0 86 customer reports per 1,000 properties, per year

Wastewater service

+« Sewer collapses — no more than 368 collapses per year

s Wastewater treatment works compliance — no less than 99 9 per cent of population served by works
meeting discharge consents

« External flooding {(other causes, including blockages and colfapses) — no more than 10,974 incidents a
year

« A reduction of minor (Category 3) poliution incidents to 158 per year by 2017-18

» Atleast maintain the number of beaches with ‘excellent’ water qualty, as defined by the Environment
Agency, at 54 each year

« Return any money not spent on the delivery of cur planned bathing waters scheme to customers

Specified schemes
« Thanet sewers scheme — an £80 million upgrade of the area’s sewer network
+ Woolston Wastewater Treatment Works — a £63 milhon redevelopment which will ensure treated
wastewater meets stringent new Environment Agency standards
« Millbrook sfudge scheme — an £11 million scheme to provide additional sludge treatment capacity at
our Millbrook Wastewater Treatment Works

Getting ready

As part of our commitment to keep bilis low for our customers, we are promising more than £200 milion In
efficiency savings by 2020 This represents a saving of £20 a year for each household we serve

To do this, and keep the promises made in our Business Plan, we have invested heawily over the past 12
months to improve our capability, our tools and systems and to change the relationship with our supply chain
partners to brning greater skills and capabiity back in house

During the past year we consolidated 16 imitiatives into a coherent change programme and put in place formal
management and review structures 1o enable us to deliver the efficiencies and improvements required in the
next five-year penod

We have

s Updated our fronthine systems, for instance by providing field staff with new handheld devices which
allow them to carry out administration on site and on the move

« Updated our billing and customer service system to enable customers to manage their accounts onfing

s Supported our workiorce by improving our workspaces, updating the computer desktop and ensurnng
we have the necessary skills and tools to do the job

+ Improved the resiltence of our systems which provide real-tme monoring of our operational sites

This work will continue into AMPE and there will be a major focus on realising the benefits from our investment
In these business improvements

A new delivery model and new partners have put us in a strong position as we move into the next five-year
perniod

17
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Significant changes have included reinstating our in-house engineering force, creating a multi-disciplinary
skilled team We took on 40 new people during the year and this number will increase to 100 within the first
year of AMPES, further strengthening the department’s capability

We have mobilised the Southern Water partnerstup that will be the ‘delivery vehicle' for the majonty of our
planned capital Invesiment A successful procurement exercise resulted in the appointment of partners who
share our vision and aspirations for the next five years and beyond

MWH joined us as our ‘strategic solutions partner' to support our iIn-house engineenng team on planning and
designing capital projects and helping define what we need tc build We also appointed three delivery partners,
all yoint ventures involving leading supphers in the water industry

¢ CMDP (MWH and Costain) will maintain and improve our water supply and wastewater treatment
works in Kent and East Sussex

o GTM (Gallford Try and Imtech) will do the same in West Sussex, Hampshire and the Isle of Wight

e MGJV (Mornson Utilty Services and Galliford Try joint venture) will expand and maintain our network of
water mains and sewers

We aiso appointed three ‘react and mamntan’ partners, Clancy Docwra, Cappagh Browne and BTU They will
be looking after the day-to-day repair and maintenance of our network of water mains and sewers and our
water supply and wastewater treatment works

Market reform
In May 2014, the Water Act 2014 became law, signaling significant change for water companies

Its purpose 1s to reform the industry to ‘make it more innovative and responsive to customers and 1o iIncrease
the resiience of water supplies to natural hazards such as drought and floods' and alsc to ensure a smooth
transition to a competitive retall market

The Act provides for the introduction of retail competition for water and sewerage services to non-household
customers in England The market will open in Aprid 2017, allowing these customers to choose where they buy
their water and sewerage services Some 90,000 of our customers will be affected

Water companies will have to separate their wholesale and retail businesses and new retailers will be able to
enter the market When the market opens, Southern Water wilt continue to operate and maintain the water and
sewerage networks in the region

We have an extensive market readiness programme under way, with full executive management engagement
Thus will deliver the busingss change required to meet the challenge of the new market while remaining focused
on keeping our promises to customers
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Customers

Responsive customer service

Our performance

2014—15 ] 2013-14

Target Achieved Achieved

SIM score* 81 78.7 752
Quantitative score 38 34.6 326
Qualitative score 43 a4 1 426

* This measure I1s based on the methodology used last ysar for comparative purposes The calculation rethod changed dunng 201415
and under this new method, our score for 2014-15 was 72

We continued to improve our service to customers in 2014—15 However, we had set ourselves a more
challenging target to enhance our standing in the Ofwat league tables for customer service and, despite our
best endeavours, this was not achieved Qur SIM score of 78 7 represents a five per cent increase on the
previous year but we did not hit the 81 we hoped to achieve

SIM - the Service Incentive Mechanism — 1s the measure Ofwat uses to assess how well we serve our
customers lt1s made up of two elements — quantitative and qualitative The former takes into account written
complaints and phone calis

In total during the year we received almost two milllon phone calls and 400,000 letters and emails from
customers The number of wrnitten complaints dropped by 13 per cent compared with the previous year and
unwanted phone calls by 21 per cent These are calls that are unwanted from the customer’s point of view, for
example about an event that has caused them frustration, and also repeat or chase calls

The qualitatve score 1s based on the results of surveys conducted four times a year on behalf of Ofwat Each
survey asks 200 customers who have contacted us with a query or complaint what they thought of our service
This year, our average score based on ‘resolved’ contacts was 4 53 out of 5 0, an improvement on last year’s
score of 4 41

We operate a Guaranteed Standards Scheme (GSS) which guarantees the minimum standard of service
customers should receive from us If we fail to provide an appropnate service we compensate customers
accordingly The number of fallures and the value of payments recorded under the GSS and our own voluntary
Customer Charter in 2014—15 are shown below We conducted specific research to find out what customers
found most frustrating in terms of service fallure and, as a resuit, some financial redress payments are being
enhanced from Apnl 2015

Statutory GSS — number of events 3,680 4,380
Statutory GSS — number of payments made 3,604 4,315
Statutory GSS — payments made £k 379 433
Company Customer Charter - number of payments made 107 77
Company Customer Charter — payments made £k 3 4
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Customer improvements

We continued to work hard in 2014—15 to provide the high-quality, responsive customer service people told us
they expected

We carried out a major review of every aspect of our work with customers and have made some key changes,
including putting in place a new management team led by a newly appointed Chief Customer Officer

To date we have

« Invested in a £13 million upgrade of our billing system to make it more efficient and effective and allow
customers to manage thetr accounts online

e Gathered the views of hundreds of customers to help shape cur new online services which are due to
go live in 2015 We have been testing the services with 100 of these customers prior fo roll-out Once
live, they will allow people to do things such as check therr balances, set up direct debits, submit meter
readings and notify us of changes, for example new bank details

e Set up a dedicated phone line to manage customer complaints Complaints dropped by 13 per cent In
the past year, though we acknowledge we have more work to do to reduce this figure further

Our Live Chat initiative, which enables customers to discuss their quenes online with a member of our
dedicated team, had its first full year and has proved hugely popular Numbers have grown dramatically — we
had more than 30,000 chats durng the year, with a record of over 4,500 in March following the expansion of

the Live Chat team

We continued to use the Your Voice customer forum, which we set up more than a year ago, to seek views on
our services and ask how we can improve We have more than 100 customers from across our region involved
in the forum and they have their say via focus groups, online questionnaires and email surveys We ask them
for their views on things such as the design of leaflets and other customer matenals, their preferred method of
contact and how often they hke to be billed
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Affordable bills

Helping customers who struggle to pay their water bills continued to be an important area for us Durng the
year we strengthened our focus on affordability, giving practical support and adwvice to those in difficuities We
achieved this through our debt assistance schemes and tariffs

Overdue bills and bad debt are a significant 1ssue for the water industry as they have an impact on every
customer's bill Our work In thus area means we help those in need, reduce the burden of non-payment on other
customers and manage our costs

The schemes and tanffs are
» NewStart — when qualifying customers pay their current water charges, we clear the same amount from
their arrears We broadened the qualifying crtena and this more inclusive approach increased the
overall number of customers that we are helping this way to 12,502

« WaterSure — this provides financial help to metered households that use large amounts of water for
essential purposes, for example certain medical conditions We helped 8,582 customers through this
tanff

* Water Direct - this scheme, where payments are taken directly from customers’ benefits, helped
10,835 people reduce their debt

Social tariff

We also developed a new social tanff — the Essentials Tanff — for customers who have genuine financial
difficulty paying their water bilis During 2014—15 we ran a small pilot scheme in partnership with the Citizens
Advice Bureau, amed at testing the design of the tanff, customer communications and customer acceptability
There was further customer research and consultation with the Consumer Council for Water in the last half of
2014 and, in January, Ofwat approved our proposals We have already seen a 79 per cent payment
sustanabihity rate, which 1s the measure of customers adhering to an agreed payment plan

Under the Essentials Tanff, introduced from 1 Apnl 2015, customers spending at least five per cent of their
household Income on water services charges are ehgible for a reduction in bills ranging from 20 to 90 per cent
When coupled with our NewStart scheme, this gives our most financially vulnerable customers a way out of
debt while ensunng they make a contnbution for the cost of water services

In addition, the Southern Water Chantable Trust Fund, a registered charity set up to help customers In financial
hardship, awarded grants worth a total of £165,000 to 342 people this year

Our Debt Advice Team answered 68,489 calls from customers seeking help and more than 55,000 people
visited the advice pages on our website, an increase of some 3,000 on the previous 12 months

We worked with The Samaritans to train and support our staff who talk to customers who are in difficult and
sometimes emotional circumstances Sussex and South Central Citizens Advice Bureau provided further expert
training for us on how to ask customers sensitive questions about income and expenditure We also worked
with StepChange, a national debt chanty, to help people struggiing with wider debt than their water bilis We
referred these customers t¢ the chanty for more assistance

Metering support

We continued to support customers who had a water meter fitted as part of our pioneering five-year universal
metering programme to reduce consumption and secure water resources for the future

To date, an impressive 63 per cent of households that have changed to metered charges have benefited from
lower bills, significantly more than predicted, and the average annual saving 1s £176, also more than predicted
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Customers whose bills rise after having a meter installed are offered our Changeover Tanff, which introduces
the increase gradually over three years More than 28,617 households have taken this up

Those who are unable to pay the increased charges are also offered our Support Tanff and are put in touch
with IncomeMAX, an independent social enterprise which helps people claim their full benefit entittements. In
the past year, 350 people were assisted in this way, bringing the total to date to 3,191 We have now secured a
total of more than £3 million in benefits and tax credits for our customers

We always offer help to those in genuine financial difficulty through our Debt Advice Team and support tanffs
However, we sometimes share information about non-paying customers with credit reference agency Expenan
and the defaults we register can affect personal credit ratings Registering defaults has encouraged more
customers to pay their outstanding bilis in full, resulting in the collection of almost £7 milion since September
2012

Working more efficiently

We are working more efficiently to achieve cost savings that will help us keep customers’ bills as low as
possible For example, we

+ Set up a specialist energy team in Operations to look at our top 30 energy-consuming wastewater sites
- those that use the most chemicals and power — and consider how to optimise the way they were run
The resulting changes meant we saved £1 2 milion duning the year They included installing tmers on
machinery that prevent it running continuously, thus saving energy, and using recycled chemicals in
our treatment process The team came up with 300 intiatives and will continue to monitor and review
our sites for further efficiencies

« Use large volumes of power and are trying to find ways to keep the costs as low as possible Our
energy team monitors the energy markets to find the best time to buy power at the lowest price We
have also investigated the types and costs of installing additional renewable energy capacity to find
investments that quickly pay for themselves and keep energy bills lower We are looking agarm at the
feasibiity of instaling solar cells on our sites to provide power for site processes such as pumping

e Also regulate energy costs by managing the times we use power and avoiding times of expensive
tanffs For example, we pump water at might when energy is cheaper and switch off non-critical plant
when the power network raises the price of energy during peak winter demand

» Are redesigning some of the processes that support the core business We want to make them more
effective and efficient and remove duplication Some of these business services had become too
complex We have already launched pilot studies into streamlining data capture and the way we
monitor our Investments

s Have mproved the way we work with colteagues and partners by redeveloping the workspace in our
Falmer office The new environment aims to encourage collaboration and innovation and includes
contemporary features such as space for stand-up meetings and walls that can be wntten on There
are break-out areas so teams can resolve quenes efficiently as they anse instead of having to arrange
a formal meeting
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Better information and advice

Our customers have told us they want better information and advice about what we do, how we are performing
and how we spend their money

We promised a range of improvements to achieve this and dunng the year we made substantial progress

More than 1 1 million people visited our website and benefited from a varnety of changes we carned out to
make information easier to access

We updated the website to make it mobile friendly, recognising the fact more people use tablets and other
mobife devices to look at it on the move The display adjusts to suit the device, meaning it 1s easier to see and
read

We integrated some of our microsites, including Learn to Swim, climate change and the Brnighton sewer tours,
into the main website, making it more streamhned and clearer It Is now easier to manage and, in the case of
the latter, has saved money as we no longer have to run a separate server for it

We also redesigned our popular Waterwise plant guide, which helps customers create water-efficient gardens
by picking the nght plants for their soil and location

We expanded our social media team, which uses Twitter and Facebook to answer customer queries We now
have more than 3,500 followers on Twitter The number of customers contacting us via social media has
trebled in the past year

Water efficiency

Water efficiency continues to be a top prionity for us and dunng the year we devised additional ways to save
water, energy and money and provided information and advice to thousands of customers

As part of our meterning programme, more than 14,000 customers had water and energy audits In theiwr homes
conducted by trained advisers called Green Doctors from the charnty Groundwork The Green Doctors fitted
water-saving showerheads and tap aerators and gave customers simple tips to help them save money on their
water and energy bills

In the western part of our region we began innovative work with Eastleigh Borough Council and the
Environment Agency on a voluntary watermark to encourage the highest water-efficiency standards for new
housing The award of a watermark will ensure future occupants of these homes will have lower consumption
and cheaper water and energy bills

We took the lead 1n promoting the European Water Label, which aims to label products such as showers, taps
and toilets according to their water efficiency Our water efficiency manager chairs the UK steenng group,
consisting of manufacturers, retailers, regulators and Government In this role, he represents all the UK water
companies as well as Southern Water The group is expanding the label to include products such as garden
hoses and pressure washers

Duning the year we worked with the Green Alliance on a landmark UK report on the importance of water
efficiency in aiding lower bills for customers and helping to maintain a more resihent service Our Chief
Executive was among the high-profile speakers at the launch in February where they discussed the report's
findings and recommendations, including better use of the water label
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Pain in the drain

We reached thousands of customers with our award-winning Pain in the Drain campaign, which aims to
prevent sewer blockages, flooding and pollution

This year we teamed up with Waitrose and Sainsbury’s in our dnive to stop people pouring fat, oif and grease
down their drains which can lead to blockages in our sewers The supermarkets gave out 20,000 fat traps and
funnels to customers as they bought thewr Chnstmas turkeys

We worked with Brighton and Hove Food Festival 1o raise awareness among hotels, restaurants and other
hospitality businesses of the consequences of putting fat down the sink As part of this, we took a group of
chefs and hoteliers underground for a tour of the Victonan sewers in Brighton

In acdition, we gave away thousands more funnels and informative ‘fat packs’ to the pubiic, many of them at
our mobile Water Caté events The café takes to the road each spring and summer to visit community events
where our staff talk about our services, water efficiency and Pain in the Drain

We also introduced Bruce, our sewer monster, to reinforce the message 1n a fun way The large orange stuffed
toy was found in our sewers at Peacehaven and became a campaign mascot He has his own Twitter account
to spread important Pain in the Drain news

Most sewer blockages are caused by items that should not be put down sinks or tollets such as wet wipes,
nappies and cooking fat During the first half of the year alone we cleared more than 6,000 tonnes of debnis
from our sewer network — the equivalent in weight of 2,000 hippos

ConnectRight

We continued our partnership with other water companes and the Enwironment Agency on the ConnectRight
campaign The campaign highlights the nisk of pollution when sewers are wrongly connected to the surface
water network, which 1s designed to carry only clean rainwater directly to rivers and the sea

ConnactRight has a website, www cannectright org uk, which gives customers guidance on how to check for
misconnections It carnes information and advice on how to rectify problems and gives links to plumbers
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Services

A constant supply of high-quality drinking water

Water quality

QOverall dnnking water quality index 99 97% 99.97% 99 94%
Disinfection control index 99 99% 99.98% 100%

Process control index 99 97% 99.94% 99 96%
Taste and odour sample pass rate - 99.98% 99 81%

Our water quality performance in 2014 was our best for four years

We achieved an overall rating of 99 97 per cent, which 1s among the best levels of compliance in the industry
This 1s excellent news for our customers who expect a constant supply of the highest-quaity water from their
taps

Wae carnied out more than 222,000 tests of water quality to meet the requirements of the Dnnking Water
Inspectorate In addition, we conducted another 216,000 tests to measure samples aganst our own standards,
which are more stringent than those set by our regulator Combined, this 1s more than 1,000 separate tests
every day to ensure our customers’ dnnking water supply 1s wholesome

Taste and odour

The number of samples that passed our stringent tests regarding taste and odour improved significantly this
year following the investment in new treatment facilites at our water suppty works in Hastings Our scores rose
from 99 81 per cent to 99 98 per cent

We have other investments planned which wilt further protect the water we provide to our customers These
include

Additional treatment systems mn Hastings to protect dnnking water against pesticides

New systems to remove nitrate from water sources in Sussex and Kent

Working in partnership with others, including farmers, to try to reduce the level of pesticides and
rutrates enterning some of the rnivers and aquifers from which we abstract

We achieved a near-perfect performance in the disinfection control index rating, a measure of the effectiveness
of disinfection at our treatment works Our 2014 rating of 99 98 per cent was marginally down on the previous
year's 100 per cent success due to a few single detections of bacteria at some of our works
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Water supply
Performance water non-infrastructure Stable Stable Stable
Performance water infrastructure Stable Stable Stable
Distribution maintenance index (2014 calendar year) 99 96% 99.96% 99 94%
Security of supply index (critical penod) 100 100 100
Secunity of supply iIndex (annual average) 100 100 100

it was another successful year durning which we continued to drive down consumption Thes allowed us to keep
abstraction levels at a similar low to those of the early 1970s, despite the poputation increase over the past 40
years

Our universal metering programme entered its final stages and conttnued to surpass the benefits we had
anticipated A major study by economists at Southampton University found the initial impact of our programme
on consumption has been significant, with our customers using, on average, 16 5 per cent less water, vastly
better than the national average of ten per cent We are working hard to help customers sustain these savings

We are the first company in the country to develop a universal metenng programme to install water meters for
almost 90 per cent of our customers as part of our long-term work to secure water resources for the future

The number of meters fitted as part of the programme and in use reached 392,061 in the past year The
programme Is due to be completed in 2015 and by then we expect more than 20 million Iitres of water to be
saved each day thanks to customers being more water efficient At the start of the programme in 2010-11, the
average consumption was 154 litres per person, per day By the end of 201415, it had dropped to 135 Iitres.
Thus reduction of 19 litres per person, per day would be enough to fill 12 Olympic-sized swimming pools

Thanks to our iInvestment and strategic planmng, water resources across our region remained i a healthy
position with no restrictions in place and none expected

In September, our Water Resources Management Plan was approved by Defra The plan sets out how we
intend to secure healthy, rehiable drinking water supplies for homes and businesses from 2015 to 2040 It was
developed using an innovative modelling technique to help us plan for the more severe droughts of the future
and was the cu!mination of more than two years' engagement with customers and stakeholders

Burst mains

We maintained a stable performance on burst mains, recording 1,770 which was consistent with our target of
1,901 bursts per year

However, we put in a very strong performance regarding the average time customers were without water
because of bursts — the figure this year was about six minutes 1t was our best result in the five years of AMPS5,
significantly better than the AMP target of 18 minutes and well down on the 11 minutes we averaged in 2013—
14

Dunng the year we completed our five-year water mains reptacement programme, bringing the total to some
250 kilometres of new mains This work brings significant long-term benefits to customers in terms of a
reduction in the number of bursis

We also mantained our good performance on low water pressure We manage pressure in our network
because If it 1s too high, it can cause burst mains and increase leakage However, we have a duty to customers
to maintain a certain pressure so they can use their appliances easity Once again, we kept the number of
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to mamntain a certain pressure so they can use their appliances easily Once agan, we kept the number of
households experiencing low water pressure down Duning the year just 254 properties expenienced low
pressure

Leakage
2013-14
Lezkage (milion litres of water per day) 88 82 85

We continued to lead the UK water sector on leakage control, achieving a level of 82 million itres of water per
day and beating our target of 88 million litres

Last year we had the lowest leakage level of any of the water and sewerage companias based on the
percentage lost from total supply Our performance was 24 per cent better than the average for these
companies

For the fourth year running, we beat the leakage levels set by Ofwat, even during the key winter pernod

Our excellent performance was thanks to hard work by our leakage teams, who worked around the clock to find
and reparir leaks on our network of water mains, which exceeds 13,700km We repaired some 21,500 leaks,
more than 14,500 of which were found by the leakage teams

The effort was supported by our new water meters which automatically detect leaks 1n customers’ pipes This
year, leaks were found in 1,519 properties where meters were installed In many cases, free repairs were
carned out
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Removing wastewater effectively

2014-15 2013-14
Target Achieved |  Achieved
Performance wastewater infrastructure Stable Stable Detenorating
Internal flooding (number of properties) 235 283 389
Properties on flood register 276 252 363

Note - Senmceability performance for wastewater infrastructure in 2013—14 was self-assessed by the Board as stabie and reported as such
in our Annual Report for 2013-14 Ofwat, in its final detarmination, assessed performance as detenorating, which 1s the view reflected in

the table above
Our multi-miihon pound investment in our wastewater assets proved its worth duning the year

Despite many parts of the region having high groundwater levels for the third year running, there was
significantly less impact on our customers High groundwater can affect service to customers if it infiltrates the
sewer network, which 1s more likely duning prolonged heavy rainfall This year we had only two tankers and one
pump i use to remove excess wastewater from sewers inundated with groundwater compared with 40 tankers

in the winter of 2012-13 when levels were similar

Our customers saw the benefits of our carefully targeted maintenance programme We spent more than
£40 millson on our pumping stations, manholes and sewers and, as a result, there was a reduction of 27 per
cent (106 properties) in flooding from sewers inside homes and businesses and in customers’ gardens

Flood protection

We used our experniences from the previous challenging winter to develop robust contingency plans to deal with
groundwater flooding

Duning the year we delivered the latest phase of our £12 million programme to survey and seal sewers across
our region, preventing rnsing groundwater, river and surface water from forcing its way into our pipework

Despite a wetter than usual winter, our investment in the sewer network meant that we only needed to
overpump in one of the 60 towns and villages affected by groundwater flooding the previous year

We became the first company in the UK to develop dedicated infiltration reduction plans for the areas worst
affected by groundwater flooding These plans set out the local strateqies for effective management of
groundwater infiltration of the sewers and what we are doing to reduce it

in addihion, we continued Investment to improve the relability and resiience of our wastewater network Our
work included the refurtishment of 142 pumping stations and renovation or replacement of sewers, notably a
£15 million project to reline chalk tunnels in Ramsgate

We continued to work in partnership with the Environment Agency and local authorties in our area to protect
homes and businesses from flooding Though we are not a flood relief agency, we believe this mulh-agency

approach 1s the best way to solve flooding problems in the worst-hit areas We worked with all the lead flood
authorities in our region and contributed to these strategies

Investment also continued In long-term initatives to mitigate sewer flooding, including a £20 million flood
alleviation scheme in Portsmouth to divert rainwater away from some of the city’s sewers
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A significant amount of rainwater — more than 6,000 litres per second - which would normally go into the
existing sewers I1s now diverted straight to the sea through surface water outfalls, easing the pressure on the
sewers dunng storms and greatly reducing the nisk of sewer flooding

This scheme was part of wider Investment in our wastewater assets in Portsmouth where, to date, we have
spent more than £70 milion to improve the resilence of the network and reduce the nisk of sewer flooding for
our customers

Across our region, we were able to remove 111 properties from the At Risk Flood Register This represents a
reduction of 31 per cent in the number of properties on the register at the start of the year

Ground-breaking mobile biological treatment tanks we developed to minimise the impact of the wettest winter
on record won top honours at the Institute of Water regional innovation awards

We designed the innovative tanks, a UK first, to treat wastewater pumped out of flooded sewers to a much
higher quality than could previously be achieved on site, keeping environmental impact to a minimum The
tanks mean much higher volumes of wastewater can be removed from overloaded sewers — 20 Iitres per
second compared with two htres a second by tanker

Preventing smells

Tackling smells 1s always a pnonty for us and long-term preventon work continues to pay off

We received fewer complaints about smells during the year, 359 compared with 472 1n 2013 This continues a
long-term trend in which complaints about smells have dropped by more than half in the past ten years We
have made a commitment in our Business Plan to reduce the figure by a further five per cent in the next five
years

During this five-year peniod, we completed four large schemes to significantly reduce smells from our Aylesford,
Goddards Green, Paddock Wood and Peel Common wastewater treatment works, a total investment of some
£10 milhon The schemes reduced the number of complaints about these works dramatically — in Aylesford’s
case to nil

We worked hard to prevent smells from all our 365 wastewater treatment works and 2,375 pumping stations
and during 2014—15 we spent In excess of £500,000 on planned and reactive maintenance to keep complamnts
as low as possible

When we needed to carry out essential maintenance at sites close to properties, we wrote to residents to warn
them about the possibility of smells for short penods In all cases we react to complaints as quickly as possibie
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Environment

Looking after the environment

Our relationship with the environment 1s a vital element of our business Ensuring we act in a responsible,
sustamnable way I1s an essential part of how we work

Bathing water quality

In 2014, every beach in our region once again met European standards for bathing water quality All 83 bathing
waters achieved the European ‘'mandatory’ standard duning weekly samphbng carrnied out by the Environment
Agency between May and September Eighty per cent also passed the 'guideline’ standard, which 1s 20 times
tighter

This was the last year bathing waters will be assessed aganst the standards detailed in the onginal 1975
Bathing Water Directive A revised Bathing Water Directive came fully into force on 24 March 2015 which sets
out more stringent standards and the 2015 bathing season will be the first where compliance 1s assessed
against these The new classificattons are excellent, good, sufficient or poor Our customers have told us high-
quality bathing water 1s extremely important to them and we have promised a 15 per cent increase In the
number of beaches with ‘excellent’ bathing water quahty by 2020

Bathing waters around the UK initially predicted to be at nsk of non-compliance with the new, tighter standards
include Hastings and we have been working in partnership with the Environment Agency, Hastings Borough
Council and other stakeholders to improve the water quality there A significant programme of work is in
progress to ensure our infrastructure does not compromise bathing water quality at Hastings in the forthcoming
bathing season We have spent £3 million on this, part of some £10 million worth of investment in Hastings to
address i1ssues with the sewerage system and 1dentify misconnections

During 2014, we continued to take part in a voluntary tnal to alert local authonty beach managers when we
release storm water from combined sewer overflows (CSOs) during heavy rain CSOs are sometmes needed
because the water would otherwise back up in our sewers and flood customers’ homes and gardens The alenrts
allow beach managers to publicise the information for beach users We are providing aleris for 22 beaches as
part of the Cleaner Seas Forum Bathing Water Trials, which are led by the Government The tnals are in
preparation for the new Bathing Water Directive and its higher quality standards

The quality of bathing water can be affected by factors outside our controf such as pollution in water running off
roads and land or sewers wrongly connected to drains carrying ramwater However, our environmental
improvement programmes, including efforts to meet tighter discharge standards at our wastewater treatment
works, continue to benefit the water along our coastiine

Preventing pollution

267 292 320

All pollution incidents {(wastewater), Category 1-3

Senous pollution incidents (wastewater), 7 12 g
Category 1-2
Environmental Discharge permit comphance 98 6% 99.0% 95 9%
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We have seen another strong improvement in pollution performance, with the number of incidents falling to 292
from 320 1n 2013 Of these, 12 were sernous

Pollutions are monitored on a calendar year basis One third of our pollution incidents in 2014 happened In the
first three months of the year because of the severe weather — it was the wettest winter on record with raintall in
southern England more than 200 per cent above the long-term average

In spite of these extreme conditions, we recorded 292 wastewater pollution incidents, missing our target of 267
but sl 28 lower than the previous year This was thanks to continued efforts by our Operations teams In
improving the sewerage network and, in particular, our pumping stations

Pollution inctdents for the first three months of 2015 were nearly 60 per cent fewer than & year previously,
reflecting both the level of improvement 1n the business and the more benign weather

Wastewater treatment

Target Achieved Achieved

Performance wastewater non-infrastructure Stable Stable Deteriorating

Note - Serviceability performance for wastewater non-mnfrastructure in 2013-14 was self-assessed by the Board as stable and reported as
such in our Annual Report for 2013—-14 Ofwat, in its final determination, assessad performance as detenorating, which is the view reflected
n the table above

We began the year stil feeling the effects of the 2013-14 winter's unprecedented torrential rain and storms yet,
desprte this, our wastewater compliance performance was strong We recorded our best performance for 15
years with only one wastewater treatment works not meeting the requirements — Lidsey in Sussex This beat
our target of four and was the result of focused operations and continued targeted investment Due to
insufficient samples being taken, we also had two other ‘technical’ fails, at Sittingbourne and Eastchurch, both
n Kent Even so we still achieved 99 per cent compliance with standards, our best performance for a number
of years and better than the industry average

The performance of our wastewater treatment works 1s critical to ensure the water we recycle to rivers, streams
and the sea s of the highest quality To this end, we spent more than £41 million to improve wastewater
treatment and more than £38 milicn on mamtenance

Several major schemes contnbuted to our best results since 1999

¢ Durning the year, our £13 million revamp of Ashford Wastewater Treatment Works in Kent was officially
opened by the town’s MP In a two-year scheme we expanded the works, upgraded filter beds and
Installed new treatment tanks and screens

e We also completed a £25 million improvement of Millbrook Wastewater Treatment Works in
Southampton, one of our largest schemes in the 2010 to 2015 investment penod A new treatment
tank, settlement tanks and nearly a mile of pipeline are bringing major environmental benehts and
helping protect the water quality of the Solent

* In September 2014, we began work on a £63 million redevelopment of Woolston Wastewater
Treatment Works, also in Southampton This scheme will ensure treated wastewater leaving the site
meets stnngent new standards set by the Environment Agency

« We continued our improvements at East Worthing Wastewater Treatment Works where we are
spending almost £20 millton In January, we instalied a £200,000, ten-tonne storm pump which s
capable of pumping 2,500 litres of water every second and will be used to protect homes and
businesses from flooding during storms
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Duning the wastewater process, sludge 1s produced This 1s solid matter which 1s treated and usually recycled to
the environment — we work with farmers who use it as a source of feriliser We produce about 240,000 tonnes
annually and sometimes it 1s necessary to send 1t to landfill, which 1s costly and means we lose the nutnent
benefit of sludge applied to land

Last year we sent 808 tonnes of sludge to landfill This year, for the first tme, we did not need to dispose of any
in this way

Qur success In reducing this to zero In 2014—15 was thanks to improved reliability of our sludge treatment
centres and the operational performance by our contractor MTS

We had similar success with grit and screenings, which 1s the debns removed from wastewater Investmentin a
new composting plant to treat our gnt and screening waste allowed all of it to be recycled to reclamation sites
rather than sent to tandfill

Water abstraction

We beat our already strong performance in water abstractron, taking even less water from the environment to
supply our customers than we did in the previous year

We abstracted 206,829 million itres in 2014—15, most of #t from underground aquifers and the rest from rivers
and reservoirs This figure 1s 3,009 million Iitres less than in 2013—14, which was already the lowest since the
water industry was privatised in 1989

This record low 1s thanks to customers using Jess water as a result of our metering and water-efficiency
programmes and to our contnued efforts to keep leakage below our target

Conservation

Carnng for the environment 1s important to us and to our customers, who told us 1t was one of therr top priorities
Our efforts to protect the environment were recognised this year when we once again achieved 1SO 14001

This internationally recognised standard for effective environmental management lasts three years We have
held 1t since 2008 and, in May 2014, we underwent a full recertification audit with inspectors visiting seven sites
over six days to check our performance in environmental matters such as managing waste, avoiding polluton
and maimntaining effluent qualty

Sites of Special Scientific Interest

As a large landowner in the South East, we own ten Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSis) of about one
hectare or more plus many smaller sites

We have been compiling conservation management plans for the ten bigger sites with the am of winming a
‘favourable condiion’ rating for them from Natural England This demonstrates they are being adequately
conserved and 1s the highest rating for an SSSI One of them, Southampton Common, has already been
approved

Some of the sites offer protection to rare plants and animals, have a unique geology or are important wildlife
habitats

Biocdiversaty

We have been tackling mvasive plant spectes such as Himalayan balsam at sites across our region We
needed 1o stop these weeds affecting the vanety of plant and arimals found there and keep them from
spreading to neighbouring land This was the first year of an imtial three-year eradication and control
programme at 17 important sites including Brede Water Supply Works, Powdermill Reservoir, Ashford Water
Treatment Works and Bewl Water
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We also

« Continued to manage Groombridge Lagoons where we have important populations of rare animals,
protected species such as great crested newts, grass snakes and adders and a healthy colony of frogs
and toads

« Completed surveys of Ringmer Lagoons and found significant numbers of great crested newts and
grass snakes and confirmed the presence of water shrew, a protected mammal

« Confirmed for the first ime the presence of the rare and protected hazel dormouse at Brede Lagoons

Confirmation of these species at these three East Sussex sites was important for conservatton plans that will
protect and enhance important wildiife habitats on our land

We have also continued orchid conservation at many of our siles and adopted sympathetc management
practices to protect the flower

Many of our staff volunteenng days this year were spent helping conservation projects, including clearng
Himalayan balsam from the RSPB's Pulborough Brooks nature reserve in West Sussex Others involved
cleaning beaches in Southampton, Brighton, Worthing and Margate and helping with gardening projects, for
example at Chestnut Tree House children’s hospice near Arundel
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Climate change

Carbon performance

2013-14
Target Achieved Target Achieved
(restated)
Greenhouse gas emissions — ktCO2e 386 281 377 293
KgCO2e per person supphed with treated - 28.6 - 286
water
KgCC2e per person supplied with - 41 - 44

wastewater services
Note - The pnor year figures have been restated to reflect annual changes in carbon reporting and emission factors

Woe are proud of our continued excellent work to measure, manage and improve our carbon efficiency We are
a Carbon Trust Standard accredited company, which 1$ recognition of our excellence in monitoring and
managing our carbon emissions

Our dnve to be more efficient in the production and use of power helped us achieve a reduction in greenhouse
gases from our operations

During the year we produced carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases equivalent to 281 kilotonnes of
carbon dioxide These emisstons result from our consumption of gnd electricity and natural gas, our transport
and from our wastewater and sludge treatment processes There was a reducton of four per cent on 2013-14
reflecting our increased generation and use of liogas for renewable energy

This success was also helped by the better weather We did not expenience the heavy rainfall and flooding of
the previous year which had an impact on power consumption from pumping and treating hugh levels of storm
water

We worked hard in 2014—15 to develop the most economic way to reduce carbon emissions during the coming
five-year period This included studying asset efficiency and priontising those assets that need to be
refurbished or replaced

We also focused on renewable energy generation Increased capacity for generating renewable energy has
contributed to emitting lower levels of greenhouse gases Our renewable energy represents more than 15 per
cent of the velume of power we consume and it 1s a customer promise to mamntamn this duning 2015-20, despite
requirements for enhanced treatment standards which use more energy We also considered new renewable
energy opportunities such as solar and wind energy and how we will use these in the coming five years

Low carbon design

Our in-house engineering team is challenged with reducing the use of matenals that produce high levels of
greenhouse gases when they are manufactured This can be achieved by using mnovative design and it means
we are responsibly addressing greenhouse gas emissions for the whole life of our engineering assets

Managing energy costs

We use large volumes of power and our specialist energy team ensures we buy it at the best value by
monitoring the energy markets It also seeks new cost-effective ways to buy and generate power

Our energy team monitors power performance at all our sites to ensure effictency and meet performance
targets We are investigating methods of achieving greater insight into energy performance, tor example sub-
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metering, which 1s monitoring consumption of individual pieces of equipment, energy auditing, energy modelling
and analysis dashboards These tools will allow our operational teams to become increasingly energy efficient
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About us

Our workplace

Health and safety

We continued to lead the industry with our excellent health and safety performance and achieved one of the
lowest numbers of reportable iInjunes in our history

Qur total of 0 24 reportable injunes per 100 full-time employees/contractors beat our target of 0 35 and was the
result of commitment and focus on safety Qur employee-only total was 0 19, beating the industry average
(based on avatable data) of 0 31

For the 16" consecutive year, we achieved the Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents gold award and
were again presented with an Order of Distinction, the first water company to receive such an accolade twice

Our Aim For Zero Injunies campaign played a vital part in our exemplary performance Its imttatives included a
two-day health and safety conference for more than 500 staff and contractors, which 1s now an annual event

We continued our campaign to encourage staff to report hazards at work, donating £2 to charity for each one
This added up to more than £6,000 for the Air Ambulance Trusts in our region

This year we increased the focus on health and wellbeing We worked closely with our contractors and together
produced our first Wellbeing Promise, which states clear joint aims for staff wellbeing

Durning the year we

» Surveyed our staff to establish their key concerns We had more than 700 responses and based our
programme on the results, focusing on healthy eating and weight loss, stress and fitness

« Ran two wellbetng weeks attended by hundreds of staff and contractors One was run by the Briish
Heart Foundation and raised awareness of health 1ssues, the other offered practical advice on finding
help locally

» Toured our sites with mobile health monitoring kiosks which allowed all staff to measure information
such as their BMI and blood pressure

« Had more than 2,000 staff and supply chain pariners take part in our pedometer challenge to see how
many steps they were taking each week

« Worked with the Amateur Swimming Association to promote swimming among adults, complementing
our long-running Learn to Swim programme for children

Our people

We directly employed 2,125 people in Kent, Sussex, Hampshire and the Isle of Wight as of 31 March 2015 and
many more through our suppliers This included more than 400 in our UK-based contact centres

We actively promote diversity among our workforce and are pleased that during the year the number of women
on our Board and Executive Management Team increased significantly We now have three women directors
on the ten-strong EMT Also, nearly 40 per cent of our business lead roles are now filled by women, which is
above the national average of 33 per cent
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People development

We are committed to expanding and building on our workforce’s skills and expenence and this year we
continued to implement our Leadership Development Roadmap, an inttiative to develop talented employees In
addition, 34 first-hne managers completed the Leaders For Tomorrow scheme and 27 middle managers
completed the Inspired Leader Programme We also introduced an induction programme specifically for new
managers

Sixty-four people took part in cur Employee Development Programme, a five-day residential course which
allows some of our most talented employees to put forward therr business ideas This year, four of the
suggested projects were sponsored by the Executive Management Team and pursued

In our Operations team, eight apprentices graduated from our award-winning water and wastewater operations,
mechanical, electrical and ICA (instrumentation control and automation} apprenticeships programme In
addition, we continued to increase the knowledge of our operators In wastewater processes and 43 of them
completed an NVQ Level 2 in wastewater operations

We also delivered our Ambassador Programme to Operations staff — 153 employees attended during the year
This scheme prowvides training 1in customer service skills and continues to contribute significantly to our
customer service improvements in Operations

Our iInihative to iImprove processes across the business resulted in a further 28 people enrolling in the Business
Improvement Techniques NVQ, which is recognised as best practice in the UK

We continued our commitment to develop employees’ potential dunng the year, with four talent pools initiated
and sponsored by the Executive Management Team We held a Skills Journey workshop with 78 employees to
identify their development needs to further their careers This culminated in a personal development plan for
each of them

Working with a leading training provider, we developed a new Level 4 qualification in water and wastewater
management This 1s now being used across the industry Five of our operational graduates are more than
halfway through the 18-month diploma course, which has been incorporated mto our Graduate Development
programme We are working with the provider and universities to develop a Level 5 qualification, which 1s
degree level

We also had coaching, mentoring and secondments along with speaking opportunities at industry conferences
including the Institute of Water's summer school

Employee engagement

During the year we continued to focus on improving employee engagement and becoming an employer of
choice We want to make Southern Water a better place to work and aim to achieve ‘Ones to watch’ status in
The Sunday Times’ 100 Best Companies to Work For annual survey

We had an excellent response rate to our own annual engagement survey this year with 77 per cent of the
workforce having their say, up five per cent on the previous year The results were largely posiive Our biggest
directorate, Operations, showed a significant increase in its overall engagement score and its members
provided more than 1,000 wntten comments that descnbed why they considered Southern Water a good place
to work

In response to feedback from the engagement survey we introduced a development process for managers
focusing on how they motivate, care for, consider and converse with their teams

Once again we held our Staff Thanks And Recognition (STAR) awards and received more than 300
nominations for 15 honours Staff are nominated by their colleagues and the award categones align with the
company’s pnnciples customers first, everyone matters, always improving, local pride, taking ownership and
succeeding together
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Our suppliers

This has been an important year dunng which we put in place major changes in the way we work with our
suppliers

Led by our new Procurement Director, we focused on establishing our supply chain for the next five-year
period The new appotntment emphasised the important role our supply chain plays 1n delivering our
commitments

Our aim was to become true parntners with our contractors and work collaboratively with them rather than them
simply providing us with a service The procurement team changed the way it works so it looks at managing the
whole contract from its inception to its end

Thus fresh approach means we have a much closer relationship with our supply chain and they work with us
rather than for us

We approach the next five-year perniod with confidence that together we will provide excelient services for our
customers and maintain our outstanding health and safety record
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Our community

Community and education

We pnde ourselves on being rooted in and contributing to the communities where our customers live and work
and we do so through a variety of intiatives

Qur efforts in the past year were recognised by the Business In The Community chanty, which uses a detailed
survey to measure compantes on their contributions in the community, workptace and marketplace We scored
an outstanding 98 per cent, surpassing our target of 90 per cent and, along with cne other company, beating all
the other utilities that took part We also heat most of the big household names including Marks & Spencer

l.earn t0 Swim

Our region includes 700 miles of coastline so helping children learn to swim 1s important to us  Our award-
winning Learn to Swim programme has been running for 23 years and in the past 12 months 1t helped another
25,000 youngsters secure this hfe-saving skill Former Olympic gold medallist Duncan Goodhew continued as a
scheme ambassador and in February he joined TV doctor Hilary Jones at our annual instructors' seminar
where they spoke about the benefits of swimming for health and wellbeing

Learn to Swirn now operates at 85 pools and clubs across the South East and seven of our staff volunteer as
co-ordinators They helped host our two annual achiever of the year events where nearly 50 youngsters were
honoured for their success and efforts in the pool

South and South East in Bloom

Once again we sponsored the annual Scuth and South East in Bloom competition and it was a record year with
400 entnies from across our regton, inciuding 131 in the Blooming Schools section

Our awards ceremony at Brighton and Hove Albion’s Amencan Express Stadium was hosted by cetebnty
gardeners Jim Buttress and Chris Collins Cur winners included public parks, a nature reserve and a memonial
garden Winners were judged on therr horticulture and gardening, environmental responsibility and community
participation

Education programmes

We are committed to educating youngsters about how to use water wisely and our mume show The Drips
continued to spread the word In an entertaining way It wisited 29 schools and reached more than 4,400
children, with additional messages this year around flushing enly the three Ps — pee, poo and paper More than
350 youngsters attended a special performance at Bnghtorn's Theatre Royal in July

In addition we

« Devised a 45-minute interactive presentation called Sewerwise about the history of the sewerage and
wastewater systems which complements our established Waterwise talks about water efficiency
Dunng the year our team of volunteer community speakers gave nearly 100 talks to more than 4,600
children and adulls

» Worked in partnership with Hampshire Wildlife Trust, which manages our Testwood Lakes reserve In
Hampshire We donated interactive education matenals so it could include water efficiency and
wastewater messages to visiting school groups

= Continued our Aqua Innovation competition which encourages secondary school pupils to come up
with water-saving ideas and campaigns Ten schools from Kent, Sussex and Hampshire took part and
2014—15's winner was The St Leonards Academy in East Sussex

» Supported the STEM ambassadors’ programme Qur staff volunteered to go into schools to help
engage puplls in science, technology, engineenng and maths We helped run ten STEM days for 400
pupils across Sussex and Kent Students worked with our team to devise a method of separating non-
disposable matenals from liquid - reflecting our Pain in the Drain initiative
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Community campaigns

Other community campaigns included our Sporting Chance programme, which engaged more than 6,200
young people through football and cricket We worked with Gilingham Football Ciub in Kent to help children in
Medway pnmary schools with bastc iterary and number skills while putting over our key messages in fun,
accessible ways We linked up with Kent Crnicket Club to deliver Pain in the Drain messages to schools and
with Portsmouth FC and Sussex County Cncket Club to run water-efficiency and Sewerwise workshops for
students

Our Water Café hit the road dunng the summer, visiting 22 community events where we spoke to more than
12,000 people about water and wastewater We gave away advice terature and water-saving devices such as
save-a-flush bags, shower timers and fat traps and funnels for used cooking fat and ol

Charity support

We continued our long-standing tradition of giving back to communrbes in our area through charity work and
fundraising A record number of staff volunteenng days and a focus on the centenary of the outbreak of the
First World War made it a memorable year during which we distnbuted a quarter of a million pounds to good
causes

Our staff picked the organisations to benefit and they included national chanties such as WaterAid and
Macmillan Cancer Support They also chose regional chanties such as Chestnut Tree House children’'s hospice
in West Sussex, The Rainbow Centre in Hampshire for children with cerebral palsy, Air Ambulance Trusts In
Kent, Sussex, Hampshire and the Isle of Wight and Chailey Hentage School in Sussex for youngsters with
complex needs

Annual events

The three biggest chanty events of the year were our annual ball, golf day and race day The ‘winter
wonderland’ ball raised £71,000 for WaterAid, Macmillan and the Air Ambulance while our golf day brought In
another £10,500 for WaterAid Our military-themed race day at Fontwell in West Sussex raised £54,000 for the
Queen Alexandra Hospital Home in Worthing, which cares for disabled ex-servicemen and women It was the
region’s biggest event marking 10C years since the Great War broke out and guests included past and present
members of the Armed Forces

Staff took part in all kinds of other fundraisers including a sponsored bike nde across the South Downs, Santa
Suit Day and the WaterAid 200 Mountain Challenge In total, we helped raise more than £100,000 for WaterAid
dunng the year

For the second year running, each of our directorates chose its own charity to support and the company
matched the first £1,000 they raised The result was more than £15,000 donated to causes including the
Teenage Cancer Trust, The Royal Marsden, Heart of Kent Hospice, The Martlets Hospice in Hove, Mane Cune
and Fernng Country Centre In West Sussex, which offers training and work experience for people with learning
difficulties

We also made smaller donations totalliing £12,000 through our Community Chest programme The money went
to schools, residents’ groups and other organisations for projects related to aspects of our business, for
example water efficiency
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Volunteering

Our staff are allowed two days’ paid leave every year to work for causes close to their hearts The past 12
months were a record breaker with more than 600 days spent helping worthy projects ranging from cleanng a
woodland garden for disabled children to picking up litter Some staff used their days for raising funds through
sponsored activities such as skydives and cycle ndes We set another record when 54 members of one team —
our largest group to date — gave a day's labour to a country centre which works with adults with learning
disabilittes

Access and recreation

Our region includes many beaches, reservoirs and important natural habitats, many of which attract thousands
of visitors

We own four reservorrs — Darwell, Powdermill and Weir Wood In East Sussex and Bewl Water on the
Kent/Sussex boundary — and they all offer outdoor activities such as fishing and salling Bewl 1s the biggest
stretch of open water in the South East and our largest reservoir Each year it atiracts an estimated 98,000
visitors who take part in windsurfing, salng, fishsng, cycling, walking and boat trips

We have a long-standing partnership with the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust which manages our
Testwood Lakes site, near Southampton, on our behalf It was previously used for extracting gravel but 1s now
a 130-acre nature reserve This year the trust has been butlding a small-scale wetland complex there for
Insects such as dragonflies and damselfies The area s also important for birds, including wildfowl and waders

Testwood Lakes has a purpose-built education centre and more than 3,800 children, many of them on school
vistts, benefited from environmental activihes there during 2014—15 These include Bronze Age recreation

days, which use the wealth of archaeological finds and social history stories from the area to immerse the
children in day-to-day Ife 3,500 years ago The education team has also been promoting forest school activities
at the site These lessons are based on a Scandinavian approach to outdoor teaching and allow youngsters to
develop therr own way of completng tasks

Other visitor attractions in our region include the historic steam pumping engines at our water treatment works
in Brede, East Sussex, which are cared for and dispiayed by Brede Steam Engine Society

Sewer tours

Our tours of the Victonian sewer network in Brighton remamed highly popular and dunng the year we
accompanied more than 1,600 visitors underground Guests included the Orchestra of the Age of
Enhghtenment, who took their baroque instruments with them, and music hall singer-turmed-rapper Ida Barr

We used the tours to give out information and advice about our Pain in the Drain campaign The sewers were
also the setting for a flmed appearance by our singing sewermen perforring their latest Chnistmas carol, which
reinforced the campargn message
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Financial performance

Financial performance
Accounting policies
The accounting policies of the company, which are consistent with the pnor year, are set out on pages 93 to 97

Profit and loss account

Qur profit and loss account 1s summansed in Table 1 below

Table 1 Years ended 31 March

2015 2014

£m £m
Turnover 828.6 806 2 28
Operating costs before exceptional items (245.5) (246 5) {0.4)
Depreciation, net of amortisation (257.4) (234 9) g6
Cther income 0.2 02 -
Operating profit before exceptional items 325.9 3250 o3
Exceptional item 24 (18 8) -
Operating profit 3283 306 2 72
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 1.3 05 160 0
Net interest (125 7) (167 2} (24 8)
Profit before tax 203.9 1395 46 2
Tax (36 7) 303 -
Profit after tax 167.2 169 8 (15)

Turnover increased by 2 8 per cent to £828 6 million (2013—14 £806 2 milion) principally because of the
average tanff increase on metered and unmetered income of 2 5 per cent This increase was applred from 1
Apni 2014 and was based on the annual RPI of 2 6 per cent at November 2013 offset by a negative K factor
(price hmit) of O 1 per cent

Operating costs before exceptional items decreased by 0 4 per cent to £245 5 million (2013-14 £246 5 milhon)
and the major reasons for this movement of £0 9 milhen are descrnibed below and in Table 2

Following the completion of our £300 milklon scheme at Peacehaven, operating costs are now being incurred
These amounted to £3 3 million in 2014-15 (2013—14 £1 6 milion), the iIncrease over the prior year reflechng
the fact that this was the first full year of operation of the site

Overall efficiencies totalling £11 4 milion have been achieved through business process reviews, contract
renegottatons and a focus on matntaining ttght budgetary controls These include initiatives to reduce power
consumption and increase our energy generation through the use of Combined Heat and Power (CHP) plants
at our treatment works Reducing the amount of chemicals we use and reducing the work 1ssued to external
contractors through more efficient use of our own internal resources
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Table 2
Increase/(decrease) in operating costs £m

Inflatron 59
Increased bad debt charge (including inflation £0 6m) 22
Peacehaven — operating costs of new site 17
Power efficiencies (07)
Contract renegotiations (19)
Process improvements (88)
Other 07
Movement in operating costs (0.9)

Depreciation increased by 9 6 per cent to £257 4 million (2013—-14 £234 9 million) as a result of the continuing
significant capital investment programme This included the first full year of depreciation on our new
wastewater treatment works at Peacehaven, which increased the annual charge for this scheme by £5 4

milicn As we reached the end of our five-year capitat Investment programme a large number of schemes were
commissioned during the year, adding a further £14 8 million to the depreciation charge [n additron, there was
an increase In the infrastructure renewal charge of £1 9 million, reflecting the greater level of capital
expenditure on private sewers

Operating profit before exceptional items for 2014—15 increased to £325 9 milion (2013-14 £325 0 million), a
0 3 per cent improvement as a resuit of the factors set out above

Duning the pertod from December 2013 to February 2014, the South of England expenenced a sernes of storms
and heavy rainfall The areas most affected included Hampshire, Sussex and Kent, which all fall within our
operational area As a result of this exceptional weather, significant additional costs were incurred during 2013—
14 for pumping and tankering to alleviate the flooding and to ensure we continuied to serve our customers
These costs were reported in the accounts for 2013—14 as an exceptional item of £18 8 milion Dunng 2014—
15 we recewved insurance proceeds totaling £2 4 million in relation to this event and these are recorded as an
exceptional item 1n the results tor this year

The operating profit for 2014—-15 increased to £328 3 million (2013—14 £306 2 million), reflecting the impact of
the exceptional costs on our results from last year

The profit on disposal of fixed assets of £1 3 milion (2013—14 £0 5 milhion) mainly relates to the sale of land
and butldings surplus to operational requirements

Net interest payable of £125 7 millon decreased by 24 8 per cent (2013—-14 £167 2 milion) This 1s largely
dnven by lower indexation on the inflation-linked bonds as a result of lower RP1in 2014~15, which accounted
for £23 6 million of the reduction and lower net interest payable of £16 3 million following the repayment of a
£250 milhon bond at March 2014

We have recognised a total tax charge to the profit and loss account of £36 7 milion (2013-14 £30 3 milion
credit) This differs from the charge that may be expected of £42 8 million, based on the profit before tax of
£203 9 milion and the current penod tax rate of 21 per cent, as described 1 note 8, and 1s primarily the result
of the company paying for tax losses of other group companies at the reduced rate of ten pence in the pound
The current tax charge for the penod 1s also reduced by £25 2 million largely as a result of capital allowances
ansing from our capital investment programme

The profit after taxation for the year amounted to £167 2 mithon (2013-14 £169 8 million)
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Cash flow statement

Qur cash flow statement 1s summansed in Table 3 below

Years ended 31 March

Net cash inflow from operating activities 544.4 5433
Net cash outflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance (81.8) {90 4)
Taxation (36.9) (22 9)

Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (348.6) (382 0)
Recelpt of grants and contributions 12.3 99

Sale of tangible assets 0.3 03

Movement on loan to subsidiary {1.7) (159)
Net cash outftow for capital expenditure and financial investment (337.7) (3877)
Equity dividends paid {44.9) (43 8)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing 43.1 (15)
Net cash outflow from financing {5.1) 29)
Increase/(decrease) in net cash 38.0 (4 4)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 1s broadly in ine with last year, increasing marginally to £544 4 mithon
for 2014-15 from £543 3 milhon in 2013-14 The impact of the improvement in operating performance in 2014-
15 1s masked by the tming of payments associated with the exceptional weather experienced at the end of the
last financial year, a one-off benefit in 2013—14 ansing from a change in payment terms for maintenance
contracts and a reduction in the level of unmeasured receipts i advance as we have switched more customers
to a metered supply

The net cash outflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance decreased to £81 8 milhion for 2014~
15 from £90 4 mullion in 2013—14 This decrease results from a reduction of net interest payable following the
repaymant of a £250 0 milion bond 1in March 2014 offset by additional interest payable, which anses from the
impact of inflation on the underhying nominal values of a number of our loans

In total, tax payments of £36 9 milhion were made dunng 2014—-15 (2013—-14 £22 9 milhon) These relate to
payments for group rehef for taxable losses across the Greensands group Of this, a payment of £12 0 million
(2013-14 £13 1 million) was made to Southern Water Services Group (SWSG) This, together with the interim
dividend of £44 9 million (2013—14 £43 8 million), 1s offset by interest receved from SWSG of £56 9 millron
(2013-14 £56 9 milhon)
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The outflow of cash relating to the purchase of tangible fixed assets was £348 6 million (2013—14 £382 0
milion) The decrease in cash outflow results from the decrease n the overall capital programme during the
year as we came to the end of our five-year programme

Overall these resulted in a net cash inflow before financing in 2014—15 of £43 1 milhion (2013—14 outflow £1 5
miliion)

The net cash outflow from financing of £5 1 mitlion (2013-14 £2 9 million) relates to the repayment of accrued
indexation on some of our bonds

Balance sheet

Qur balance sheet 1Is summansed in Table 4 below

TFable 4 Years ended 31 March

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 4,483.0 44320
Investments 29.2 292
4,512.2 4,461 2
Current assels
Stocks 2.2 20
Debtors falling due within one year 216.8 198 0
Debtors falling due after more than one year 812.3 8123
Cash at bank and in hand 173.5 1355
1,204.8 1,147 8
Creditors falling due 1n one year {246.5) (300 8)
Net current assets 958.3 847 2
Creditors faling due after one year (3,872.7) (3,836 4)
Provisions for liabtities and charges {337.3) (314 7}
Grants and contnbutions 41.4) (43 8)
Pension deficit {89.9) (72 3)
Net assets 1,129.2 1,041 2
Capital and reserves 1,129.2 1,041 2

At the end of the year to 31 March 2015, we had fixed assets of £4,512 2 million (2013—14 £4,461 2 miion),
an increase of £51 0 miullion from March 2014 This increase largely results from capttal investment of £323 1
milion offset by depreciation of £260 3 million and grants and contributions of £11 8 milhon
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Debtors falling due within one year increased to £216 8 million (2013—-14 £198 0 milion) This increase largely
anses from our metering programme which results in customers being billed in arrears rather than in advance
and having an element of accrued income at the year end The impact of metenng accounted for £9 0 milhon of
the increase in the debtor balance with new connections £4 8 million and the effect of our tanff increase £5 4
million covening the rest

Creditors falling due within one year decreased to £246 5 milhon (2013—14 £300 6 milion) This reduction was
expected and results from lower capital expenditure in the year, which in turn reduced the level of capital
creditors at March 2015, the payment of accruals made at March 2014 for costs associated with the tlooding
events over the winter of 2013—14 and lower unmeasured receipts In advance as we have switched more
customers to a metered supply

As at 31 March 2015 creditors falling due after one year increased by £36 3 milion to £3,872 7 milion This
increase principaily resulted from RPI on inflation-linked bonds of £48 5 million

The net pension deficit increased in value to £89 9 million (2013—14 £72 3 million) following the latest actuanal
valuation, as described In note 22

Overall net assets increased from £1,041 2 mulion to £1,129 2 million
Dividend policy

We aim to deliver a sustainable long-term capital structure, taking into account the interests of all stakeholders
Our shareholders are long-term nvestors and fully support the strategy adopted

Our dividend policy 1s to propose dividends having given due consideration to the following financial and
performance critena

Assessment of headroom under debt covenants

Assessment of the impact on the company’s credit rating

Assessment of the liquidity position and ability to fulfil icence conditions
Assessment of key areas of business risk

Assessment of current year and cumulative distributable reserves

Directors’ duties under law and Ofwat-administered regulatory arrangements

O bwWwN =

Distnibution proposals submitted to the Board will also include an assessment of our performance against the
Business Plan, including expected performance over the balance of the reguilatory penod

Our dividend policy and the associated financial and performance criteria are intended to support the credit
ratings of the business and ensure continued access to diversified sources of finance

These tests are not apphed to the intenm dividends paid to SWSG as the dividend payment 1s instantly offset
by a corresponding interest receipt from SWSG

The shareholders continue to support the business and no other ordinary dividend was paid or declared in
relatton to 2014—15 (2013-14 nil) and no dividends were paid to the shareholders of our ultimate parent
company, Greensands Holdings Limited

Over the past five years, our shareholders have supported us in strengthening our financial position and in
dehivenng improved operational performance by adopting a flexible dividend policy This places us in a stronger
position for the start of the next five-year period to resume dividend payments from 2015-16
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Taxation

We manage our tax affairs in an open and transparent way and contnbute matenally to the Exchequer each
year

All companies within the Southern Water and wider Greensands groups are UK tax resident, ensuring that
each company Is subject to UK tax Tax planning I1s always aligned with our commercial and economic activity
This practice continues to be recognised by HMRC, which assesses us as a low-nsk company

Our rate of corporation tax against accounting profits — our effective tax rate —1s less than the statutory rate of
corporation tax published by HMRC because of differences in the way in which some tems of expenditure are
treated for accounting and tax legistaton This 1s especially the case with regard to capital investment
expenditure, where the UK taxation system recognises the benefit to the economy of investment in UK
infrastructure Since privatisation in 1989, the water industry has been required to make significant capital
Investment to iImprove environmental performance and resilience to drought and flooding, maintain existing
assets and, in particular for us, accommodate poputation growth 1n the South East Our taxable profits are
lower than our accounting profits as a result of our capital expenditure, with capital allowances being
recognised at a faster pace than the depreciation charge for our assets This has the effect of reducing the
amount of tax we pay, the benefit of which 1s passed to our customers through reduced bills

Another aspect of our significant capital investment programme s that we borrow money to finance our capital
investment The mterest associated with this borrowing 1s recognised as both an accounting and tax expense,
so reducing profit and further reducing the amount of tax we pay Again, the benefit of this 1s passed to our
customers through reduced bills

Our contributions to the Exchequer amounted to £60 5 milion These are explained below

» Business rates of £25 1 milion paid to local authornities (2013—-14 £24 4 million) and payments to the
Environment Agency of £8 4 million (2013-14 £8 2 milhion), which reduce profits chargeable to
corperation tax

« Employment taxes of £23 3 million (2013—-14 £21 5 million) paid to the Exchequer under PAYE (Pay As
You Earn) and National Insurance contrbutions

« Carbon Reduction Commitment of £3 7 million {2013-14 £3 0 million) levied on our power cost, which
reduces profits chargeable to corporation tax

Payments have also been made to other group companies of £36 9 million for tax losses surrendered to the
company Of these, £12 0 million was paid to SWSG and then repaid to us as interest, with the remawnder pad
to the Greensands financing companies

In addition, we will have paid a significant amount of indirect taxation, such as fuel excise duty relating to
transport costs and landfill tax in connection with the disposal of waste product from our wastewater treatment
processing

Financial KPls

Within our financial debt structure 1s a comprehensive set of covenanted financial ratos Of these, there are
two key ratios, namely the ratio of net debt to Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) and the ratio of adjusted net
cash income to net interest cost

The net debt to RCV ratio I1s calculated as short and long-term senior borrowtngs, less cash and short-term
deposits to the RCV (all values taken from our Regulatory Accounts) The RCV 1s set by Ofwat at each five-
year periodic review and reflects forecast growth in the asset base from capital investrment and inflation The
RCV can be adjusted at each perniodic review for relevant changes to the level of expenditure or performance
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during the five-year period The ratio of senior debt to RCV s targeted to be maintained at around 80 per cent,
comfortably within our debt covenants

Senior adjusted cash interest cover (measured as net cash inflow from operating activities less current cost
depreciation and the infrastructure renewals charge tc senior debt interest) 1s targeted to be maintained above
1 1 times to meet covenanted levels

Net debt / RCV

201112 performance

2012-13 performance

2013-14 performance

2014-15 performance

Covenanted lock-up level

Credit rating
Standard & Poor's

Fitch

Mcody's

Class A debt A-
Class B debt BBB

Class A debt A-
Class B debt BBB

Class A debt Baat
Class B debt Ba1

Yo
81
79
78
78

<85

Senior adjusted cash interest cover

2011-12 performance
2012-13 performance
2013-14 performance
2014-15 performance

Mirumum target tngger level

Times

186
15
16
16
11

In February 2015, Moody's removed the negative outlook on our credit ratings following an assessment of the
PR14 Final Determination (the regulatory Business Plan for the pericd Apni 2015 to March 2020), inciuding a
recognition of our smproved operational and financial performance in recent years All credit ratings are now

‘stable’

Dunng the current five-year regulatory period from 2010 to 2015 we have faced financial risks such as a
material shortfall in revenues compared with those assumed at the time of setting prices for this five-year
period, as well as event risks such as the £18 8 million cost assoctated with the senes of storms and heavy
rainfall from December 2013 through to February 2014 Shareholders have been extremely supportive during
this penod by voluntanly forgoing dividends in order to ensure we have sufficient cash to maintain our
programme to improve performance and to reduce leverage and financial nsk as well as to manage these

financial KPls
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Reducing leverage from 2011 to 2015
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Capital structure
Why Southern Water raises finance

Significant capital iInvestment has been a feature of our business since pnvatisation in 1989 We have invested
in both maintaining our existing asset base and constructing new assets in order to iImprove the environmentat
quality of wastewater, improve the quality of dnnking water and accommodate population growth 1n our area of
operation As an example, prior to privatisation, wastewater discharged into our coastal waters was untreated,
but the completion of our £300 miliion Cleaner Seas for Sussex scheme 1n 2013 marked the conclusion of &
programme of capstal iInvestment to fully treat wastewater of the coastal towns and cities from Kent to
Hampshire and the Isle of Wight

We rarse finance to pay for the construction of new assets As a shareholder-owned company, we are
incentivised to drive efficiency and need to maintain the proportion of assets financed by shareholder equity in
order to absorb financial nsk and to lay the basis for financing the construction of new assets New finance 1s
also required to repay loans taken out i previous years

The level of customer charges I1s calculated to cover our operating expenditure, our annual financing costs
(including any equity return to our shareholders) and the amount required to invest iIn and maintain our assets,
such as water pipes, sewers, pumptng stations and treatment works

The charts below illustrate the sources and uses of expected cash flows for the current regulatory period Apnil
2010 to March 2015 and demonstrate our requirement to raise finance to fund our cap#al investment
programme The data 1s based upon the regulatory price determination, which sets out our obligations and the
hmits for customer charges for this current five-year price pernod

Cash in Cash out
o 1%
-
N
\ / BB Operational costs
( i J [ Capital expenditure
\ 9 / \ " {7 Finance
e / (" Customer \ 40% / B8 Working capital
ﬁ_*/// "1 Finance e T B Tax

Capital structure and borrowing covenants

We refinanced our regulated business in 2003 with the aim of reducing our cost of capital and gaining access
to long-term and secure sources of finance This was achieved by replacing a short-term parent company loan
with a senes of listed bonds 1ssued under a long-term framework for sustainable future financing, which
continues to be in place today

Our financing subsidiary Southern Water Services (Finance) (SWSF) was estabhished for the express purpose
of raising debt finance on our behalf The Southern Water Financing Group (see ownership chart below) was
also established at that ime to create a financial ring-fence to protect our ongoing operation

The financing group, whose immediate parent 1Is SWSG, provides secunty to finance providers in the form of a
charge over the share capital of SWS Group Heldings (SWSGH) No secunty i1s provided over our individual
regulated operating assets This structure ensures that, in the unlikely event that either Southern Water or
SWSF were to default on their debt obligations, we will continue to operate our business as usual Debt
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In 2003, a Common Terms Agreement (CTA) between the members of the financing group and its debt
investors was established The CTA sets out arrangements for the ongoing management of our debt issuance
programme as well as a number of operating arrangements in order to mimmise our financial nsk and adhere to
good industry practice

One of the CTA arrangements s a limit on the indebtedness of Southem Water and SWSF This imit includes
precautionary ‘early warning’ imits which prevent us from paying dividends if a precautionary imit 1s breached
We ensure that we operate with sufficient financial headroom against these imits and have not breached a himit
at any time since the imptementation of the financing framework in 2003

Southern Water ownership structure summary

Shareholders

{

( Greensands Holdings

} _

’7 Greensands Europe
1
Greensands financing companies

v

Southern Water Capital

(A

Southern Water Services Group

e — g e e

l
J

e
e R W

Penston trustee companies

Greensands Holdings 1s the ultmate parent company of Southern Water and all other group companies, with
no minonty interests A number of Greensands companies were set up to finance the acquisition of the share
capttal of Southern Water Capital (SWC) from the Rayal Bank of Scotland in October 2007 (investing £1 9
bilhen of equity and debt to finance the acquisition) The shareholders of Greensands Holdings are a
consortium of infrastructure funds and pension companies, with no single shareholder having majority control

Shareholders of Greensands Holdings are represented on our Board through two non-executive directors
During 2014~15 the Board also consisted of a further four non-executive directors, who are independent of the
shareholders, a non-execufive Chairrman, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chiet Financtal Officer Find out
more about them on page 64
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Our Chawrman 1s also independent Chairman of the Greensands Holdings Board, which meets four tmes a
year No other independent members of our Board sit on the Board of Greensands Holdings

All companies within the Greensands Holdings group of companies are UK resident for tax, with all profits and
losses falling within the UK tax junsdiction

How we finance the business

In note 16 to the financial statements, we prowvide an analysis of our outstanding debt at 31 March 2015 and 31
March 2014 The majonty of our loans are sterling bonds and were 1ssued by our financing subsidiary SWSF
and are histed on the UK Stock Exchange

The regulatory framework, under which revenues and the RCV are indexed, exposes us to inflation nsk This
nsk 1s managed through the use of inflation-inked loans and denvatives within the overall debt portfollo We do
not intend to access future inflation-linked debt through the use of denvatives but will instead seek such debt
from natural sources such as public and prnivate bond markets As a consequence, we expect the proportion of
the RCV and debt that is currently linked to inflation through the use of derivatives will decrease over time

We are not restricted to 1ssuing sterling bonds but will ensure that any other currency loans are fully hedged
back to sterhng We also hedge our exposure to interest rate volatility by ensurnng that at least 85 per cent of
our outstanding debt habilities (in respect of Class A and Class B debt) i1s either inflation-linked or fixed rate for
the current five-year regulatory penod and at least 70 per cent in the next period (on a rolling basis)

We also consider refinancing rnisk by ensuring that loan matunties are not concentrated in any single year or
regulatory pertod When 1ssuing new loans, we test that refinancing obligations are less than 20 per cent of
RCV in any two consecutive years and 40 per cent of RCV within any five-year regulatory period The maturty
profile of loans ranges from within one year to March 2056, which ensures we comfortably meet this test
Although not formally required, we ensure that inflation-linked swap accreton payments are included within our
maturity analysis

We ensure that sufficient iquidity (cash and committed bank facibties) 1s in place to fund the business for at
least the next 12 months (including loan and inflation-linked swap accretion matunties), an important
consideration given that we have negative cash flow generation in the majonty of years as a result of our
ongoing capital iInvestment programme In November 2014, we renewed our commutted bank credit facility and
increased the size of the facility from £200 million to £350 million This facility supports our hquidity and was
undrawn at 31 March 2015 (£350 million) and 31 March 2014 {(£200 million)

As a result of our iquidity policy, we can have large cash balances We reduce the nsk of losing cash on
deposit, from bank or fund failure, by sething maximum himits on cash deposits and minimum credit ratings for
each bank or fund Banks must have, as a mirimum, a credit rating of P1 (Moody's), A1 (Standard & Poor’s) or
F1 (Fitch) Funds must be the most secure rating of AAA rated

In addition to our loans as analysed in note 16, we have In 1ssue a loan of £812 3 million to SWSG which was
issued as part of the refinancing in 2003 (note 14) We receive £56 9 million annual interest on this loan, which
1s financed by dividend and tax payments we make to SWSG For the year ended 31 March 2015, the dividend
was £44 9 million and the tax payment, in respect of the taxable losses incurred by SWSG, amounted to £12 0
mition This loan provides no tax benefit to either us or the Greensands Group, with the tax payment we make
to SWSG simply negating any tax effect of this loan This is illustrated in figure 1 of the diagram below

The Greensands companies also have thewr own loans a UK-listed bond and bank loan i1ssued by Southemn
Water Greensands (Financing) (SWGF), represented in the diagram below as part of the Greensands financing
companies, and Eurobonds 1ssued by Greensands Europe Interest on these loans may result in a tax expense
which can be used within the Greensands Holdings group of companies
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Interest and dividends payments 2014-15
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Risks

In order to provide a reliable and consistent service for our customers it 1s imporiant we identify, montor and
mitigate nisks to our business

Wae ensure controls are in place so we can take achon to minimise the impact of these nsks To do this, we
manage nsks through a central database where they are ranked and assigned to a senior manager who is
responsible for mplementing mitigation plans

Risks are reviewed each month and the highest nisks are escalated to our Executive Management Team, the
Board and the Audit and Risk Review Committee Any new nisks added to the database with a score above a
certain level are passed to a director and Chief Executive Officer for mmediate review Key risks during the
year included

Market reform

From 1 Apni 2017, the retail market for non-domestic customers will be opened This will require significant
structural changes within the company to allow us to continue to comply with regulatory requirements and to
anticipate the shift In customer base Further details of the requirements for operating 1n this new market have
been published during the course of the year and as such, there remain areas of uncertainty If we do not make
adequate preparations to operate in this new market we could face significant reputational damage and
financial penalties from Ofwat

Mitigation

We have continued to engage constructively with Ofwat and Defra on the proposals for market reform During
the year we have actively participated in numerous workshops held by Ofwat and Open Water We have
established a market readiness programme to co-ordinate the changes required in the business, including a
steenng group chaired by our Director of Strategy and which includes our Chief Executive and Chief Financial
Officers

Delivery of our capital investment programme

We have a capital investment programme of £1 8 bithon between 2015 and 2020 We have plans in place to
ensure we will be on target to deliver this, however we have to ensure our focus 1s maintained to complete afl
our work on tme If we are unable to deliver significant parts of the programme on schedule, we face a nisk to
our ability to provide the best service we can for our customers, to meet the promises that we have made in our
Business Plan and possible action by the Environment Agency, Drinking Water Inspectorate or Ofwat

Mitigation

We have transformed our asset management capability during the course of the current AMP to bring
significant capttal investment capability in-house This includes the establishment of an in-house engineenng
function, a specialist programme management function and asset planning systems, processes and
capabilities Progress against the capitai programme 1s overseen by our Investment Committee and we have
adapted our monthly reporting procedures to ensure the delivery of the Business Plan is given the greatest
level of focus within the company We work closely with our regulators and other interested parties to resolve
Issues as they anse

Compliance with legisiation

We are a highly regulated business with three main regulators Ofwat, the Environment Agency and the
Drinking Water Inspectorate If we do not meet the standards set by these bodies, we could face fines, legal
action and, in the worst case scenarno, the loss of our appointment as a water and wastewater company

Mitigation

We have procedures in place to comply with legislation and key procedures have been certified to meet
relevant industry standards, including ISO 8001 and ISO 14001 Internat monitoring and assurance Is
undertaken dunng the year and annual reporting I1s supported by external venficaton through our financial and
technical auditors to provide assurance on compliance with our obligations Awareness training Is provided
throughout our company for cntical comphance 1ssues, such as the Bribery Act and Competition Law, to ensure
everyone understands our legal obligations All sections of the business review comphance with company
procedures through self-assessment every six months and implement improvement plans if necessary
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Operational failures and pollution incidents

Reliable water and wastewater services are essental to maintamn public health and protect the environment.
Operational fallures can lead to interruptions to dnnking water supplies, nsks to health or severe damage to the
environment from pollution As well as the risk of damage to the environment or distress to customers,

incidents such as these can also affect our ability to deliver the promises set out in our Business Plan, with the
potential for financial penalties associated with Outcome Delivery Incentives, prosecution and fines by the
Environment Agency or the Drinking Water Inspectorate and cause damage to our reputation

Mitigation

The majorty of our £1 8 billion capital mvestment programme from 2015-20 1s targeted to maintain our water
and wastewater sites and networks to reduce the risk of falure and incidents We have response teams on
standby to make sure that, if there are problems, we can minimise the impact to our customers and the
environment Performance against our regulatory targets 1s monitored on a monthly basis by both our Board
and Executive Management Team

Resilience to drought

The South East s classified as an area of severe water stress and changing weather patterns are predicted to
pose an increasing challenge for all water compantes 1n the region in future years We supply drinking water to
more than cne million households across Kent, Sussex, Hampshire and the Isle of Wight and it ts cntical we are
able to maintain adequate water resources to continue to do so now and In the future

Mitigation

In 201t we secured exira water resources through our new River Arun reservolr in West Sussex to achieve our
target for the Secunty of Supply Index n the region We have continued to dnve down leakage below our
company target and are on track to install water meters for the majonty of our customers by the end of 2015,
supported by a wide range of water-efficiency inihatives Should a drought occur, as in 2012, we have a
Drought Plan which we follow to introduce measures to conserve water and secure additional resources
through Drought Permits and Drought Orders and by changing the way we operate our sources Our Water
Resources Management Plan uses an industry-leading approach that allows us to plan for a wider range of
droughts than we have seen In the past

Preventing flooding of our sites and from our network

Changing rainfall patterns, more frequent storms and nsing sea levels could all lead to an increased nsk of
flooding, both from our wastewater network and from watercourses and groundwater, with significant
imph¢ations for our customers The senous floods in recent years have also highhighted the need to protect our
water and wastewater treatment works and pumping stations from being put out of action in floods

Mitigation

To help combat this risk, we have prioritised schemes for iInvestment in 2015-20 We will be investing £426
million to provide a reliable and effective wastewater service, part of which will be used to keep our 39,600
kilometres of sewers and 2,375 wastewater pumping stations well maintained It will also fund our replacement
or refurbishment of about 224 kilometres of sewers, with the parts of our network most in need of repar and of
most structural use targeted first We will also carry out more sewer cleaning to prevent blockages and put
more resources into keeping our drainage plans up to date to fully understand how much capacity we will need
for the years ahead

Wae are also focusing on reducing the nisk of biockages, which are a major cause of flooding from sewers This
will in¢lude providing our customers with better information about the causes of blockages and how they can
prevent them, carrying out targeted surveys of our sewers using cameras and regular sewer-cleaning work
Through investment of £268 million, we intend to ensure there 1s no increase 1n the number of blockages 1n our
sewer network

Regional growth

The population in the South East has grown considerably during the past 20 years and i1s expected to grow by
a further 16 per cent between 2010 and 2030 The populattons of Portsmouth and the Isle of Wight are forecast
to be the fastest growing in the region This presents significant challenges because our region has

increasingly scarce water resources, many environmentally mportant areas and a densely populated coasthne,
which will require higher standards of protection We need to ensure we can supply enough drinking water to
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cater for a growing population and that we have enough capacity at our wastewater treatment works and in our
water mains and sewer network to cope with the extra flows

Mitigation

We continually review population forecasts as part of our forward planning in our five-year Business Plan and
our 25-year Water Resources Management Plan While the current economic conditions have resulted in a
decline in the housing market, we expect the populatton wili increase in ine with forecasts By 2020, we
anticipate the rate of housing development will have quickened again We work closely with local planners and
developers to ensure we have the necessary infrastructure tn place to cater for new developments

Bad debt

The levels of customer bad debt, which cannot be recovered and has to be wntten off as a loss, continues to be
a significant issue for the water industry In the current economic climate, there 1s a risk that the number of
customers who do not pay their bills will increase This puts an addiional burden on customers who do pay
therr bills

Mitigation

We understand that some customers may expenence financial difficulties, parhicuiarly in difficult economic
times We encourage customers who are struggling to make payments to contact our Debt Advice Centre as
early as possible To assist thase in difficulty we offer a range of flexible instalment plans and tanffs, including a
new social tanff from Apnl 2015 We are proactive in collecting payment from our customers and n helping
households to pay their bills and debt When necessary, we also utiise a leading debt management system to
recover overdue payments to keep bad debt to a minimum

Financing our business

Significant change In interest rates or a reduction in the avallabiity of credit to the water industry could put our
abilty to efficiently finance our capital investment programme at risk in the future The industry requires access
to capital markets as a result of negative cash flows resulting from our capital investment programme and the
requirement to finance debt matunties when they fall due As a minimum, we intend to maintan our current risk
profile

Mitigation

We maintain a level of cash reserves and liguidity faciities sutficient to finance our business and to finance
scheduled debt maturities for at least the next 12 months, without the need to raise additional finance during
the 12-month penod This practice ensures we maintain a strong position of hquidity, protecting our business
from any short-term financeal market votatihty and supporting our long-term planning horizon We also manage
our quidity exposure to debt matunties by ensuring that the aggregate nominal value of debt maturnities does
not exceed 40 per cent of Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) in any single five-year regulatory penod and 20 per
cent of RCV in any 24-month period Exposure to interest rate nses on our current borrowings 1s also hedged
by a subsidiary company, SWSF, and the majonty of current borrowings are at either fixed or index-linked
interest rates We ensure that sufficient funds are available for our operational and capital Investment
programme through monitoring and forecasting of our cash flow and we take steps to manage this when
necessary

We only enter into treasury transactions to manage inherent nsk and support prudent funding, not to speculate

Credit ratings

We need to maintain an investment grade credit rating to ensure we can continue to access the capital markets
to efficiently finance our capital investment programme and refinance cur existing debt matunties This 18
required as a condition of our regulatory icence and 1t 1s also a pnmary duty of Ofwat to ensure we can finance
our business In addition, it 1s a condition of borrowing covenants, where a failure to maintain certain credit
ratings could lead to a restncticn in dividend payments Our current credit ratings are

s Standard & Poor's Class A debt, A-, Class B debt, BBB
» Fitich Class A debt, A-, Class B debt, BBB
« Moody's Class A debt, Baa1, Class B debt, Ba1, Corporate family raling Baa2
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Mitigation

We have reduced leverage from levels at the start of the AMP5 period, 1n Apnl 2010, and improved operational
performance This positive action has stabilised our credit for the start of the next AMP8 regulatory penod,
commencing April 2015 A primary duty of Ofwat when setting prices 15 to ensure companies can efficiently
finance their business If necessary, a company can apply to reset customer prices dunng the five-yearly
regulatory penods through an intenm determination of price hmits

Health and Safety

The health and safety of our employees and the public in the provision of our services and on our siles 1S Our
utmost prierity The nature of our work requires that our employees and contractors undertake activites or use
equipment which, If uncontrolled, has the potental to cause significant harm Failure to comply with our health
and safety management system couid result in death, senous injury or adverse health effects In addition to the
personal impact these would have, we could be susceptible to prosecution under the Health and Safety at
Work and Corporate Manslaughter acts

Mitigation

Along with our contractors we have comprehensive processes and procedures to prevent injury and
occupational ill health We have taken al! necessary steps to ensure the potential health and safety nsk 1s
suitably mitigated and controlled We have a clearly defined strategy, safety protocols and standards that are
set These are monitored and reported to the Board on a monthly basis and to the Board Health and Safety
Committee The Executive Management Team monitors health and safety performance via detailed reports at
the monthly health and safety management review meeting This group ensures there s an adequate system
for meeting our responsibilities to staff, customers and members of the public These services have been
developed and are continuously reviewed to ensure they meet the needs of the business and our employees at
work

Additionally, every employee has ready access to a copy of the corporate policy statement and health and
safety processes and procedures All staff receive suitable health and safety training and we have a campaign
to encourage staff to report near misses or hazards at work to help further reduce the nsk of injunes or !
health Over the past few years we have increasingly focused on our employees’ wellbeing as well as their
physical safety through the establishment of a company-wide wellbemng forum as well as a senes of physical
and mental health inttiatives

Water quality

We supply drinking water to more than two million people Should operational treatment processes fail, or
should the supply become contaminated, there 1s a nsk that water could be supplied to customers that 1s unfit
for consumption Any problem affecting dnnking water quality (for example a bactenological fallure} could
cause our customers to become ill and would require a widespread ‘boil water notice’ to protect public health,
causing disruption to our customers and potentially a prosecution

Mitigation

Significant effort 1s made to prevent such an incident occurnng through investment in assets and technology
and through staff adherence to company processes and procedures New staff are trained In these processes
and procedures and their importance We consistently have a dnnking water compliance of over 99 9 per cent
Our 2015-20 Business Plan includes schemes to add carbon filters and other more advanced filters at our
water treatment works in high-nsk areas such as Hastings to help improve the taste and smell of water Part of
our activities to improve water quality includes upgrades to wells and boreholes, service reservoirs and water
supply works as well as flushing mains and cleaning service reservoirs which store water underground before it
Is pumped to customers’ taps

To avoid problems associated with nitrates and pollutants being washed into nvers from hugh surface run off
atter heavy rain, we have processes to cease water abstraction dunng and after heavy storms Drinking Water
Safety Plans have been completed and made available online for staff These plans identify where and how
problems can anse with drinking water quahty and cover the entire supply system, from catchment to
customers’ taps
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Customer service

Customers will become dissatisfied If we are unable to deliver the level of service they expect, which can be
caused by interruptions to supply and services or qualty detenorahon as well as shortcomings n our
communications and response The Service Incentive Mechanism (SiM) was developed by Ofwat to incentivise
improvements In customer service and compares the water sector companies’ performances across the
industry Financial penalties may be applied under SIM for failure to achieve the requisite level of service to our
customers

Qur performance as measured by SIM has continued to improve, although not as fast as our peers and stil not
at the desired level We have set ourselves challenging targets and our improvement programmes are working
to deliver these for our customers

Mitigation

Improvements to customer service are being made on a continuous basis Staff are being provided with
increased traning and development and we are carrying out our ongoing research to better understand our
customers’ expenences, both the services they are being provided with and also when contacting us to define
key local areas of improvement

We are also informing the pubhic when we are working sn therr area and strengthening our links with focal
organisations such as councils and community groups

We are reducing the need for customers to contact us by prowviding faciliies for them to manage therr accounts
online and where customers do need to speak o us directly we have ensured the opening hours of our contact
centre are convenient Additionally, our bills have been redesigned to make them easier to understand

Cyber security

We provide water and wastewater services to customers across our regional infrastructure, which is considered
cntical national infrastructure As a result, we recognise our operaticnal and enterprise IT systems may be a
potential target for cyber threats which could have a significant impact on our business reputation and
operational digital assets

Mitigation

We manage this nsk through IT secunty standards, ongoing monitoring of threats to and activities on our IT
infrastructure as well as incident management plans We continue to invest in cyber threat mitigation strategies
in response to the changing nsk landscape and we work with the Centre for Protection of National
Infrastructure (CPNI) Over the past 12 months we have also undertaken employee campaigns to raise
awareness of IT secunty and data protection nsks

Defined benefit pension scheme

We operate a defined benefit pension scheme which has been closed to new entrants from 1 Apnl 2005 We
remain liable for nghts earned by past and present members of the scheme Changes in demographics and
fluctuations in investment markets may affect our ability to fund pension promises

Mitigation
We have agreed a deficit and sk management strategy with the Trustees This 1s monitored regularly by the
company and Trustees and mitigating actions are reviewed and implemented as approprate

The nisk of a sustained period of negative inflation

Our wholesale revenues, capital value and the return on our capital value are hnked to inflation A sustained
pertod of negative inflation could result in a reduction of returns relative to the cost of financing our business A
sustained penod of negative inflation could also lead to pressure on the financial headroom we have between
our capial value, linked to inflation (our RCV), and our financial structure

Mitigation

This risk ts reduced by the inclusion of index-linked debt and denvatives, within our financial structure, which
makes up approximately two thirds of our borrowings These financial instruments are linked to inflation,
whereby interest cost, and loan value, nise and fall in hne with the movement in inflation
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Corporate Governance

Chairman’s overview
Introduction

We are committed to maintaining high standards of leadership, transparency and governance We have
adopted our own code and have committed to comply with its letter and spint As the Board, we fully accept our
responsibility and accountability to stakeholders for ensunng effective governance processes are In place and
fellowed

The Board's role 1s to

+ Ensure that the company’'s obligations to, and interests of, its stakeholders, including customers and
regulators, are known and met appropnately

» Provide effective leadership and collective responsibility for the fong-term success of the company, to
the benefit of its stakeholders

» Determine overall strategic aims and direction

s Ensure that suffictent resources are available to the Chief Executive Officer and his team to operate,
manage and develop the business appropnately

+ Ensure that appropnate and effective processes and controls are in place to assess and manage nsk

Southern Water Code of Board leadership, transparency and governance

The Board readily adopted Ofwat's suggestion in 2013 to develop our own code In the Southern Water Code
of Board leadership, transparency and governance, we have fully reflected the Ofwat Principles (published in
January 2014} and drawn extensively on the appropnate prnnciples of the UK Corporate Governance Code. We
have committed to comply with the letter and the spint of the principles and commitments of the Southern
Water Code and the board of our parent company, Greensands Holdings, has committed to assist us We
continue to have regard to corporate governance practices and developments in other areas and wili review the
Southern Water Code again in the current year 2015—16

The Southern Water Code 1s published on our website
Board membership

During the year we are reporting, | was the independent non-executive Chairman, appomnted with effect from 1
Apni 2014 | was previously one of four independent non-executive directors and, following my appointment as
Chairman, we appointed Paul Sheffield in my place

Our Nomination Committee was tasked to consider candidates for the independent non-executive directorship |
vacated and to recommend the appointment to the Board, which 1t did following an appropriately formal,
rigorous and transparent process This began with agreeing the principal charactenshcs required by the Board
overall and evaluating the current strengths and balance Following Paul Sheffield’'s appointment, the
opportunity was also taken to plan for successton in anticipation of the retirements of Bob Armstrong and
Cheryl Black, which were expected later in the year Accordingly, we appointed Bili Tame (from 1 January
2015) and Rosemary Boot (from 1 March 2015) We also appointed Lisa Harnngton with effect from 1 April
2015, in anticipation, later in 2015, of David Golden’'s retirement In the appointment of its independent non-
executive directors, the Board 15 pleased to continue 1ts pursuit of diversity

By 31 March 2015, the Board comprised an independent Chairman, two executive dwectors (the Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer) and six non-executive directors, of whom four are independent. |
believe that overall, during the year, we comprised a balanced and rounded Board, giving independent support
and advice as well as providing new ideas and healthy challenge The presence of the non-executive directors,
only two of whom are not independent, and the independent non-executive Chairman ensures that we achieve
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appropnate governance The members of the Board, their biographies and descrniptions of their complementary
skills and extensive experience are on pages 64 1o 68

All members of the Board were and are able to allocate the necessary time to the company and its areas of
business to discharge their responsibiliies effectively

Chairman

As Chairman, my role 1s to lead the Board in its shared responsibiities, to encourage and facilitate the
contributions of its members and to ensure adherence to the governance prnnciples and processes of the
Board | have ensured that the new members of the Board receive appropnate induction and ongoing training

1 discuss and agree agendas for Board meetings with the Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary,
although any director may sponsor an item to be included on the agenda | have authonty to act and speak for
the Board between its meetings, including engaging with the Chief Executive Officer | report to the Board,
chairmen of its committees and individual directors as appropnate on decisions and actions taken between
meetings of the Board | also meet with the non-executive directors, without the executive directers present, to
consider the performance of the executive directors and to provide feedback | am continuing to increase open
and constructive contact between all members of the Board, in both formal and informal meetings

Investor representatron
Our investors compnse the Greensands Consortium, the membership of which 1s explained on our website

Two mvestors, but not all, are directly represented on the Board and | ensure that the views of all investors can
be communicated to the Board

Senior independent non-executive director

Dawvid Golden 1s the senior independent non-executive director He has chared the Remuneration Committee,
of which he remains a member, and 15 a member of the Health and Safety and Audit and Risk Review
Committees He would chair Board meetings in the event that | am unable to do so for any reason and 1s
available to discuss matters or concerns with investors as required Dawvid has been a non-executive director
for 11 years The Board recogrises that tus character and judgement show him to be independent and values
his continuing contnbution dunng the recent quinquennial price review process and to the new Business Plan
and operating model that we are now implementing David proposes to resign at the end of June and will be
succeeded by Paul Sheffield as senior independent non-executive director 1 wish to thank him for his
commitment and assistance over the years

Independent non-executive directors

The independent non-executive directors are valued members of the Board As well as meeting the company's
obhigation in its icence to have independent non-executive directors, they bring overall independent adwice,
review and challenge on behalf of all stakeholders, including customers The independent non-executive
directors have been appointed for their Indmvdual external expertise and experience in specific areas, such as
customer service, the environment, operations, procurement and finance, and for the range of their expernience
of general corporate management They meet without the Chairman at least once a year and appraise the
Chairman's performance annually

The Board considers the independent non-executive directors to have been and to be independent in character
and judgement and perscns of standing with relevant experience, collectively having connections with, and
knowledge of, the company’s area and understanding of the interests of our customers and how these can be
respected and protected

The standard terms and conditions of the iIndependent non-executive directors are published on cur website
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Shareholder representative non-executive directors

There are two non-executive directors each of whom ts nominated to the Board by one of our two major
investors They bring the extensive knowledge, skills and resources of their nominating investors and
employers as well as their own personal skills, expernience and knowledge of businesses and business sectors
similar to our own On our Board, they have all the duties, obligations and nights of a director of Southern Water
and act in the best interests of the company They do not recetve any remuneration from Southern Water

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Cfficer, Matthew Wright, 1s a member of the Board and has all the responsibiliies of a
director of the company In his executive role, responsibility has been delegated to him to achieve the
company's strategy He is empowered to take all decisions and actions that further the company’s strategy and
which, in his judgement, are reasonable within the Chief Executive Officer’s imits set out in the company’s
internal controls The non-executive directors, led by the Charman, apprarse his performance annually

Chief Financial Officer

The Chief Financial Officer, Michael Carmedy, 1s a member of the Board and has all the responsibilities of a
director of the company In his executive role and reporting to Matthew Wnght, he has the responsibility to
manage the company’s financial affairs and assist the Chief Executive Officer in the delivery of the company's
strategy His executive performance 1s reviewed annuaily by Matthew Wnght

Executive Management Team

Reporting to Matthew Wright, the Executive Management Team supports tum in driving the impiementation of
strategy in the company The team 1s committed to do this in a responsible way that takes account of our
commitment to our customers, the environment, the communities 1n which we live and work and all our other
stakeholders and with a view towards the long-term responsible stewardship of the business

Role of the Company Secretary

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and Generat Counsel, Kevin
Hall, and the Company Secretanat team The Company Secretary 1s responstble for ensuring that the Board
operates 1n accordance with the governance framework it has adopted and that there are good information
flows to the Board and its committees and between senior executives and the non-executive directors The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary 1s reserved to the Board

Director induction, training and development

On appointment to the Board, a director will discuss and agree induction coverage and then an appropriate
comprehensive and individualised induction pack 1s provided, which will include information on the company
and holding group structure, the regulatory framework of our business, customer service and the operation of
assets, strategic plans, financial reports, business plans and our governance framework This and further
relevant information 1s summansed in the directors’ handbook

Meetings are arranged with members of the Executive Management Team and with external advisers, who
provide support to the relevant Board commiitees the directors may serve on, as well as visits to operational
and office sites

Directors received updates through the year on matters such as changes to the regulatory framework, Defra's
Open Water programme, procurement and people management and deepened their knowledge through their
leadership of and engagement in the regulatory Price Review 2014 (PR14) They also have access to
professional development provided by external bodies and our specialist advisers
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Board evaluation

On my appointment as Chairman, | took on the process of Board evaluation which was already under way and,
with the members of the Nomination Committee, identified where and how we wanted to add to the capabilities
of the Board In the autumn of 2014, | wanted to review progress and to carry out the next annual Board
evaluation, this time with external facilitaton The Board agreed to the engagement of Duncan Reed, Condign
Board Consulting, who conducted face-to-face interviews with all directors and attended Board meetings The
report was presented to the Board at its February meeting and painted an encouraging picture, reflecting that
the overall functioning of the Board 1s at a good leve! and that governance 1s in good order No areas of major
concern or weakness were identified but helpfully a number of suggestions had been made by individuals to
improve Board effectiveness further These are being tralled and will be reviewed dunng this year

Subsequently, David Golden, senior independent non-executive director, led a review and appraisal of my
performance as Chairman, without my participation | am pleased to record that my chairmanship is supported
by the Board overall and no areas of major concern or weakness were identified

Board operation

There 1s good understanding of the principles and processes in place regarding the tasks and activities of the
Board, the authority delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the relationship between us

The following matters are routinely determined by the Board

« Business strategy

« Financing strategy

+ Business plans

s Approval of annual budgets

» Fixing of pnncipal charges and charges schemes

+ Approval of financial statements

« Key requlatory submissions (including, but not imited to, Price Review submussions to Ofwat, Intenim
Determination of K applications, Risk and Compliance Statement and Regulatory Financtal Statements)

+ Key customer and stakeholder publications (including, but not imited to, the Annual Report)

« Entering into significant contracts or commitments (Including capital schemes over £5 million and
disposals over £1 million)

» Approval of dvidends

« Commencing Into new businesses

« Appointment or removal of auditor

+ Appomntment and remuneration of iIndependent non-executive directors

»  Appoitment or removal of the Company Secretary

+ Amendment, qualfication, additton to or removal from the above

The Shareholders’ Agreement of our parent company, Greensands Holdings, reserves certain matters by
exception to the Board and shareholders of that company A list of these matters is published on our website
During the year 2014—15, no such matters have been decided by that Board or those shareholders

Good governance requires a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer A statement of these responsibifities 1s published on our website

Board meetings

The Board heid ten scheduted monthly meetings dunng the year The agenda and papers are sent to Board
members in advance of each meeting The monthly financial, performance and economic regulation reports are
also distnbuted for the other two months when there 1s no scheduled meeting (August and December} The
Board holds its meetings at its principal office in Worthing but at least two meetings each year are held in
London to facilitate meetings with investors
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Additionally, ad hoc Board meetings were held to consider, challenge and decide the company’s positions on
further stages in the PR14 process, which has continued to be such an important process for the Board dunng
2014-15 This culminated in our decision not to seek referral of Ofwat’s Final Determination to the Competition
and Markets Authornty

Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and are able to take appropriate
independent professional advice for the performance of their duttes Where a director has a concern over any
unresolved matter, he/she 1s entitied to require the Company Secretary to record that concern in the minutes of
a meeting Should the director later resign over the 1ssue, |, as Chairman, would bring it to the attention of the
Board

Attendance at scheduled monthly
Board meetings in 2014-15

Robert Jennings 10/10

Robert Armstrong 8/8 Cheryl Black 7/8
(resigned 31 January 2015) (resigned 31 January 2015)

Michael Carmedy 10/10 Dawvid Golden 9/10
Paul Sheftield 8/8 Matthew Wnght 10/10
(appointed 1 June 2014)

Bill Tame 2/3 Rosemary Boot 1M1
(appointed 1 January 2015) (appointed 1 March 2015)

Paul Moy 9/10 Mark Walters 10/10
Bronte Somes (as alternate) 11

Note - Attendance includes attendance tn person and by telephone

Board committees

We have established standing committees of the Board with specific responsibiities They assist by monitonng
and reviewing performance and 1ssues in the areas within their respective scopes and by advising and making
recommendations to the Board Specific responsibilities have been delegated to those commitiees

The standing committees of the Board that met in 2014-15 are

Audit and Risk Review
Health and Safety
Remuneration
Nomination

Each committee has written terms of reference to exercise oversight on behalf of the Board and provide advice
in its remit area These terms of reference are published on our websie

Other committees are constituted If and when required for specific matters

The company has previously appointed a Regulatory Commitiee However, given the significance of the
regulatory 1ssues and changes that have taken place in the regulatory environment in 2014—15, and
particular the PR14 process, such regulatory matters have been discussed and decided by the fuli Board
Consequently, the Regulatory Committee did not meet dunng the year This position will continue to be
reviewed by the Board, which itself receives an economic regulation report at each scheduled monthly meeting
and for the other two months, as described above, and which has been closely involved in PR14
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Remuneration

The directars' remuneration report 1s set out on pages 73 to 84

Interests

No director declared a matenial interest at any time dunng the year in any contract of significance with the
company

Conflicts of interests

Conflicts or potential conflicts are governed by the Companies Act 2006 The Board does not have power to
authonse conflicts If a conflict shouid anse, the conflicted director takes no part in discussions or voting on that
Issue

Annual General Meeting

Southern Water Services Limited 1s a private company with single corporate ownership and I1s not required to
hold an Annual General Meeting

Conclusions

The Board and | remain committed to the company continuing to follow good corporate governance to underpin
business strategies and plans which ensure that its obligations to, and interests of, its stakeholders, in
particular customers and regulators, are known and met appropnately

il

Robert Jennings
Chairman

63




Southern Water Annual Report and Accounts 2014-15

Board of Directors

The day-to-day running of our company I1s led by Matthew Wnght, our Chief Executive Officer, and our
Executive Management Team, which reports to our Board of Directors

Robert Jennings
Chairman

Appointed Chairman in Apri 2014, Robert joined the Board as an independent non-executive director in July
2012

Robert 1s also the Department for Transport's representative on the board of Crossrail

He joined SG Warburg & Co in 1986 and remained with the orgamsation until February 2009 where for many
years he had been head/|oint head of the bank’s infrastructure group During this penod, he was also seconded
to HM Treasury on two occasions

Robert graduated from Bnistol University in 1976 after reading Economics and Accounting

Articled to Coopers and Lybrand, he became a Chartered Accountant in 1979 and, in 2005, was made a CBE
in recogmition of hus services to the transport sector and finance industry

Matthew Wright

Chief Executive Officer

Appointed in February 2011, Matthew Wright joined us from Umited Utilities where he was Managing Director,
Asset Management and Delivery

Prior to that, he was Managing Director, Operations, and his role included management of the operations,
maintenance and customer service activiies of United Utilities’ regulated water and wastewater business as
well as oversight of the company’s external contracts with Dwr Cymru Welsh Water, Scottish PFI projects and
other industnat customers

Matthew has more than 25 years' expenence of utiity management in both UK and international markets

He joned United Utiliies in 2007 from Scothish Power's US operation, where he was Executive Vice-President
of PacifiCorp's transmission, distribution and customer service division

He has also held semior management positions in operations, regulation, corporate strategy and commercial
utility functions
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Michael Carmedy

Chief Financial Officer

Appointed in November 2011, Michael Carmedy joined us from United Utiities where he was previously the
Group Controller and Finance Director United Utiities Water Plc

He joined United Utiites in January 2008 from Thames Water where he worked for 17 years in vanious
financial, commercial and regulatory roles based in both the UK and the US

Immediately prior to joining United Utilities, he was Thames Water Group Financal Controller, a role he tock up
following his return from the US where he spent four years with Thames Water Amenicas, including two years
as VP Regulation, Amencan Water

David Golden

Senior independent non-executive director

Appointed in November 2003, David Golden 1s Chairman of the MPSL Group of Construction/Design
companies and a director of Knutsford Academy Limited

Previously, he was contracts director of Amec, contracts director of British Nuclear Fuels pic and procurement
director of North West Water, each entity embracing significant civil engineenng based capital programmes

Subsequently he was Chief Executive of Banner Business Supplies and Executive Chairman of Altnix
Healthcare plc He 1s a former Chairman of the Water Industry Certification Scheme

Paul Sheffield

Independent non-executive director

Paul Sheffield joined the Board in June 2014 |n addition to this role he 1s currently managing director of the
Northern Hub for Laing O'Rourke - the engineenng and construction enterprise

In hus career Paul enjoyed more than 30 years with Kier Group Plc, the censtruction, property and services
business, starting as a graduate cwil engineer in 1983 He spent 15 years working on a senes of significant
infrastructure projects around the world and then fed a number of the company’s business units in the UK

In 2005, he joined the Kier Group Board, with responsibility for the £1 5 bilhon per annum construction division,
and was appointed CEO at the start of 2010, stepping down in June 2014 having overseen a significant
restructuring of the business and significant growth Following that he took up a new role with L.aing O'Rourke
to lead the expansion of their activities across the UK, Middle East and Canada

Paul has a wealth of knowledge about the construction and maintenance of infrastructure assets and the
delivery of major programmes of capital works
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Bill Tame
Independent non-executive director
Bill Tame joined the Board in January 2015

He 15 currently Chief Executive of the Babcock Group’s International Dvision, having joined the Babcock Board
as Group Finance Director in 2002

Bill 15 a member of the Insttute of Chartered Accountants and I1s also a non-executive director of Carlco ple

Rosemary Boot
Independent non-executive director

Rosemary Boot joined the Board in March 2015

She s chief financial officer of Future Cities Catapult, one of a network of technology and innovation centres
established by the UK Government

Previously she worked at Circle Housing Group and was involved n setting up the Government-owned Low
Carbon Contracts Company and Electricity Settlements Company From 2001 to 2011 she was group finance
director of the Carbon Trust, the independent company set up in 2001 to work with business and the public
sector to accelerate the move to a sustainable, low carbon economy Prior to that, she worked for 16 years as
an investment banker, pnmarily advising targe hsted UK comparnies on mergers and acquisitions

Rosemary s also a governor of the Conservatoire for Dance and Drama, the higher education institution for the
performing arts, and a trustee of Green Alliance, the envircnmental thenk tank

Lisa Harrington
Independent non-executive director

Appainted in April 2015, Lisa 1s the managing director of Customer Service and CIO of
British Telecom’s Wholesale dwision

Lisa has a real passion for customers and a strong track record of delivering customer
sefvice improvement In a vanety of transformation and operational roles

Before BT, Lisa spent 12 years with Andersen Consulting (now Accenture), specialising in customer service
consulting and delivening big transformation projects for companies such as Microsoft, Compagq, Vodafone and
Sainsbury's

She aiso served as a non-executive director for the NHS West London Mental Health Trust
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Bronte Somes
Non-executive director

Bronte Somes joined the Board in Apnl 2015 having previously held shareholder representative posittons within
the wider Southern Water group over the past four years and having served as alternate non-executive director
to Paul Moy on the Southern Water Board

Bronte 15 a senior mvestment pnncipal for UBS Infrastructure and Private Equity, a division of UBS Global
Asset Management Based in Londen, Bronte is responsible for principle investment activity across Europe

Before joining asset management, Bronte worked for more than a decade in UBS Investment Bank's
infrastructure group where she gained extensive experience as an adviser within the infrastructure sector
Before that, Bronte worked as a finance lawyer at Clifford Chance in London

Mark Walters

Non-executive director

Mark Walters joined the board in March 2014 having previously held shareholder representative positions
within the wider Southern Water group over the past five years

A seasoned investment professional, he 1s an executive director and asset manager with the J P Morgan
Infrastructure Investments Group, based in London, and 1s responsible for pnnciple investment activity across
Europe

Mark holds board appointments across a number of J P Morgan's utiity investments, including Electricity North
West and Zephyr Investments Ltd, and s actively engaged in the strategic oversight and development of these
businesses

Before joining J P Morgan, Mark held investment and advisory positions at Macquane Bank, Deloitte and
Arthur Andersen, where he started his career and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with the ICAEW

Kevin Hall
Company Secretary and General Counsel

Kevin 1s a qualfied solicitor and has worked for Southern Water since 1975

Having also undertaken legal environmental and regulatory work, he focused on customers and water supply
on the creation of Southern Water Services in 1989 and became Company Secretary of the Southern Water
Group in 1997 following its acquisition by Scottish Power

Since then, he has been involved in many significant corporate and financing actvities in addition to hus overall
legal responsibiities for Southern Water

in February 2008, he also became Company Secretary of the Greensands companies and his role continues to
be n supporting and advising the compames’ boards and businesses
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Other Board members who served 1n 201415 were
Robert Armstrong - Independent non-executive director (resigned 31 January 2015)

Robert Armstrong joined the Board in May 2008 and served as an independent non-executive director until his
resignation

Cheryl Black — independent non-executive director (resigned 31 January 2015)

Cheryt Black joined the Board in May 2008 and served as an independent non-executive director until her
resignation

Paul Moy — Non-executive director (resigned 31 March 2015}

Paul Moy joined the Board in February 2010 and served as a shareholder-nominated non-executive director
untit his resignation

Executive Management Team
Reporting to Matthew Wright, the Executive Management Team in 2014—15 consisted of

Michael Carmedy - Chief Financial Officer

Kevin Hall - Company Secretary and General Counsel
Philip Barker — Director of Operations

Mel Karam — Director of infrastructure

Chnis Maloney — Director of People

Simon Qates — Director of Strategy and Communicatons
Lesley Ottery — Director of Transformation

Jennie Reglar — Director of Procurement

Susan Stockwell — Chief Customer Officer

68



Southern Water Annual Report and Accounts 2014-15

Audit and Risk Review Committee

This report descnibes the role of the Audit and Risk Review Committee (ARRC) and the work 1t has undertaken
during the year

The members of the ARRC are Bill Tame (from 24 February 2015, and Chaiwman from 24 March 2015,
previously Robert Jennings), Robert Jennings, David Golden, Lisa Harnngton (from 1 Apni 2015), Bronte
Somes (from 1 Apri 2015) and Mark Waiters, whose expenence and background are set out on pages 64 to
67 Previous members during the reporting year were Cheryl Black (resigned 31 January 2015) and Paul Moy
(resigned 31 March 2015)

The members of the committee receive updates on financial reporting and the regulatory framework in various
forms throughout the year The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Head of Audit and Risk,
the Group Financial Controller and the external auditor are invited to all meetings and are usually in

attendance Other members of senior management are also invited to attend when necessary or appropriate
The ARRC has access to the services of the Head of Audit and Risk, the Company Secrstary and external
professional advisers 1o assist it in performing its duties

The ARRC met three times 1n 2014-15 and its work focused on the following key areas

Financial statements

Internal controfs

Cormporate governance matters

Areas of risk

Oversight of internal and external audit
The regulatory reporting obhgations

Audit and Risk Review Committee
attendance in 2014-15

Robert Jennings Cheryl Black
{resigned 31 January 2015)
David Golden 3/3 Pauf Moy 213
{resigned 31 March 2015)
Bronte Somes (as alternate) i
Mark Walters 3/3 Bil Tame N

{appointed 24 February 2015)

Note - Attendance mcludes attendance in person and by telephone

The terms of reference of the ARRC are published on our website
Financial statements

The ARRC received and reviewed the financial statements and the external audit report from Deloitte regarding
the year-end financial statements, considenng any items of significant judgement that have been made and
general IT controls, before making a recommendation to the Board to approve the annual results There were
no significant issues to be addressed

The ARRC has also reviewed and discussed the changes to the financial statements that will result from the
transihion to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in 201516
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Internal controls

The ARRC recewves regular reports from Internal Audit in respect of its work on internal controls and reviews
management letters received from the external auditor In addition, our risk management processes and
arrangements are also monitored and reviewed together with the ongoing development of the comphance and
assurance processes in respect of the key nsks

The ARRC also recetves a regular report of incidents of fraud or bnbery, including the actions taken to
investgate and respond to the incidents and information on potential incidents of wrong-doing under
investgation There were no matenal incidents during the year

Further details of our internal control framework, including the main features of our internal control and nsk
management systems In relation to the financial reporting process, can be found in the Annual Report on page
53

Oversight of internal audit and external audit

The ARRC 1s responsible for overseeing the work of the Internat Audit function and also for managing the
relationship with the external auditor It reviews the performance of the internal and external auditors annually
to ensure that they are effective and recommends to the Board whether the external auditor should be
reappointed

The ARRC regularly holds discussions with both the internal and external auditors in the absence of
management

Internal audit

The Head of Audit and Risk and the team report on a day-to-day basis to management on the effectiveness of

the company’s systems of internal controls and the adequacy of these systems to manage business nsk and to
safeguard the company's assets and resources This work 1s reported to the ARRC on a reguiar basis and is a

key element of the assurance that the ARRC receives on the nsks and controls in the company

The ARRC reviews, at least annually, the level of resources and the budget of the Internal Audit function The
Head of Audit and Risk Is free to raise any Issues with the ARRC or its Chasrman at any time during the year.

External auditor

Deloitte LLP was appointed our auditor in 2011 following a tendenng process The ARRC considers the
auditor's effectiveness each year and would report to the Board any concerns over the auditor's continuing
appointment

The ARRC reviews annually information provided by the external auditor confirming its independence and
objectivity within the context of applicable regulatory requirements and professional standards, including any
non-audit work Under the Southern Water Code of Board leadership, transparency and governance, the
external audit contract will be put to tender at least every ten years We would also initiate a tender process if
there were any concems about the quality of the audit or the independence and objectivity of the auditor There
are no contractual obhgations that act to restrict the Board's choice of external auditor

Details of the amounts paid to Deloitte for audit and non-audit services are provided in note 3 to the accounts
on page 98
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Health and Safety Committee

The Health and Safety Committee (H&SC) I1s responsible for reviewing and advising on our health and safety
policy and the implementation of, and compliance with, agreed polictes, applicable guidance and standards
The H&SC reviews incident and accident prevention performance and policies and any other matters assigned
by the Board

The members of the H&SC are Paul Sheffield (from 22 July 2014 and Chairman from 26 November 2014;
previously David Golden), Matthew Wright, David Golden and Rosemary Boot Robert Armstrong had been a
member durning the reporting year and resigned on 31 January 2015

The H&SC met on two occasions in 2014-15

Health and Safety Committee
attendance in 2014-15

David Golden 2/2 Matthew Wright 212
Robert Armstrong 2/2 Mark Walters 2/2
{resigned 31 January 2015)

Paul Sheffield ilal

{appointed 22 July 2014)

Note — Attendance includes attendance in person and by telephone

The terms of reference of the H&SC are published on our website
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee I1s responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
evaluating the balance of independence, skills, experience, knowledge and diversity It prepares descriptions of
roles and the capabilities required and leads the process for identifying and nominating candidates for the
approval of the Board

The members of the Nomination Committee are Robert Jennings (Chairman) Paul Sheffield (from 24 February
2015 and deputy Chairman from 24 March 2015), and all non-executive directors

The Nominatton Committee met on ten occasions in 2014-15

Nomination Committee attendance in
2014-15

Robert Jennings 10/10  David Golden 9/10
Robert Armstrong 8/8 Paul Moy 710
{resigned 31 January 2015) (resigned 31 March 2015)

Bronte Somes (as alternate) 3/3
Paul Sheffield 11 Mark Walters 10/10
(appointed 24 February 2015)
Rosemary Boot 11 Bill Tame 71
(appointed 24 March 2015) (appointed 24 February 2015)

Note — Attendance includes attendance 1n person and by telephone

The terms of reference of the Nomination Commuttee are published on our website
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

This report is on the activities of the Remuneration Committee for the perniod to 31 March 2015 It sets out the
remuneration policy and remuneration details for the executive and non-executive directors of the company It
has been prepared in accordance with our Code, the guidance issued by Ofwat in Regulatory Accounts
Guidance (RAG) 3 07 and, where relevant for a non-listed company, taken into account the new requirements
of the Companies Act as amended in August 2013

Chairman’s annual statement

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 March 2015,
which sets out the remuneration policy for the directors of Southern Water Services Limited and provides
details of their remuneration in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015

Throughout the year, the committee was chared by David Golden Following David’s announcement that he
intended to stand down from his position on the Board in June 2015, | was appomnted charrman of the
commttee with effect from 24 February | would Iike to take this opportunity to thank Dawid for his contribution
over many years 1o the Remuneration Commiitee

Following the annual review of the committee's effectiveness, the structure and membership has been revised
From Apnl 2015, four new independent non-executive directors have joined the committee Each one brings
sigruficant expenence to Southern Water from various sectors and professions This should provide an
additonal balance of skills, expenence and knowledge to enable them to provide sound judgement and
decision making in matters related to the company's short and long-term remuneration strategy In particular,
addihonal strengths in both customer focus and sustanability have been added to the commitiee

As a result of the improving company performance and the Remuneration Committee’s assessment of
performance against the personal objectives of each individual executive director, the annual bonus payments
for 2014—15 were assessed to be between 63 per cent and 70 per cent of annual bonus potential

As part of a strategy to improve the links between achievement of personal objectives and reward cutcomes, a
new bonus scheme design was implemented in 2015 for both executive and senior management who are
eligible for a payment under the incentive arrangements This focused the executive and senior management
on improving business effectiveness through improvements in service to customers, operational efficiency and
performance white ensunng sufficient financial returns to maintain investor confidence and enable the company
to finance the business at competitive rates

Remuneration in 201516

The committee believes the remuneration policy currently in place i1s working well to support the company's
strategy in the current economic environment and to retain and motivate our expenenced management team
ahead of the next price review period

The committee has recently been working on a new Long-Term Incentive Plan to incenfivise our executive
directors to deliver the ambimous AMP6 Business Plan and to ensure the focus remains on delivering improving
customer service and shareholder value The details of the plan are yet to be formally agreed however the
intention 1s that it will be a three-year rolling plan with overlap to allow for a smooth payment profile

A —

Paul Shefhield
23 June 2015
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee (RemCom) 1s a comnuttee of the Board of Southern Water Services Limited
(SWS) The RemCom has responsibility for setting remuneration policy and structure for the executive directors
and senior management It 1s also responsible for setting the remuneration of the Charrman The RemCom has
defined terms of reference, which are published on our website

Committee membership

We recognise that the independent non-executive directors have an tmportant role to play in determining and
challenging remuneration policy and practice In 2014-15 we revised the membership of the RemCom to
ensure that the independent non-executive directors represented a majority on the committee

The RemCom 1s chaired by senior independent non-executive director Paul Sheffield (appointed 24 February
2015) Paul took over the role of chairman from Dawvid Golden, following Dawid’'s decision to step down from the
Board 1n June 2015 The other members are Robent Jennings, Robert Armstrong (to 31 January 2015), 8ill
Tame (from 24 March 2015), Rosemary Boot (from 24 March 2015), Paul Moy (to 31 March 2015) and Mark
Walters From Apn! 2015 Lisa Harrington also joined the committee along with Bronte Somes who replaced
Paul Moy

Only RemCom members are entitled to attend meetings, but the Director of People and the Chief Executive
Officer, Matthew Wnght, attend by invitation The Director of People acts as secretary to the RemCom on
behalf of the Company Secretary

No attendee participates in discussions regarding theirr own remuneration

Details of the attendance during 2014—15 are shown in the table below

Remuneration Committee
attendance in 2014-15

Dawvid Golden Robert Armstrong
(resigned 31 January 2015)

Robert Jennings 3/3 Paul Moy 2/3
Bronte Somes (as alternate) il

Paul Shetheld 2/2 Mark Walters 3/3

{appointed 24 February 2015)

Bdl Tame 11 Rosemary Boot 11

{appointed 24 March 2015) (appointed 24 March 2015)

Note ~ Attendance includes attendance in person and by telephone
How the Remuneration Committee sets remuneration policy

The pnmary objective of our remuneration policy 1s to ensure that competitive reward packages are offered that
will attract, retain and motivate talented and expenenced senior executives to run the business effectively and
to promote the success of SWS

Within these arrangements, a significant proportion of reward 1s based on performance against demanding
targets These targets are set by the RemCom based on key strategic priorities benefiting customers, investors
and other stakeholders and consistent with a Board-approved level of nsk

The overall am 15 that executive directors’ remuneration should be market-competitive relative to other
comparable compantes and with a significant proportion being performance related and therefore only being
paid out if stretching short-term and long-term targets are achieved that benefit both customers and
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shareholders In setting the remuneration policy for executive directors, the RemCom takes into account the

remuneration practices found in other UK companies of a similar size or operating 1n the same sector It also
ensures that the remuneration arrangements for the executive directors are appropriate when compared with
those for other senior executives and the wider workforce

In particular the RemCom s kept informed on a regular basis of

s The level of salary increase for the general employee population
s Company-wide benefit provision and any proposed changes
+ Overall spend on management bonus arrangements

Investor representatives sit on the RemCom and are closely involved in sethng remuneration levels, monitering
the performance of the executive directors, agreeing payments and approving any changes to reward
packages This close involvement ensures that shareholders play a key part in shaping remuneration policy
and decisions and that the link between pay and performance 1s robustly managed

To ensure that our remuneration practices are market competitive, the RemCom annually calls upon
experienced specialist consultants The RemCom has received matenal advice from Towers Watson (a leading
global professional services company), which has been appointed for the purpose of providing this advice

Drirectors' pay and standards of performance

As required by the Water Act 2003 and Regulatory Accounting Guidance from Ofwat, additional information 1s
given below regarding the remuneration of the directors of SWS

Executive directors who served durning the 2014-15 year are shown below

Matthew Wright Chief Executive Officer
Michael Carmedy Chief Financial Officer

Details are given below of the remuneration policy for the directors of SWS and the amounts paid to them in the
year ended 31 March 2015

75




Southern Water Annual Report and Accounts 2014-15

Remuneration Policy

Purpose

The remuneration policy of SWS applies to all its employees The Board of Directors has adopted the
remuneration policy at the recommendation of the Remuneraton Committee The policy applies to
remuneration earned from 1 Apnl 2014

The policy reflects the Board's objectives for good corporate governance as well as sustained and long-term
value creation for shareholders In addition, 1t ensures that

« SWS s able to attract, develop and retain high-performing and motivated employees in a
competitive market

« Employees are offered a competitive and market median-aligned remuneration package making
fixed salaries a significant remuneration component

« Employees feel encouraged to create sustainable results and that a link exists between
shareholders/customers and employee interests

The policy focuses on ensunng sound and effective nsk management through

e A stringent governance structure for setting goals and communicating these goals to employees

e Alignment with our business strategy, values, key pniorities and long-term goals

»  Alignment with the pninciple of protection of customers and investors ensunng prevention of
conflict of interests

Remuneration components

At an annual performance appraisal interview, individual employees and managers evaluate and document
performance In the past year and set new goals Decisions on adjustment, if any, of the employee’'s fixed salary
or on annual performance-based pay are made on the basis of this appraisal The varnous remuneration
components are combined to ensure an appropriate and balanced remuneration package

The five remunerahon components are

Fixed remuneration (including fixed suppiements)
Performance-based remuneration (vanable percentage of salary)
Pension schemes, where applicabie

Other benefits in kind

Severance payment, where applicable

The fixed remuneration 1s determined on the basis of the role and position of the individual employee, including
professional expernience, responsibility, job complexity and local market conditions

The performance-based remuneration motivates and rewards high performers who significantly contnbute to
sustainable results, perform according to set expectations for the individual in question, strengthen long-term
customer relations and generate income and shareholder value

The Board of Directors has determined a maximum percentage of performance-based remuneration relative to
the fixed remuneration for the executive management posittons This percentage vanes through the other
management levels of the organisation according to the type of position held by the employee and the business
directorate in which they are employed The maximum imit on variable remuneration remains at 100 per cent
of fixed salary inclusive of pension This level of variable remuneration will, in practice, only apply to a small
minonty of employees and will only be offered to enable SWS to match market terms Performance-based
remuneration 1s disbursed as a cash bonus Executive directors are covered by two times salary death in
service benefit within their contract of employment
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The Defined Benefit Pension Scheme, which was closed to new entrants on 1 Apnl 2005, guarantees
employees a four times salary cover for death in service and pension payment on retirement after the age of
55 In general, employees are covered by the defined benefits pension scheme or through the defined
contribution plans with a pension insurance company The death in service cover for the defined contnbution
scheme 1s two times salary The pension contnbutions of employees subject to collective bargaining
agreements are regulated by the collective agreement

Other benefits are awarded on the basis of individual employment contracts and local market practice

Severance payments are payable in accordance with relevant legisiation and applicable collective agreements
Severance payments may include vanable remuneration, pension or other benefits on a discretionary basis

The deswgn of the total remuneration package for the executive directors ensures that a substantial proportion
of the maximum opportunity 1s dependent on performance Based on the vaiue of the 2011 long-term incentive
plan award and achievement of stretch performance agamnst targets and personal objectives for the annual
bonus, the total annual remuneration charged to the company 1s weighted at around 60 per cent performance-
related and 40 per cent non-performance-related for Matthew Wnght and 50 per cent performance-related and
50 per cent non-performance-related for Michael Carmedy

The table below summarises the elements of our executive directors’ remuneration package and our policy for

each item

Element of

remuneration

Base salary

Annual
mcentive
scheme
(Bonus)

Purpose and
tink to strategy

Takes nto
account
experence and
personal
contribution to
our strategy and
performance

Attracts and
retains
executives of
the quaity
required to
dehver our
strategy

Drives and
rewards
performance
against personal
objectives and
selected
customer,

Policy and approach

= The base salary is a fixed figure and
does not vary in relation to business or
mndividual performance

= Reviewed annually with changes
effective from 1 July if applicable

= Consideration given to individual and
company performance

= General pay increases to all
employees taken into consideration

= Aim to pay withsn a mid-market range,
but may pay higher salanes to attract
and retain executives of the nght
cahbre or for out-performance by the
individual or company

Referenced against UK companies of
a similar size, utility companies and
other water companies

= The performance measures included
within the annual bonus scheme are
selected to ensure that we are focused
on our strategic objectives

= The balance and nature of the

Opportunity
2015-16

Base salary
incraases are
apphed in ine
with the
annual review

Maxarmum
percentage of
satary — shown
In table on
page 82

Annual
review
of salary
changed
from 1
April to

1 July
effective
from
July
2016

No
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operational and objectives i1s reviewed annually
mﬁgg ’:::PIS = A ‘bonus pool’ 1s created at a
directly linked to corporate level based on the
business achievement of the company agamst
strategy these objectives and any individual
payment i1s based on personal
performance
s The KPIs for 2014—-15 are shown on
page 82

The threshold, mid-point and stretch
targets are estabitished annually by the
RemCom, making sure they are
sufficiently stretching winle also
recognising the nature and nisk profile
of the company

Where applicable, 60 per cent of the
bonus pool 1s created for achieving the
mid-point target and 100 per cent for
achieving the stretch target

RemCom has discretion to amend or
withdraw payments based on the
consideration of other factors which
could significantly affect business

performance
Long-term Algns interests = The current scheme has just been The
incentive plan  of executives, assessed and covered a four-year annualised
(LTIP) c::stor;elrs and performance period starting 1 Apnl maximum
shareholders 2011 The award will be paid in June (ajr::;?o:ﬁ;each
2015 and further details of this are
given on page 83
Matthew
s Subject {0 continuing employment Wnght
the four-year penod
over ur-year pert 500k
= |f the participant resigns dunng the
eriod then participation in the scheme
\Ff)wll lapse P P Michael
Carmedy
* The RemCom has the discretion to £125k
make awards for ‘good’ leavers as
appropriate subject to performance
= A new scheme for the penod to 31
March 2018 was introduced from 1
Apnl 2015
Pension Defined = A company contnbution into a defined  Contribution
CO;':U ibution contribution scheme of
scheme
TenImises the = A cash allowance In lisu of pension m?ln?_lew
ght
risk to the o
company 18%
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associated with
defined benefit
pension plans

Other Provides market = Car allowance
benefits compettive

benefits = Health cover

= Disturbance or relocation allowances

Michael
Carmedy

15%
Based on No

individual
circumstances

A basic pay increase of 2 5 per cent for Matthew Wnght and Michael Carmedy for 2015-16 was approved in
May 2015 and will be applicable to the basic salaries of the executive directors with effect from 1 Apnl 2015
This 1s in ine with the average pay increase for the remainder of staff in the business

The terms of the contracts for the executive directors require notice periods of 12 months by both parties for
Matthew Wnight and six months by both parties for Michael Carmedy If the notice penod i1s worked, no
termination payment i1s payable, otherwise a payment up to @ maximum equivalent to the notice penod of basic

salary, plus pension and car alfowance 1s payable
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Annual remuneration report

Details of the remuneration received by the executive directors are shown below

Directors’ remuneration for 2014-15

Benefits | Annual LTIP BC pension Total
Bonus award contribution/ | including
2011-15 compensation pension
Matthew Wnight 3555 125 226 6 1,2500 1,844 6 68 4 1,813.0
Michael Carmedy 249 4 113 1397 3132 713.6 374 751.0

Directors’ remuneration for 2013-14

£°000 Base Benefits | Annual DC pension Total
salary Bonus contribution/ | including
compensation pension

Matthew Wrnght 3485 126 2333 00 594.4 628 657.2
Michael Carmedy 242 2 121 1222 00 376.5 363 412.8

A Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) has been in place for the pencd from 2011 to 2016 The Remuneration
Committee considered performance agamnst this in April 2015 and has agreed for the payments disclosed
above to be made in June 2015 These payments are single one-off payments and cover the performance over
the four years of the LTIP Further details can be found on page 83

The Charrman and the independent non-executive directors each receive a fee and do not participate in any of
our performance-related incentive arrangements The investor-nominated non-executive directors do not
receive any remuneration from the company

Details of the emoluments received by the Charman and non-executive directors are shown below

2013-14

Robert Jenmings {Chairman) 2250 09 225.9 400 05 40.5
Colin Hood - - - 2250 1166 341.6
David Golden 600 24 4 84.4 600 179 77.9
Robert Armstrong 417 88 50.5 400 38 43.8
Cheryl Black 417 80 49.7 400 43 44.3
Paul Sheffield 417 00 41.7 - - -
Rosemary Boot 42 00 4.2 - - -
Bill Tame 125 00 12,5 - - -
Paul Moy - - - - - -
Mark Walters - - - - - -
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The other amounts payable to the non-executive directors include taxable expenses incurred in the attendance
at Board meetings, together with payments to David Golden for consultancy services provided separately to his
duties as the senior Independent non-executive director In 2013—14 an additional payment was made to Colin

Hood, our previous Chairman, as compensation for loss of office

None of the directors who held office during the financial year had any disclosable interests in the shares of
Southern Water or the group, there are no share opticns i place and no payments were made 1o them by any
other group companes

Annual performance-related incentive scheme

Our incentive scheme focuses on the achievement of specific strategic goals which are designed to drive
exceptional customer service, financial and operational performance The structure of the scheme and specific
target critena, both used for the creation of a bonus pool and individual objectives, are set and reviewed on an
annual basis by the RemCom The bonus pool targets for 2014—15 were set and approved in May 2014

A balanced scorecard approach was used for the creation of the bonus pool for the first time this year Four
measures were used in the scorecard cash revenue, operational expenditure (Opex), Service Incentive
Mechanism (SiM) and the successful delivery of key AMP6 change programmes The weighting of each was
set equally at 25 per cent to balance the financial, operational and customer focus of the company and keep
these on track while delivering the Change Programme

Performance-based remuneration 1s awarded 1n a manner which promotes sound nsk management and does
not iInduce excessive nsk-taking Performance-based pay is granted to reflect our financial results, the results
of the business directorate in which the employee 1s employed and the individual employee’s performance
Further, both financal and non-financial factors shall be taken into consideration when determining the
individual's bonus, 1 e compliance with internal guidelines and procedures, including customers and investor-
related guidelines A discretionary assessment Is always made to ensure that other factors, including factors
which are not directly measurable, are considered, including maintaining and promoting corporate values

Performance-based pay 1s granted to employees with parhcular influence on our results and shareholder value
As an overall starting point, we ensure a balanced split between fixed salary and vanable pay

Details of the targets agreed by the RemCom for 2014-15 together with the maxmum bonus apportunity
available to each executive director are shown in the table below The performance for 2014—15 was assessed
in Aprl and May 2015 by the RemCom and the achievement against each target together with the personal
achievement level and payments made in relation to 2014-15 are also shown below
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Performance measure Weight for | Achievement
2014-15 2014-15

{as % of (as % of
bonus pool) | bonus pool)

Service standards Deliver a targeted improvement in the Service
Incentive Mechamsm score for 2014—15

Purpose — to deliver significant improvements in 25% 75%
customer service performance

Measure — Ofwat SIM score

Key projects Compiletion of a number of key projects and
contract arrangements In readiness for the next
AMP

Purpose — to ensure that key enablers are in o o
place as part of our plans to dehver improved 25% 22 5%
services for customers

Measure — achievement of agreed project
milestones

Cash revenue Collect a targeted level of cash receipts from
unmeasured and measured customers

Purpose — to ensure good financral performance

and provide our customers with an affordable 25% 1375%
service and our ulhmate shareholders with a

return on their investment

Measure — financial information from the accounts
Operating costs Operate the business within a targeted level of
total operational expenditure

Pumose ~ to ensure good financral performance

and provide our customers with an affordable 25% 20%
service and our ulhmate shareholders with a

return on their investment

Measure — financia! information from the accounts

Bonus 201415 Matthew Wright Michael Carmedy

Maxtmum bonus opportunity (% of base salary) 100% 80%
Percentage of maximum bonus awarded 63 75% 70%
Bonus percentage awarded based on personal o o

performance (% of base salary) 6375% 56%
Base salary (£'000) £3555 £249 4
Bonus paid (£'000) £226 6 £1397

The RemCom has agreed to continue the scheme 1n 2015~16 and has set the performance measures for
inclusion In the balance scorecard approach as cash revenue, operational expenditure (Opex), Service
Incentive Mechanism (SIM) and Operational Delivery incentives (ODis) The weighting of each will continue to
be 25 per cent
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Long-Term Incentive Plan

A Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for the period 1 Apnl 2011 to 31 March 2015 was agreed by the RemCom
In 2011—-12 Performance payments under the LTIP are based on the performance measures shown below

Performance measure

Customer
objectives:

Performance
assessment
(serviceabihty)

Customer service
standards (SIM)

Operational
objectives:

Asset
Management
Assessment
{AMA)

Operating
efficiency

The perfermance in all four categones (water above
ground, water below ground, wastewater above ground,
wastewater below ground) wilt be assessed over the four-
year penod 1n companson with the other water and
sewerage companies

The performance under the Ofwat SIM mechansm rated in
compartson with the other water and sewerage companies

Our ability to effectively and efficiently manage the
investment i, and maintenance of, our assets to ensure
stable service levels

As this assessment 1s no longer made by Ofwat, an
independent assessment was made based on Ofwat's
methodaology

Our operating cost performance for water and wastewater
services in comparnson to the other water and sewerage
companies

As this measure 1s no longer published by Ofwat, an

independent assessment was made using company
accounts and returns for the penod

40% 20%

15% 0%

30% 30%

15% 12 5%

Total maximum f actual award

100% 62.5%

LTIP Matthew Wright Michael Carmedy

Maximum LTIP opportunity (€m)

Percentage of maximum LTIP awarded

LTIP paid (Em)

£2 0m
62 5%

£1 25m

£0 5m
62 5%
£0 3m

Performance against the LTIP was reviewed at the RemCom meeting in Apnl 2015 Foliowing changes in
comparative reporting to other water companies, and as Ofwat does not review the serviceability outcomes as
self-assessed by water companies, the RemCom recognised that an alternative approach was required to

assess performance against the serviceability, AMA and operating efficiency elements

In determining its assessment, the RemCom has taken into consideration the following significant
improvements which have been delivered since 2011
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« Significant efficiency iImprovements resulting 1in improved operating cost relative efficiency ranking to A
Upper for water and B Lower for wastewater

e Top AMA ranking achieved compared to PRO9 scores, assessed independently by Strategic
Management Consulting

+ Top-half performance achieved in many key operational areas including wastewater treatment

compliance and mean zonal comphance

Sigmificant improvement in pollutions (30 per cent improvement)

Stabilisation of Moody's credit rating

Industry-leading leakage performance achieved since 2011-12

Industry-leading health and safety performance

When the LTIP was put in place, a maximum target achievable for Matthew Wnght was set based on 150 per
cent of average salary over a four-year period For Matthew Wnght the maximum potential achievable was £2 0
million The maximum potential achievable for Michael Carmedy was set at £0 5 million

As a result of the performance assessment made, an award of 62 5 per cent of the overall maximum has been
made and the payments shown below are due to be made under the scheme in June 2015

Matthew Wright — £1,250k
Michael Carmedy — £313k

The Board intends to implement a new LTIP from 1 Apnl 2015 to cover the peniod through to 31 March 2018
The scheme will be a three-year rolling scheme, with overlap, to provide a smoother payment profile while still
aligning with the needs of customers and shareholders The content of this scheme has not yet been formally
agreed, however, the intention I1s that the scheme would be based on the following performance measures and
weightings

+ Total sharehoider return — 50 per cent
+« AMPS delivery plan efficiencies of the company — 25 per cent
« Service Incentive Mechanism (qualitative element only) ranking of the company — 25 per cent
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Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2015

The directors of Southern Water Services Limited (registered no 02366670) present their report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Principal activities

The pnncipal activities of the company, also referred to as SWS, are the provision of water supply and
wastewater services in the South East of England The company 1s regulated by the Water Services Regulation
Authonty (Ofwat) and supplies water to nearly 2 5 milion people and provides wastewater services to nearly

4 6 milhon people

Strategic report

The information that fulfils the requirement of the Strategic Report can be found in our Annual Report on pages
15to 57

Future developments

The information regarding future developments of the company can be found in our Annual Report on pages 15
to 57

Results and dividends

The profit and loss account on page 89 shows the company's results and profit for the year Further details are
also available in the Annual Report on pages 42 to 48

The exceptional item In the year ended 31 March 2014 of £18 8 million relates to costs incurred in dealing with
the high groundwater levels and storms experienced in the winter of 2013-14 The costs Include tankering and
pumping costs to remove the water and the cost of repairs to equipment as a result of the damage caused
Dunng 2014-15 we receved insurance proceeds totalling £2 4 million in relation to this event and these are
recorded as an exceptional item in the results for this year

Interm diwvidends of £802 21 per ordinary share (2013-14 £787 90 per share), totaling £44 9 million (2013-14
£43 8 million) were paid dunng the year to Southern Water Services Group (SWSG) These dividends, along
with associated group tax relief of £11 9 milkon, enable SWSG to pay the interest of £56 9 million due to SWS
on an inter-company loan as disclosed in note 6 to the accounts

The directers do not recommend payment of a final dividend for 2014—15 (2013-14 £n1l) No dividends were
paid to our ultimate investors for the third year in a row

Directors and their interests

The directors who held office during the year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the date of signing the financial
statements were as follows and further details can be found on pages 64 to 68

Raobert Jennings {Independent non-executive director) (appointed as Charrman 1 Apnl 2014)

Matthew Wright {Executive director — Chief Executive Officer)

Michael Carmedy {(Executive director — Chief Financial Officer)

David Golden {Senior independent non-executive director)

Robert Armstrong (Independent non-executive director) {resigned 31 January 2015)

Cheryl Black (independent non-executive director) {resigned 31 January 2015)

Rosemary Boot {Independent non-executive director) (appointed 1 March 2015)

Lisa Harrington (Independent non-executive director) (appointed 1 Aprit 2015)

Paul Sheffield {Independent non-executive director) {appomnted 1 June 2014)

Biti Tame (Independent non-executive director) (appomted 1 January 2015}

Paul Moy (Non-executive director) (resigned 31 March 2015) (alternate non-executive director
from 1 April 2015)

Mark Walters {Non-executive director)
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Bronte Somes (Non-executive director) (appomnted 1 April 2015) (previously altermnate non-executive
director)

Peter Antolik (Alternate non-executive director) (resigned 7 January 2015)

Andrew Truscott (Alternate non-executive director) (appointed 7 January 2015)

None of the directors who held office during the financial year had any disclosable interests in the shares of the
company or the group

Research and development

The improvement of existing services and processes, together with the identfication and development of new
technology and innovatory solutions, are important aspects of the company's strategy to enhance the quahty of
service to customers and improve methods of working Research and development expendiure for the year
amounted to £0 4 milhion (2013—14 £ 5 milhon)

Financial risk management

The Financial Risk Management Policy i1s included in the Strategic Report on pages 15to 57

Employees

Employee mvoivement: The company recognises the importance of its employees and 1s committed to
effective two-way communicatton and consuitation

The company has established Business Involvement Groups to facilitate meaningful consultation between
company management and employees through elected employee representatives The groups meet regularly
at both a functional and company-wide level An employee survey is also completed on an annual basis to seek
input from employees

The company recognises the rights of every employee to join a trade union and participate in its activites  SWS
has a single union agreement with Unison

The company publishes its own in-house newspaper, Southern Water News, on a regular basis General
information 1s posted on the company mtranet and regular team briefing sessions are also held The
information in these publications and briefings covers a wide range of subjects that affect the business,
including progress on business and capital projects, the impact of regulatory 1ssues and wider fmancial and
economic 1ssues that may affect the company

Equal opportunity: The company’s policy Is to promote equality of opportundy in recruitment, employment
continuity, training and career development The company takes full account of the needs of people with
disabilities and follows set policies and procedures to support reasonable adjustments i the workplace

Health, safety and wellbeing: The company recognises its duties to make proper provision for the health,
safety and welfare at work of its employees

Every employee receives a copy of the corporate policy statement on health and safety There are regular

meetings of employee representatives and managers to consider all aspects of health and safety In addition
there 15 a Health and Safety Management Review Group which ensures that there 1s an adequate system for
meeting the company's responsibiiies for health and safety to its staff, customers and members of the public

SWS provides an internal occupational health service for employees, including the provision of physiotherapy
These services have been developed and are continuously reviewed to ensure they meet the needs of the
business and our employees at work

Environmental issues

The company is committed to meeting or improving upon legistative and regulatory environmental requirements
and codes of practice and aims to contain the environmental impact of its activities to a practicable minimum
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The company's environmental performance is reported on pages 30 to 35 The company recognises its
responsibility to operate within a framework that supports sustainable development and has established, where
possible, indicator targets which are measurable Performance against these targets 1s monitored and reported
regufarly

Political donations

No poltical donations were made

Land and buildings

in the opinion of the directors, the market value of land 1s significantly more than its book value However, it
would not be practicable to quantify the difference precisely

Going concern

The directors believe, after due and careful enquiry, that the company has sufficient resources for its present
requirements and, therefore, consider 1t appropnate to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial
statements to 31 March 2015

In forming this assessment the directors have considered the following information

s The company's business activities, together with the factors hkely to affect its future development,
performance and position, which are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 15 to 57

« The financial position of the company, its cash flows, iquidity position and borrowing facilittes, which are
described in the Financial Performance review on pages 42 to 52

e The company has avallable a combination of cash and committed undrawn bank facilities totalling
£523 4 million at 31 March 2015 {2014 £335 5 million) These funds are sufficient to fund the operating
and capital investment activities of the company for the 12 months from the date of signing the financial
statements

« The company operates In an industry that 1s currently subject to economic regulation rather than market
competition Ofwat, the economic regulator, has a statutory obligation to set price mits that it believes
will enable the water companies to finance their actvites The Final Determination for the penod Apnil
2015 to March 2020 has now been agreed by Ofwat

As a consequence the directors believe that the company I1s well placed to manage #ts business risks
successiully

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting In preparing the annual financial statements

Qualifying third party indemnity

Following shareholder approval, the company has also provided an indemnity for its directors and the Company
Secretary, which 1s a qualifying third party indemnity provision for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statemenits for each financial year Under that faw the
directors have prepared the financ¢ial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable iaw) Under company law the
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of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In preparing these
financial statements, the directors are required to

= Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

* Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

= State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

= Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s Inappropnate to presume that
the company will continue Iin business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and mtegnty of the corporate and financial information
included on the company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Responsibihty statement

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

. the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company
. the management report, which 1s incorporated into the Strategic Report, includes a fair review of the

development and performance of the business and the position of the company, together with a
descnption of the pnincipal nsks and uncertainties that they face

Statement of disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the persons who s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

(1) Sofar as the director 1s aware, there I1s no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor 1s
unaware

{2) He/she has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor 1s aware
of that information

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the prowisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006
Auditor

Deloitte LLP has indicated 1ts willingness to continue in office

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed by order of the Board

-

e

fh Hall
Company Secretary
23 June 2015
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Financial statements

Profit and loss account
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Note

Turnover 2

Cost of sales
- before exceptronal item (476.1)

- exceptional item 3 2.4

Cost of sales including exceptional item
Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Other operating income

Operating profit

Profit on disposal of fixed assets

Profit on ordinary activities before interest
and taxation

Interest receivable and similar income 6
Interest payable and similar charges 7

Profit on ordinary activities before 3
taxation

Tax on profit on ordinary activites 8

Profit for the financial year 20

The above results relate to continuing operations

The notes on pages 93 to 118 form part of these financial statements

2015
£m

828.6

(473.7)

354.9

(26.8)

0.2

328.3

1.3

329.6

58.2
(183.9)

203.9

(36.7)

167.2

2014
£m

806.2

(452 0)
(18 8)
(470 8)
335 4
(29 4)
02
306 2

05

306 7

61.8
(229 0)

138 5

303

169 8

There Is no difference between the profit on ordinary activiies before taxation for the years as stated above

and their histoncal cost equivalents
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Profit for the financial year

Actuanal (Joss)/gain recogmsed in the pension scheme
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension deficit
Total recognised gains/(losses) for the year

Note

20,22
17

2015 2014
£m £m
167.2 169 8
{42.9) 31
8.6 (2 2)
132.9 1707
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Balance sheet
As at 31 March 2015

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors amounts falling due within one year

Debtors amounts falling due after more than one year
Cash at bank and i hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Provision for liabilities

Environmental ocbhgations

Deferred taxation

Grants and contributions

Net assets excluding pension deficit
Pension deficit

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share captal

Share premium

Profit and loss account

Total shareholder’s funds

Note

10
11

12
13
14

15

16
17
17

18

22

19,20
20
20

20

2015 2014
£m £m
4,483.0 4,432 0
292 292
4,512.2 4,461 2
2.2 20
216.8 198 O
812.3 812 3
173.5 135 5
1,204.8 1,147 8
(246.5) (300 6)
958.3 847 2
5.470.5 5,308 4
(3,872.7) (3,836 4)
{0.5) (05)
{336.8) (314 2)
(41.4) (43 8)
1,219.1 1,113 56
(89.9) (72 3)
1,129.2 1,041 2
0.1 01
46.3 46 3
1,082.8 994 8
1,129.2 1,041 2

The financial statements of Southern Water Services Limited (Registered no 02366670) on pages 89 to 118
were approved by the Board and authornised for 1ssue on 23 June 2015 They were signed on its behalf by

" =

Michael Carmedy
Chief Financial Officer
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Cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Note
Net cash inflow from operating activities 21a

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest received

Interest paid

Preference share dividends

Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance

Taxation

Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Recetpt of grants and contnbutions

Sale of tangible assets

Movement on Joan to subsidiary

Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment

Equity dividends paid
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing

Financing

Repayment of loans

Capital element of finance iease payments
Issue costs of new loans

Net cash cutflow from financing

Increase/{decrease) in cash

Reconciliation to net debt
Net debt at beginning of year
Increase/(decrease) in cash
Short-term loan to subsidiary
Movements in borrowings
Debt 1ssue costs

Other non-cash changes

Net debt at end of year 21b

2015 2014
£m £m
544 4 543 3
58.1 622
(129.2) (141 1)
(10.7) {115)
(81.8) {90 4)
(36.9) {22 9)
(348.6) (382 0)
12.3 99
0.3 03
(1.7} (i59)
(337.7) (387 7)
(44.9) {43 8)
43.1 {15)
{5.0) (28)
{0.1) -

- 01
(5.1) {2 9)
38.0 {4 4)

(3,722.9) {3,651 5)
38.0 (4 4)

- (247 5)

51 252 8

- 02

(41.7) (72 5)
(3,721.5) (3,722 9)

92




Southern Water Annual Report and Accounts 2014—15

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently throughout the current and preceding
year, are set out below

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical cast convention,
and in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards and, subject to the treatment of infrastructure
grants and contributions described below, with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Basis of preparation

The financial statements contain mformation about Southern Water Services Limited (SWS) as an individual
company and do not contain consolidated financial iInformation as the parent of subsidiary companies The
company 1s exempt under Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare
consolidated financial statements as it and its subsidiary undertaking are included by full consolidation in the
consolidated financial statements of the ulimate holding company, Greensands Holdings Limited

Going concern

The directors have undertaken a detailed review of the company's iquidity requirements compared with the
cash and facilities available, the financial covenant position including projections based on future forecasts, the
current ratings and financial nsk and have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a penod of at least 12 months from the
approval of these financial statements For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the annual financial statements More detail can be found in the Directors” Report on
page 87

Tangible fixed assets and depraciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at histonc purchase cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for
imparrment Cost includes the onginat purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use, these include matenals, labour and applicable overheads
Interest costs are not capitalised

{} Infrastructure assets (being mains and sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage reservors,
dams, sludge pipelines and sea outfalls) comprise a network of assets covering the company’s geographic
area

Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases n capacity or enhancement of the network and
on maintaining the operating capability of the network in accordance with defined standards of service, 1s
treated as an addition to fixed assets and I1s stated at cost after deducting grants and contributions Staff
costs that directly relate to the construction of a specific infrastructure asset are capitalised on the basis of
the amount of tme spent by indimduals on projects

The depreciation charge for infrastructure assets 1s the estimated level of annualised expenditure required
to matntain the operating capability of the network and i1s based on the asset management plan
determined by Ofwat as part of the price regulation process The asset management plan is developed
from historical expenence combined with a rolling programme of reviews of the condition of the
infrastructure assets

(1) Private sewers were adopted in October 2011 and have been valued at nil value, as permitted by
UKGAAP and by reference to the net present value of the incremental cash flows as a result of the
adoption. These assets form part of our infrastructure assets and expenditure associated with them has
been treated as described above
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Tangible fixed assets and depreciahon (continued)
(m) Other tangrble fixed assets (including above ground assets, plant and equipment) are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and any prowvision for mpairment These assets are depreciated down to therr
residual values on a straight-line basis over therr estimated operating lives which are pnncipally as follows

Years
Buildings 10-60
Operational structures 15-80
Fixed plant 10-40
Vehicles, computers and mobile plant 3-10

Operational structures are assets used for wastewater and water treatment purposes These include water
tanks and similar assets

{v) Freehold land 1s not depreciated

{v) Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until they are commissioned Commissioning 1s
deemed to occur when a new works 1s officially taken over from the contractor following completion of
performance and take-over tests

Grants and contributions

Revenue grants and contributions are credited to the profit and loss account in the year to which they relate

Capital grants and customer contnbutions in respect of additions to non-infrastructure tangible fixed assets are
treated as deferred income and released to the profit and loss account over the estimated operational lives of
the related assets in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act

Grants and capital contrnibutions received relating to infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of
tangible fixed assets as permitted by Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAP) 4 This is notin
accordance with Schedule 1 of the Companies Act 2006 which requires tangible fixed assets to be stated at
their purchase price or production cost The Act does not permit the deduction of contributions

This departure from the requirements of the Act 1s, In the opinien of the directors, necessary for the financial
statements to give a true and fair view because infrastructure assets do not have determinable finite lives
Accordingly related capital contributions would not be recogrised in the proht and loss account The effect of
this treatment on tangible fixed assets 1s disclosed in note 10

Leased assets

Where the company enters into a iease which entails taking substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership
of an asset, the lease 1s treated as a ‘finance lease’ The asset Is recorded in the balance sheet as a tangible
fixed asset and 1s depreciated over its estmated useful life or the term of the lease, whichever Is shorter

Future instalments under such leases, net of finance charges, are included within creditors Rentals payable
are apportioned between the finance element, which 1s charged to the profit and loss account, and the capital
element which reduces the outstanding obligation for future instalments
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Leased assets {continued)

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred

The sale of ncome nghts relating to aenal masts and sites owned by the company to third parties i1s treated as
an operating lease Income received from such sales Is received entirely in advance and i1s therefore taken to

deferred revenue and will be credited to other operating income n the profit and 1oss account over the hfe of
the lease

Sale and leaseback transacthons occur when an asset 1s sold but use 15 1immediately re-acquired by entering
into a lease with the buyer Where the new lease 15 an operating lease, the transaction is treated as the
disposal of an asset and the operating lease accounted for in accordance with existing policies

Fixed asset investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost, less provision, if appropnate, for any impairment in value
other than a temporary impairment in value The carrying values of fixed asset investments are reviewed for

impairment in periods if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be
recoverable

Stocks

Stock i1s held for use in the production of water supply and treatment of wastewater Stock is valued at the
lower of cost and net realisable value

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue includes morues recelved from customers where the related turnover has not yet been
recognised

Amounts are deferred to the balance sheet and released to the profit and loss account in line with the penod of
the service provided

Provisions

An environmental provision 1s made in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 12 for the costs
relating to the decommussioning of abandoned sites No reimbursement 1s expected.

Taxation

The taxation charge in the profit and loss account ts based on the profit for the year as adjusted for
disallowable and non-taxable tems using current rates and takes into account tax deferred because of iming
differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes

Deferred taxation 1s provided on all timing differences that have crniginated but not reversed by the balance
sheet date, calculated at the rate at which it 1s expected the tax will anse in accordance with FRS19 ‘Deferred
Tax' Deferred taxation balances are not discounted Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s
regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1 Accounting policies {continued)
Turnover

Turnover represents the Income recevable (excluding value added tax) in the ordinary course of business for
goods and services provided and, in respect of unbilled charges, includes accrued income

Turnover relates to services provided in the year and excludes payments received in advance which are
recorded as deferred revenue

Unmetered income I1s based cn either the rateable value of the property or on an assessed volume of water
supplied Metered income 1s based on actual or estimated water consumption

Turnover includes an estimate of the consumption between the date of the last meter reading and the penod-
end The unbifled iIncome accrual is based on estimated usage from the last meter reading date through to the
end of the reporting period The accrual 1s estimated using a defined methodology based upon historical biling
and consumption information and the apphicable tanff

Bad debts

The bad debt provision I1s calculated by applying estimated recovery rates to various categories of debt and
reflecting past collections expenence and expectations of future recovery of outstanding receivables at the
year-end

Pensions

SWS operates a defined benefit pension scheme, the assets of which are held separately from those of the
company in independently administered funds An independent actuary conducts a valuation of this pension
scheme every three years

In accordance with FRS 17 the pension deficit has been recogmised on the balance sheet and operating and
financing costs of pension and post-retirement schemes are recognised separately in the profit and loss
account

Pension scheme assets are measured using market values Pension scheme liabilittes are measured using the
projected umit actuanal method and are discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond
of equivalent terms and currency to the liability The increase in the present value of the liabilities of the
company’'s defined benefit pension schemes expected to arise from employee service in the period 1s charged
to operating profit The expected return on the scheme’s assets and the increase during the year in the present
value of the scheme’s liabiiites arising from the passage of tme are included in other finance income Actuanal
gains and losses are recognised In the statement of total recognised gains and losses

Service costs are systematically spread over the service lives of the employees and financing costs are
recognised in the pencd in which they anse The costs of past service benefit enhancements, settlements and
curtalments are also recognised 1n the penod in which they anse

The differences between actual and expected returns on assets and labilities dunng the year, including
changes In actuanal assumptions, are recognised In the statement of total recognised gains and losses

The company also operates a defined contrnibution pension scheme The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the company in an independently administered fund Company contnbutions to the
scheme are charged to the profit and loss account in the penod to which they relate
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1 Accounting policies {(continued)
Research and development

Expenditure on research and development is charged to the profit and loss account as 1t 1s incurred
Expenditure on fixed assets relating to development projects Is written off over the expected useful lives of
those assets

Preference shares

Preference shares are classified as debt in accordance with FRS 25 ‘Financial instruments disclosure and
presentation’ The preference shares are redeemable on a specific date or at the company’s option any time
earlier Dividends on preference shares classified as debt are recognised in the profit and loss account through
interest payable The value of the debt has been based on the onginal nominal value and share premium on
issue of the shares

Capital instruments

interest-bearng borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs Finance charges
are accounted for on an accruals basis in the profit and loss account and are added to the carrying amount of
the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the pernod in which they arise

The 1ssue costs of capital instruments are amortised over the life of the financial instrument to which they
relate

Premiums and proceeds from gilt lock agreements received on 1ssue of debt instruments are credited to the
profit and loss account over the term of the debt at a constant rate on the carrying amount

The carrying value of index-linked debt instruments 1s adjusted for the annual movement In the retail price
index The change in value ansing from indexation 1s charged or credited to the profit and loss account in the
year in which it anses

2 Segmental analysis

The directors believe that the whole of SWS's activities constitute a single class of business The company's
turnover 1s generated wholly from within the United Kingdom
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2015

3 Profit on ordinary activihes before taxation

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation i1s stated after charging/(crediting) 2015 2014
£m £m
Employee costs (note 4a) 40.2 379
Depreciation on
- owned assets 258.7 236 4
- assets held under finance leases 1.6 14
260.3 2378
Rentals under operating leases
Vehicles 2.1 22
Research and development expenditure 04 05
Amortisation of grants and contributions (note 18) (2.9) (29
Exceptional item (see note below) (2.4) 188
Fees payable to the company’s auditor in respect of
- Statutory audit of the company’s financial statements 02 02
- Other services pursuant to legislation 0.1 01
0.5 20

- All other services

Note
The exceptional item of £18 8 rmullion for the prior year relates to costs incurred in dealing with the high

groundwater levels and storms expenenced in the winter of 2013—14 It includes tankernng and pumping costs
to remove the water as well as repairs to equipment as a result of the damage caused Durnng 201415 we

received msurance proceeds totalling £2 4 million in relation to this event and these are recorded as an
exceptional item i the results for this year
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2015

4 Employee information

(a) Employee costs (including directors’ emoluments):
Wages and salaries
Social secunty costs
Pension costs - Defined contribution (note 22)
- Defined benehit {(note 22)
Total employee costs

Less transferred to fixed assets as capital expenditure
Charged to the profit and loss account

2015 2014
£m £m
69.6 659
6.5 6.1
2.0 14
48 50
82.9 78 4
(42.7) (40 5)
40.2 37 9

Employee costs that are charged as capital expenditure are those directly related to the construction or

acquisition of assets

(b) Average number of persons employed by activity

The average monthly numbers of persons (including executive directors) employed by the company during

the year was

Operations
Customer services
Corporate centre

5 Directors’ emoluments

Aggregate emoluments {(including benefits in kind)
Amounts recewvable under long-term incentive plans
Company pensian contributions to money purchase pension schemes

2015 2014
Number Number
1,096 1,079
422 480
598 467
2,116 2,026
2015 2014
£000 £000
1,464 1,549
1,563 -
- 69

No retirement benefits accrued to directors {2013—14 none) under a Southern Water defined benefit scheme
No retirement benefits accrued to directors (2013—14 two) under a Southern Water defined contnbution

scheme

A long-term incentive plan has been in operation for the four-year penod from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2015
The Remuneration Committee assessed performance against this plan in Apnl 2015 and agreed for the
payments shown above to be made in June 2015 Further details can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration

Report on pages 73 to 84

Details of emoluments and benefits for the highest paid director

Highest pard director's aggregate emoluments and benefits
Amounts receivable under long-term incentive ptans

2015 2014
£000 £000

663 625
1,250 -
1,913 625

During the year the company made contributions of £nil (2013-14 £32,575) to a money purchase pension

scheme In respect of the highest paid director’s qualifying services
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2015

6 Interest receivable and similar income

2015 2014

£m £m

Interest recevable from Southermn Water Services Group Limited 56.9 569
Deposit interest receivable 1.3 49
Total interest receivable 58.2 618

The interest receivable from Southern Water Services Group Limited relates to the fong-term debtor disclosed
In note 14

7 Interest payable and similar charges

2015 2014

£m £m

Interest payable on other loans 12.8 89

Interest pard to group compantes 118.4 1341

Indexation 48.5 721
Amortisation of 1Issue costs 31 102
Amortisation of gilt lock proceeds (0.1) (0 1)
Amortisation of deferred proceeds (9.8) (9 8)
Amortisation of bond premium (0.6) (0 6)
Amortisation of discount 0.3 03
Other finance expense (see penstons note 22) 0.6 24
Dividends on preference shares 10.7 115
Total interest payable and similar charges 183.9 2290

Dwidends on preference shares

{a) Class A1 preference share dividends amounted to £40 per share and Class B £70 per share totalling
£9 0 million (2013—14 £9 0 million)

{b) A dividend due to the Class A2 preference shareholders of £563 11 (2013—14 £77 23) per share
totalling £1 7 million (2013—14 £2 5 million) was declared and settled in the year at base value plus an
amount for out-performance and savings in the year ended 31 March 2014 (see note 16(v))
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8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2015 2014
£m £m

Current tax:
UK corporatron tax on profits for the year 9.5 93
Adjustment in respect of prior years 3.2 17
Total current tax 12.7 110
Deferred tax:
Ongination and reversal of iming differences 241 16 2
Adjustment in respect of prior years (1.4) (11 7)
Pension cost relief In excess of pension charge 13 01
Effect of corporation tax rate change - (47 1)
Impact of rate change on pension charge - 12
Total deferred tax 24.0 (41 3)
Total tax on profit on ordinary activities 36.7 (30 3)

The tax assessed for the year 1s different to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK due to the following
factors

Current tax charge for the year 2015 2014
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 2038 139 5
Current tax:
UK corporation tax on profits for the year at 21 per cent (2013-14 23 per cent) 42.8 321
Adjustment in respect of prior years 3.2 17
Pension cost relief In excess of pension charge (1.4) (01
Group relief received (10.5) (12 1)
Permanent differences 3.8 57
Tax charge on ordinary activities 37.9 273
Timing differences {25.2) (163)
Current tax charge for year 127 110

Factors that may affect future tax charges

On 20 March 2013 the UK Government announced a reduction in the main rate of corporation tax from 23 per
cent to 21 per cent effective from 1 April 2014 and to 20 per cent effective from 1 Aprit 2015 These rate
changes were enacted in Finance Bill 2013, and deferred tax balances have been calculated using these
reduced rates A £47 1 million credit was recognised in the profit and loss account in the previous year to
reflect the reduction in the deferred tax hability as a result of the rate change In addition, charges of £1 2
milhon in the profit and loss account and £1 5 million in the statement of total recognised gains and losses were
recognised to reflect the reduction in the deferred tax asset relating to the pension deficit

Based on current capital iInvestment plans, the company expects to continue to be able to claim capital
allowances in excess of depreciation in future years at a similar level to the current year

Deferred tax habilities have not been discounted

The company pays group relief in full to Southern Water Services Group Limited and at a reduced rate of ten
pence n the pound for certain losses in other group companies
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9 Diwvidends

Ordinary shares

Intenim dwidend — Q1
Interim dividend — Q2
Intenm dividend — Q3
Intenim dividend — Q4

Total intenm dividend
Fina! dividend

Total ordinary dividend

The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend for 2014-15 (2013-14 £nil)

2015 2014

£ per £ per
ordinary ordinary 2015 2014
share share £m £m
200.56 195 48 1.3 110
200.55 195 48 1.2 10
200.55 195 47 11.2 109
200.55 195 47 11.2 109
802.21 78190 449 43 8
802.21 781 90 44.9 43 8

The interrm dividends totalling £44 9 million are paid to Scuthern Water Services Group Limited (SWSG)
These dividends, along with associated group tax relief, enable SWSG to pay the interest of £56 9 milon due
to Southern Water Services Limited on an inter-company loan as disclosed in note 6

10 Tangible fixed assets and capital commitments

{a) Tangible assets

Cost:

At 1 Apnl 2014
Additions

Transfers

Grants and contnbutions
Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 April 2014
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Net book amount:
At 31 March 2015

At 31 March 2014

Freehold Infra- Asseis in the
land & Plant & structure course of
buildings machinery assets  construction Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
1,397 6 2,260 6 2,213 4 3955 6705 6,937.6
17 44 2 731 163 1 41 0 323.1
86 2245 188 (290 0) 381 -
- - (11 8) - - {(11.8)
- (6 3) (7 5) - {(55) (19.3)
1,407 9 25230 2,286 0 268 6 744 1 7,229.6
526 9 802 3 767 5 - 408 9 2,505.6
373 925 76 2 - 54 3 260.3
- (63) (7 5) - (5 5) {19.3)
564 2 888 5 836 2 - 457 7 2,746.6
843.7 1,634.5 1,449.8 268.6 286.4 4,483.0
8707 1,458 3 1,445 9 3955 261 6 4,432 0
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10 Tangible fixed assets and capital commitments (continued)

Of the additions and transfers into infrastructure assets, the amount spent on infrastructure renewals net of
contnbutions during the year ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 was £65 0 milhon and £76 8 million,
respectively The associated contnbutions were £3 8 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 and £2 6 million
for the year ended 31 March 2014

For the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, the net book value of infrastructure assets 1s stated
after deducting grants and contributions since privatisation of £225 ¢ milhon and £214 1 million, respectively

Freehold tand 1s stated at a cost of £51 7 million and £51 7 million at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014,
respectively, and 1s not depreciated

Other assets relate pnmarly to computer equipment, meter-reading devices and motor vehicles

Assets held under finance leases have been capitalised and included in plant and machinery

2015 2014
£m £m
Cost 194 186
Aggregate depreciation {14.3) (12 7)
Net book amount 5.1 59
Qutstanding payments and interest associated with this lease are not matenal
(b) Capital commitments 2015 2014
£m £m
In respect of contracts placed 113.3 124 0
11 Fixed asset investments
Shares in group undertakings 2015 2014
£m £m
At 1 April and 31 March 29.2 292

The investment represents a 100 per cent holding of the 1ssued ordinary shares of Southern Water Services
(Finance) Limited (SWSF), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands but registered for tax in the UK The
pnncipal activity of SWSF s to raise debt finance

The directors are satisfied that the carrying value of the investment is supported by the underlying assets and
activities of SWSF

12 Stocks
2015 2014
£m £m
Raw maternals 1.5 16
Work in progress 0.7 0.4
2.2 20
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13 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

2015 2014
£m £m
Trade debtors 90.7 793
Loan receivable from Southern Water Services (Finance) Limited 15.1 134
Other amounts owed by other group undertakings 2.8 48
Other debtors 6.5 112
Accrued income 88.8 756
Prepayments 12.9 137
216.8 198 0

Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, interest-free and settled regularly

14 Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2015 2014
£m £m
Loans owed by group undertaking 812.3 812 3

Loans owed by group undertaking represents a loan to Southern Water Services Group Limited whichis

secured on the assets held under the Southern Water Services Group Secunty Agreement and repayable on

31 July 2052 with interest payable at seven per cent per annum

15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2015 2014

£m £m

Trade creditors 23.8 210
Loans from group undertakings {see note (1} below) 30.3 303
Amounts owed to group undertakings 16.7 387
Capital creditors and capital accruals 80.7 106 5
Taxation and social securty 2.4 26
Debt 1ssue costs (note 16 (vi}) (3.1) (31)
Accruals and deferred revenue 85.6 945
Bond premium deferred 0.3 03
Deferred gilt lock proceeds (note 16 (vii}) 0.1 01
Deferred proceeds 9.7 87
246.5 300 6

Notes (i) The loan from group undertakings i1s unsecured, interest-free, and shall be repayable in whole or

part upon demand at any time, provided that

(a) On the date of such demand, no class A debt s outstanding, no class B debt i1s outstanding

and no mezzanine debt 1s outstanding, or
(b} The consent of the Security Trustee 1s given
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16 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Loans and other borrowings

Loan from Southern Water Services (Finance) Limited
Debt issue costs (see note (vi) below)
Bond premium deferred
Deferred gilt lock proceeds (see note (vi) below)
Deferred proceeds®

Amounts due to group undertaking

Term Facility Agreement 2013 £150m — 6-month Libor plus 3% 2017
Term Facility Agreement 2014 £150m - 6-month Libor plus 1 95% 2021
Class A1 Preference shares (see note (v) below)
Class B Preference shares {see note (v) below)
Obligations under finance leases

Total loans and other borrowings

Deferred revenue (see note (vin) below)
Total creditors falling due after more than one year

Repayments fall due as follows.
Between two and five years
After five years not by instalments

2015 2014
£m £m
3.469.4 3,426 0
{30.0) (332)
3.8 41
5.2 53
115.0 124 7
3,563.4 3,526 4
- 1500
150.0 -
32.6 326
110.0 1100
1.8 16
3,857.8 3,8211
14.9 153
3,872.7 3,836 4
2015 2014
£m £m
- 1500
3,762.0 3,668 6
3,762.0 3,718 6

Under the loan agreements between SWS and SWSF, SWSF advances an amount equal to each bond or
other debt raised at the same tnterest rate plus 0 01 per cent Therefore each individual back-to-back inter-

company loan has been separately disclosed below
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16 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

An analysis of the loans 1s shown below

2015 2014
Loans Em £m
Class A £350m - £349 3m 3 345% index linked 2029/2037 & 402.7 3958
£0 7m 6 202% fixed rate 2029 (note (1) below)
Class A £150m - 3 716% index inked 2034 215.5 2102
Class A £35m - 3 716% index linked 2034 49.6 4497
Class A £350m - £141 9m 3 709% Index linked & 370.0 3672
£208 1m 6 650% fixed rate 2026 (note (i) below)
Class A £150m - 3 826% index linked 2023 215.5 2102
Class A £350m - £177 Om 2 070% index linked & 375.6 372 1
£173 0m 5 010% fixed rate 2021 (note (1) below)
Class A £150m - 0 510% index inked 2041 (note (1) below) 2044 2011
Class A £200m - 0 070% index inked 2052 (note (1) below) 266.3 2621
Class A £300m - 0 490% index inked 2056 (note (1) below) 363 3 362 3
Class A £300m - £195 Om Libor plus 3 029% 2019 & 300.0 3000
£105 0m 6 135% fixed rate 2019 {note {n) below)
Artesian £165m - 4 086% index hnked 2033 2371 2313
Artesian £156 5m - 3 645% index hnked 2032 2194 2140
Total Class A debt 3,219.4 3,176 0
Class B £250m - 4 51% fixed rate 2022 (note (1n} below) 250.0 2500
Senior Mezzanine £127 2m - 11 97% fixed rate 2038 (note (iv) below) - 00
Debt 1ssue costs (note (vi) below) (30.0) (332)
Bond premium deferred 38 41
Deferred gilt lock proceeds (note (vit) below) 5.2 53
Deferred proceeds* 115.0 124 7
Total loans and other borrowings from SWSF 3,563.4 3,526 9
Term Faciity Agreement 2013 £150m — 6-month Libor plus 3% 2017 - 1500
Term Factlity Agreement 2014 £150m — 6-month Libor plus 1 95% 2021 150.0 -
Class A1 Preference shares (note (v) below) 326 3286
Class B Preference shares {note (v) below) 110.0 1100
Obligations under finance leases 1.8 16
Total loans and other borrowings 3,857.8 3,821 1

*Deferred proceeds represent consideration recewved by the company in connection with taking on various debt
obligations that were ‘out of the money’ at the time the debt obligatrons were entered into The deferred
proceeds are amortised over the hves of the related debt instruments
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16 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

These loans (excluding the preference shares) are guaranteed and secured pursuant to a guarantee and
secunty agreement The agreement 1s over the entire property, assets, rights and undertaking of each of SWS,
SWSF, SWS Holdings Limited, and SWS Group Holdings Limited In the case of SWS, this 1s to the extent
permitted by the Water Industry Act 1991 and the Licence to own and operate water assets Further, the
company has a contingent hability ansing on certain inter-company financing arrangements which will have the
effect that If certain refinancings do not take place when the underlying instruments mature in 2021 to 2029, the
company wili make good certain obligations of its subsidiary SWSF The directors do not believe this to be

Ikely and the liability, if any, cannot currently be quantified as it will depend wholly on the circumstances at the
time of the matunty

In respect of the specific instruments above

()

As at 31 March 2015, SWSF was party to various swap agreements converting a total of £1,318 2 milhon
of Class A debt from the oniginal fixed interest rate 1o a real interest rate linked to RPI (Retall Price Index)
plus capitahised inflaton on the nominal value of the underlying Class A debt SWSF has entered into
mirror swaps (as well as loans) with SWS SWS i1s not required under applicable accounting standards to
include the fair value of these intercompany instruments within the financial statements

The table below analyses the total value of swaps entered into by SWSF as at 31 March 2015 and the fairr
value of these instruments held off-balance sheet in SWS

Onginal Swapped Nomnal value  Fair value of related

Nominal value Fixed Index Linked of debt plus off-balance sheet
of debt interest Interest rate  capitalised RPI swap instrument
rate hability at SWS*

£349 3m 6 192% 3 335% £402 0m £215 4m
£141 9m 6 640% 3 699% £162 Om £86 5m
£177 Om 5 000% 2 060% £202 6m £153 3m
£1500m 5 000% 0 500% £204 4m £159 8m
£200 0m 4 500% 0 060% £266 3m £269 6m
£300 Om 5125% 1 132% £363 3m £304 1m
£1,318 2m £1,600 6m £1,188 7m

= includes capitalised RPI already included in book value of £282 4 milhien

()

()

(v)

{v)

SWSF has entered intc swap agreements that have converted £195 million of its Class A £300 miliion
from a fixed rate of 6 125 per cent to floating rates of Libor plus a margin with a Libor cap at five per cent
This swapped rate has been reflected in the rate charged to SWS plus 0 01 per cent The fair value of the
swap instrument held off-balance sheet at SWS equates to an asset of £13 8 million

The interest rate on the Class B £250 million i1s fixed at 4 51 per cent untit March 2022 when it reverts to
Libar plus a margin to be determined with a premium of 0 01 per cent

The interest rate on the Sentor Mezzanine loan is fixed at 11 97 per cent until March 2022 when it reverts
to Libor plus 6 25 per cent with a premium of Q 01 per cent The balance on the Sentor Mezzanime loan
was repaid on 14 November 2014 The fair value of the related swap instrument held off-balance sheet at
SWS equates to a hability of £16 2 million

The preference shares issued have been classified as loans in the financial statements All shares are
redeemable at the optron of SWS at any time

The Class A1 and B preference shares, which do not carry voting nghts, were 1ssued on 23 July 2003 and
are redeemable at their nominal value plus the share premwum paid, on 31 March 2038 or, at the
company’s option, any time earlier Class A1 and B shares were 1ssued at £1,000 per share and the
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16 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

(v)

{wn)

amounts receved totalled £142 6 million for both classes of shares Class A2 preference shares were
issued for £0 01 per share on 7 May 2003 and the amount received totalled £326 Class A2 shares, which
do not carry voting nghts, are afso redeemable at nominal value Shareholders are entitled to receive
dividends annually as follows

Class A1 — £40 per share

Class A2 — the base vaiue dividend plus an amount for company out-performance and any savings ansing
from any refinancing of the Mezzanine debt The base value is £nil per share increasing by £15 every five
years from 31 March 2011 From 1 Apnl 2007, out-performance 1s defined as the difference between
Southern Water Services Limited’s audited ‘profit before interest and taxatron’ and the targeted ‘profit
before interest and taxation’ as determined by Ofwat in the periodic review

Class B — £70 per share
These dividends are payable on 31 March and 30 September each year

It 1s anticipated that a dividend will be declared and paid to the A2 preference shareholders in September
2015 for out-performance in the year ended 31 March 2015

On winding up, the preference shareholders rank above ordinary shareholders with the preference
shareholders being paid in order of Class A1, Class A2 then Class B

Debt issue costs represent 1ssue fees paid to SWSF Where these costs are attributable to a specific
instrument they are being amortised over the Iife of that instrument The remaimning costs are being
amortised over the weighted average life of the loan advances noted above As at 31 March 2015 debt
1ssue costs amounted to £33 1 million of which £3 1 million represents the shert-term amount which 1s
disclosed separately in note 15

Prior to the 1ssue of the Class A £300 million bond in the year to 31 March 2008, SWSF entered into a gilt
lock agreement, resuiting in the receipt of £6 3 million, which was advanced to SWS along with the
proceeds of the bond 1Issue The proceeds have been deferred in the financial statements of SWS and are
released to the profit and loss account over the hfe of the loan

{vin) Deferred revenue relates to the proceeds from the sale of tncome nghts relating to aenal masts and sites

owned by SWS and I1s credited to the profit and loss account evenly over the life of the lease
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17 Provision for liabilities

2014
£m

08
(0.3)

{a) Environmental obligations 2015
£m
At1 Apnl 0.5
Utiised in year -
At 31 March 0.5

05

The environmental provision relates to costs for the decommissioning of abandoned sites No reimbursement 1s
expected The penod over which the provision wilt be utiised cannot be determined thus the provision 1s not

2014
£m

3330
{188)

3142

2014
£m

3568
{117)
162
(47 1)

3142

2014
£m

2186
1)
©7

(12)
(15)

discounted
{b) Deferred taxation 2015
£m
Accelerated capital allowances 347.2
Other tming differences (10.4)
Deferred taxation 336.8
2015
Movement in deferred tax provision £m
Deferred tax provided at 1 April 314.2
Prior year adjustment (1.4)
Deferred tax charge in profit and loss account 24.0
Effect of corporation tax rate change -
Deferred tax provided at 31 March 336.8
2015
Deferred tax asset relating to pension deficit £m
At 1 Apnil 18.1
Deferred tax charge in profit and loss account (1.3)
Deferred tax crednted/(charged) to the statement of total recognised gains and 8.6
losses
impact of rate change
Charge in profit and loss account -
Charged to the statement of total recogmsed gains and losses -
At 31 March 25.4

18 1

The total deferred tax asset of £25 4 mithon (2013—14 £18 1 milion) relating to the pension deficit has been

deducted from the pension deficit and so has not been included in this balance
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18 Grants and contributions

At1 Apnl 2014

Receivable in year

Released to profit and loss account
At 31 March 2015

These grants and contributions relate to non-infrastructure assets

19 Called up share capital

Equity shares
Authorised
46,050,000 ordinary shares of £1 each

Allotted and fully paid
56,000 ordinary shares of £1 each

Non-equity shares - Issued

Preference shares

32,607 Class A1 shares of £1 each
32,607 Class A2 shares of £0 01 each
110,000 Class B shares of £1 each

£m
43 8
0.5
29)
1.4
2015 2014
£m £m
46.1 48 1
0.1 01
0.0 0
00 go
0.1 01

The preference shares are classified as debt in ine with FRS 25 They are disclosed within note 16 at an
amount of £142 6 millicn including share premium of £142 5 million The total company share premium of

£188 8 million includes ordinary share prermium of £46 3 million
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20 Reconcihiation of movement in sharehoider’s funds

Called up Share Profit and Total
share premium loss
capital account
£m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2013 01 463 867 9 914.3
Profit after tax - - 169 8 169.8
Dividends paid - - {43 8) (43.8)
Actuanal gain on pension scheme - - 31 3.1
Movement on deferred tax relating to - - (22) (2.2)
pension deficit
At 1 April 2014 01 46 3 994 8 1,041.2
Profit after tax - - 167 2 167.2
Dividends pad - - (44 9) (44.9)
Actuanal loss on pension scheme - - (42 9) (42.9)
Movement on deferred tax relating to - - 86 8.6
pension deficit
At 31 March 2015 0.1 46.3 1,082.8 1,129.2

The profit and loss reserve includes recogrused losses of £115 3 milion (2013~14 £90 4 milkon) less deferred
taxation of £25 4 million (201314 £18 1 mifion) In respect of pension scheme habilities of the company

pension fund

21 (a) Cash flow from operating activities

Continuing operations

Operating profit

Deprectation charge

Difference between pension charge and cash contrnibutions
Amortisation of grants and contnbutions

Decrease In environmentai provision

Increase 1n stocks

Increase In debtors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Total net cash inflow from operating activities

2015 2014
£m £m
3283 306 2
260.3 2378
(18.6) (27)
(2.9) (29)
- (03)
{0.2) (0 4)
(16.5) {15 8)
{6.0) 214
544.4 543 3
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21 (b) Analysis of net debt

Other non- At 31

At 1 April cash March

2014 Cash Flow changes 2015

£m £m £m £m

Cash deposits 1355 380 - 173.5
Debt 1ssue costs 363 - (31 33.2
Gilt lock proceeds (see note 16) (5 4) - 01 (5.3)
Loans due within one year (40 3) - - (40.3)
Loans due after one year (3,847 4) 50 {38 4) (3,880.8)
Finance leases (16) 01 (03) (1.8)
{3,722 9) 43 1 {(417) (3,721.5)

The non-cash movement of £41 7 million relates to an increase 1n debt as a result of indexation, plus the
amortisation of loan 1ssue costs, giit lock proceeds, deferred proceeds and an increase in finance lease

obligations

Loans due within one year relate to loans from group undertakings that are repayable on demand (see note
15)

22 Pensions

The deficit after deferred tax of £89 9 milhon (201314 defict £72 3 mutlion) has ansen mainly as a result of
lower expected future returns on investments primanly due to low interest rates The deficit (before deferred
tax) of £115 3 million (2013-14 deficit £90 4 million) has increased due to a decrease in the yields on AA-rated
corporate bonds, partially offset by a reduction in the RPI inflaton assumption used (this decreases the value
placed on the pension scheme liabiities, decreasing the shortfall in the pension scheme}, and asset returns in
excess of the expected return over the year (this has resulted in a higher value in the year end assets,
decreasing the shortfall in the pension scheme) The deferred tax asset related to the plan deficit iIncreased by
£8 6 million leading to a corresponding credit in the statement of total recognised gains and losses (note 17)

Pension schemes operated
The company principally operates two schemes, details of which are shown below

1 Southem Water Pension Scheme (SWPS), a funded defined benefit scheme, was closed to new members
on 31 December 1998, re-opened in July 2003 and closed once more to new entrants on 1 Apnl 2005
This scheme has nine trustee directors The Southern Water Services Executive Penston Scheme
(SWEPS) was also closed to new entrants and merged with the SWPS on 1 Apnl 2005

The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the company Legal and General and
BlackRock manage assets for the Southern Water Pension Scheme within paoled investment funds, and
appoint custodians for these assets at indvidual pooled fund level (not client holding leve!)

2 A second company stakeholder scheme, which 1s a defined contribution scheme, 1s also avaitable to all
employees

Contributtons made to the defined contnbution scheme for the year ended 31 March 2015 amounted to
£2 0 rmifion (2013-14 £1 4 milhon) No contributions were outstanding at either year end 1n relation to the
defined contnbution scheme
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22 Pensions (continued)
Members of all schemes receive an annual statement of their accrued benefits

The tatest actuanal valuation of the SWPS was carred out as at 31 March 2010 using the projected unit

method For closed schemes under this method the current service cost will increase as the members of the

schemes approach retirement The assumptions that have the most significant effect on the results of the

valuation are those relating to the rate of return on investments and the level of inflation, which dnives pension

increases In the SWPS !

The pnncipal assumptions in the valuation were as follows

2010
SWPS
% per
annum
(pa)

Return on investments pre-retirement 72
Return on investments post-retrement (pensioner/non-pensioner) 52/525
Salary growth 52
Penston increases on the excess over guaranteed minimum pensions 38
{where capped at 5% pa)

The assets of the scheme had a market value of £479 6 miliion at 31 March 2010 This was sufficient to cover
81 per cent of the scheme’s benefits

Expected employer and employee contributions to the defined benefit scheme for 2015-16 are £15 2 million
and £0 2 million respectively under the current Schedule of Contributtons An actuanal valuation as at 31 March
2013 s currently under way and a new Schedule of Contributions will be agreed as part of this valuation, which
could result in a different level of contributions being paid
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22 Pensions (continued)
Assumptions, asset, liability and reserves

The format actuanal funding valuation was carned out as at 31 March 2010 and updated to 31 March 2015 by a
qualified independent actuary The major assumptions used by the actuary are set out In the table below

2015 2014 2013

% pa % pa % pa
Price inflation (RP1) 3.0 32 32
Price inflation (CPI) 2.0 23 23
Rate of Increase in salanes (plus an age-related promotional scale) 25 25 25
Rate of increase of pensions in payment (MIS* members only)™* 20 23 23
Rate of increase of pensions in payment (Old secton™ members 3.0 32 32
only)™*
Rate of increase of pensions in payment (all other members}*** 29 31 31
Rate of increase for deferred pensions {MIS* members only)™™* 20 23 23
Rate of increase for deferred pensions (all other members)™* 29 31 31
Discount rate 3.4 45 44
Expected return on assets 4.0 51 47
* MIS refers to the Southern Water Mirror Image Pension Scheme Pensions in payment and deferment

for this section will be indexed in Ine with the Consumer Price index

- For this section the Trustee will endeavour to meet any indexation of excess pension above the five per
cent per annum cap on increases that apply to other sections of the Scheme

***  In excess of any Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) element

Assumptions regarding future mortality expenence are set based on advice, published statistics and
experience For 2014-15, the company has used the post-retirement mortalty assumptons based on the
standard SAPS mortahty tables together with future improvements in line with CMI 2014 improvements with a
long-term improvement rate of 1 25 per cent per annum

2015 2014
Years Years
Longewity at age 65 for current pensioners
Male 23.0 229
Female 25.1 25.0
Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners
Male 24.7 247
Female 27.0 26 9
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22 Pensions (continued)

The assets and abiities in the schemes and the expected rates of return at 31 March 2015 and 31 March
2014 were

Rate of Rate of Value Value

return return at 2015 at 2014

2015 2014 £m £m

Equities 5.9% 71% 282.2 256 6
Government bonds 1.9% 31% 159.1 1323
Non-Government bonds 2.8% 4 0% 208.8 1839
Cash 2.7% 2 9% 23.9 87
Tota! market value of plan assets 674.0 5815

Total value of plan habilities (789.3) (671 9)

Accrued deficit in the plan (115.3) (90 4)
Related deferred tax asset 254 181

Net pension liability (89.9) {72 3)

The equity investments and bonds which are held in plan assets are quoted and are valued at the current bid
price

Reconciliation of the present value of the scheme labilities 2015 2014
£m £m
At 1 Apnl 671.9 669 7
Current service cost 4.8 50
Interest cost 29.8 291
Member contributions 0.2 03
Actuarntal loss/(gain) on liabilittes 108.1 {75)
Benefits pard {25.5) (24 7)
Scheme liabilities at 31 March 789 3 6719

Sensitivity analysis of scheme liabilities

The sensitivity of the present value of the scheme habilities to changes in the pnncipal assumptions used is set
out below

Change in Impact on Impact on

assumption scheme scheme

habilities (%) habilities

(Em)

Discount rate +H- 1% -+ 15 <+ 17
Rate of inflation* +- 1% +/- 13 +- 101
Rate of increase in pensions in payment +- 1% +/- 11 +- 90
Mortality +- yr +/- 3 +- 23

*A change in inflation 1s assurmed to be reflected in a change mn the assumed rates of deferment revaluation
and pension increase (on pension in excess of GMP)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2015

22 Pensions (continued)

Reconciliation of the fair value of the scheme assets

At1 Apni

Expected return on assets

Gain/(loss) on assets

Employer contributions

Member contnbutions

Benefits paid

Bid value of scheme assets at 31 March

The actual gain on scheme assets was £94 4 milion (2013-14 £22 2 million)

Analysis of amounts charged to operating profit

Employer's current service cost

Expected return on pension scheme assets
Interest on pension scheme habilities

Total P&L expense before deduction for tax

Analysis of the amounts recognised in STRGL

Actuanal retun less expected return on pension scheme assets
{Loss)/gain on change of assumptions (financial and demographic)
Total (loss)/gan recognised in STRGL befcore adjustment for tax

2015 2014
£m £m
581.5 576 0
29.2 267
65.2 (4 4)
234 76
0.2 03
{25.5) (24 7)
674.0 5815
2015 2014
£m £m
4.8 50
(29.2) (26 7)
298 29 1
5.4 74
2015 2014
£m £m
65.2 (4.4)
(108.1) 7.5
(42.9) 3.1

The cumulative amount of actuaral losses recogmised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses 1S

£179 5 millon (201314 £136 6 million)

Analysis of the movement in the schemes’ deficit duning the year

Deficit in the scheme at 1 Apnl
Employer's contributions

Employer's current service cost

Other finance expense

Actuarial {loss)/gain

Deficit in the scheme at end of year
Deferred tax relating to scheme deficit
Net deficit at end of year

2015 2014
£m £m
(90.4) (93 7)
23.4 76
{4.8) (50)
(0.6) (2 4)
(42.9) 31
(115.3) (90 4)
25.4 18 1
(89.9) (72 3)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
22 Pensions (continued)

History of gains and losses for the year to 31
March 2015

a Experience (gain)/loss on scheme assets
Amount (£m)

b. Experience (gain)/loss on scheme habilities
Amount (£m)

c. Total amount recogmised in the STRGL
Farr value of assets at year-end (£m)
Actuanal value of habilittes at year-end (Em)
Deficit in scheme at year-end (Em)

23 Contingent habilities

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(65.2) 45 {43 0) 05 (11)
- - 11 49 (6 0)
674.0 5815 576 0 5198 500 6
(789.3) (6719) (6697) (6161) (5607)
(115.3) (90 4) {937) (96 3) {60 1)

Contractors submit claims to the company for the estimated final cost of therr works These claims are reviewed
to assess where the hability for the costs rests and the amount that will actually be settled The expected

amount 1s included within capital creditors and a further sum is identified as a contingent hability, representing a
proportion of the difference between the contractor's claim and Southem Water's valuation

The company had no contingent iabilities for capital claims at the year-end (2013—-14 £nif)

24 Financial commitments

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements in respect of vehicles and land and buildings for which the payment extends over a number of

years as follows

Expiring between two and five years
Expiring after more than five years

Land and Buildings Other
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m

- 01 0.2 01

1.6 14 - -
1.6 15 0.2 01

Operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account over the lease term

25 Related party transactions and ultiimate holding party

The immediate parent undertaking 1s SWS Holdings Limited

The ulimate parent company and ultimate controlling party 1s Greensands Holdings Limited, a company

incorporated in Jersey

The major shareholders in Greensands Holdings Limited as at 31 March 2015 are IIF international SW UK
Investments Limited (managed by J P Morgan Investments Inc ) and The Northern Trust Company
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25 Related party transactions and ultimate holding party (continued)

Greensands Holdings Limited 1s the only group company to prepare consolidated financial statements, copres
of which may be obtained from the Company Secretary of Greensands Holdings Limited at Southern House,
Yeoman Road, Worthing, BN13 3NX, or from our website

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ (revised) in not
disclosing details of transactions with other companies which are 100 per cent owned on the basis that the
consolidated financial statements in which the company 1s included are publicly available
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Southern Water Services Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Southern Water Services Limited for the year ended 31 March
2015 which comprnise the Profit and Loss Account, the Statement of Total Recogrised Gains and Losses, the
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 to 25 The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body, for our audst work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibility I1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements 1n accordance with apphcable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtamning evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the
company's circumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identfy
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that 1s apparently
maternially incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or iInconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
in our opinion the financial statements
+ Give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of its profit for
the year then ended
e« Have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and
¢ Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you of, In our opimion

= Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not wisited by us, or

= The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

= Centain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

= We have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

\) A»

James Leigh (Sentor statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

2< Jone o\&
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